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l : $ ^ 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

INTBR-COMPANY POWER AGREEMENT 

DATED AS OF SEPrEMBER. 10,2010 

AMONG 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION, 
ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY COMPANY, LX.C. 
APPALACHL^N POWER COMPANY, . 
BUCKEYE POWER GENERATING, LLC, 
COLUMBUS SOUTHERN POWER COMPANY, 
THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY, 
DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.. 
FIRSTENERGY GENERATION CORP., 
INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER COMPANY, 
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY, 
LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, 
MONONGAHELA POWER COMPANY, 
OHIO POWER COMPANY, 
PENINSULA GENERATION COOPERATIVE, and 
SOUTHERN INDIANA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 
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AMENBED-ANB RESTATED 

INTER-COMPANY POWER AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, dated as of September 10,2010 (the "Agreement"), by and 
among OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION (herein called OVEC), ALLEGHENY ENERGY 

SUPPLY COMPANY, L.L.C. (hexein called Allegheny), APPALACHUN POWER COMPANY (herein 
called Appalachian), BUCKEYE POWER GENERATING, LLC (herein called Buckeye), COLUMBUS 

SOUTHERN POWER COMPANY (herein called Columbus), THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT 

COMPANY (herein called Dayton), DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC. (fonnerly known as The Cincimiati 
Gas & Electric Company and herein called Duke Ohio), FIRSTENERGY GENERATION CORP. 

(herein called FirstEnergy), INDL̂ NA MICHIGAN POWER COMPANY (herein called Indiana), 
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY (herein called Kentucky), LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC 

COMPANY (herein called Louisvilie), MONONGAHELA POWER COMPANY (herein called 
Monongahela), OHIO POWER COMPANY (herein called Ohio Power), PENINSULA GENERATION 
COOPERATIVE (herein called Peninsula), and SOUTHERN INDIANA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

(herein called Southern Indiana, and all of the foregoing, other than OVEC, being herein 
sometimes collectively referred to as the Sponsoring Companies and individually as a 
Sponsoring Company) hereby amends and restates in its entirety, the Inter-Company Power 
Agreement dated as of March 13,2006, as amended by Modification No. 1, dated as of March 
13,2005 (herein called the Current A^ecment), by and among OVEC and the Sponsoring 
Companies. 

WITNESSETH THAT: 

WHEREAS, fiie Current Agreement amoided and restated the original Inter-
Company Power A^eement, dated as of M y 10, 1953, as amended by Modification No. 1, dated 
as of Jxme 3, 1966; Modification No. 2, dated as of January 7,1967; Modification No. 3, dated as 
of November 15,1967; Mo(hficationNo. 4, dated as ofNovember 5,1975; ModificationNo. 5, 
dated as of September 1,1979; Modification No. 6, dated as of August 1,198I; Modification 
No. 7, dated as of January 15,1992; Modification No. 8, dated as of January 19,1994; 
ModificationNo. 9, dated as of August 17,1995; ModificationNo. 10, dated as of January 1, 
1998; ModificationNo. U, dated as of April 1,1999; ModificationNo. 12, dated as of 
November U 1999; Modification No. 13, dated as of May 24,2000; ModificationNo. 14, dated 
as of April 1,2001; and Modification No. 15, dated as of April 30,2004 (together, herein called 
the Original Agreement); and 

W HEREAS, OVEC designed, purchased, and constructed, and continues to operate 
and maintain two steam-electric generating stations, one station (herein called Ohio Station) 
consisting of five turbo-generators and all other necessary equipment, at a location on the Ohio 
River near Cheshire, Ohio, and the other station (herein called Indiana Station) consisting of six 
turbogenerators and all other necessary equipment, at a location on the Ohio River near Madison, 
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Indiana, (the Ohio Station and the Indiana Station being herein called the Project Generating 
Stations); and 

WHEREAS, OVEC also designed, purchased, and constructed, and continues to 
operate and maintain necessary transmission and general plant facilities (herein called the Project 
Transmission Facilities) and OVEC established or cause to be estabUshed interconnections 
between the Project Generating Stations and the systems of certain of the Sponsoring 
Companies; and 

WHEREAS, OVEC entered into an agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A, with 
Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation (herein called IKEC), a corporation organized under the 
laws of the State of Indiana as a wholly owned subsidiary corporation of OVEC, which has been 
amended and restated as of the date of this Agreement and embodies the terms and conditions for 
the ownership and operation by IKEC of the Indiana Station and such portion of the Project 
Transmission F^ilities which are to be owned and operated by it; and" 

WHEREAS, transmission facilities were constmcted by certain of the Sponsoring 
Companies to interconnect the systems of such Sponsoring Companies, directiy or indirectly, 
with the Project Generating Stations and/or the Project Transmission Facilities, and the 
Sponsoring Companies have agreed to pay for Available Power, as hereinafter defined, as may 
be available at the Project Generating Stations; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend and restate in their entirety, the 
Current Agreement to define the tesms and conditions governing the rights of the Sponsoring 
Companies to receiye Available Power firom Ihe Project Generatiog Stations and the obligations 
of the Sponsoring Companies to pay therefor. 

Now, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree with each other as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

1.01, For the purposes of tbis Agreement, the following terms, wha^ver used 
herein, shall have the following meanings: 

1.011 "AfBhate" means, with respect to a specified person, any other 
person that directiy or indirectiy through one or more intermediaries controls, is 
controlled by, or is under common control with, such speciSed person; provided that 
"control'' for these purposes means the possession, directiy or indireptiy, of the power to 
direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through 
the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. 
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1.012 '̂ Arbitration Board" has the meaning set forth in Section" 9.10. 

1.013 "Available Energy" of the Project Generating Stations means the 
energy associated with Available Power. 

1.014 "* Available Power" of the Project Generating Statioris at any 
particular time means the total net kilowatts at the 345-kV busses of tiie Project 
Generating Stations which Corporation in its sole discretion will detemiine that the 
Project Generating Stations wall be capable of safely delivering under conditions then 
prevailing, including all conditions aifecting capability. 

1.015 "Corporation" means OVEC, IKEC, and all otiier subsidiary 
corporations of OVEC. 

1.016 "Decommissioning and Demolition Obhgation" has the meaning 
set forth in Section 5.03(f) hereof 

1.017 "Effective Date" means September 10,2010, or to the extent 
necessary, such later date on which Corporation notifies the Sponsoring Companies that 
all conditions to effectiveness, including all reqmred waiting periods and all required 
regulatory acceptances or ^provals, of this Agreement have been satisfied in form and 
substance satis^ctory to the Corporation. 

1.018 "Election Period" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.183(a) 
hereof. 

1.019 "Minimum Generating Unit Outpuf' means 80 MW (net) for each 
of the Corporation's generation units; provided that such"Miaimum Generating Unit 
Output" shall be confirmed fiom time to time by operating tests on the Corporation's 
generation units and shall be adjusted by the Operating Comiruttee as appropriate 
following such tests. 

l.OI 10' "Minimum Loading Evenf' means a period of time during which 
one or more of the Corporation''s generation units arc operating at below the Minimum 
Generating Output as a result of the Sponsoring CcKnpanies' failure to schedule and take 
delivery of sufficient Available Energy. 

1.0111 "Minimum Loading Event Costs" means the sum of the following 
costs caused by one or more Minimum Loading Events: (i) the actual costs of any of the 
Corporation's generating nnits'burning fuel oil; and (ii) the estimated actual additional 
costs to the Corporation resulting from Minimum Loading Events, including without 
limitation the incremental costs of additional emissions allowances, refltt̂ ted in the 
schedule of chaises prepared by the Operating Coirunittee and in effect as of the 
commencement of any Minimum Loading Event, which schedule may be adjusted'fiom 
time to time as necessary by the Operating Conunittee. 
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1.0 i 12 "Month" means a calendar month. 

1.0113 "Nominal Power Available" means an individual Sponsoring 
Company's Power Participation Ratio share of the Corporation's current estimate of the 
maximimi amount of Available Power available for delivery at any given time. 

1.0114 "Offer Notice" means the notice required to be given to tiie other 
Sponsoring Compariies by a Transferring Sponsor offering to sell all or a portion of such 
Transferring Sponsor's ri^ts, tide and interests in, and obligations under this Agreement. 
At a minimum, the Offer Notice shall be in writing and shall contam (i) the rights, title 
and interests in, and obligations under this Agreement that the Transferring Sponsor 
proposes to Transfer; and (ii) the cash purchase price and any other material terms and 
conditions of such proposed, transfer. "An Offer Notice may not contain terms or 
conditions requiring the purchase of any non-OVEC interests. 

1.0115 "Permitted Assignee" means a person that is (a) a Sponsoring 
Company or its AffiUate whose long-term imsecured non-credit rahanced indebtedness, 
as of the date of such assignment, has a Standard 8c Poor's credit rating of at least BBB-
and a Moody's Investors Service, Inc. credit rating of at least Baa3 (provided that, if the 
proposed assignee's long-term unsecured non-credit enhanced indebtedness is not 
currentiy rated by one of Standard & Poor's or Moody, such assignee's long-term 
unsecured non-credit enhanced indebtedness, as of the date of such assignment, must 
have either a Standard & Poor's credit rating of at least BBB- or a Moody's Investors 
Service, Inc. credit rating of at least Baa3); or (b) a Sponsoring Company or its Affiliate 
that does not meet the criteria in subsection (a) above, if the Sponsoring Company or its 
AfBhate that is assigning its rights, tide and interests in, and obhgations under, this 
Agreement agrees in writing (in form and substance satisfactory to Corporation) to 
remain obligated to satisfy all of the obligations related to the assi^ed rights, title and 
interests to the extent such obligations axe not satisfied by the assignee of such rights, title 
and interests; pro"vided that iu no event shall a person be deemed a "Permitted Assignee" 
if counsel for the Corporation reasonably determines that the assignment of the rights, 
tide or interests in, or obligations under, this Agreement to such person could cause a 
termination, default, loss or payment obligation under any security issued, or agreement 
entered into, by the Corporation prior to such transfer. 

1.0116 "Postretireraent Benefit Obligation" has the meaning set forth in 
Section 5.03(e) hereof 

1.0117 "Power Participation Ratio" as apphed to each of the Sponsoring 
Companies refers to the percentage set forth opposite its respective name in the tabulation 
below: 

Company 
Power Participation 

Ratio—^Percent 
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Allegheny 3.01 
Appalachian ]5.69 
Buckeye : 18.00 
Coltimbus 4.44 
Dayton 490 
Duke Ohio..... 900 
FirstEnergy 4_g5 
Indiana 7.g5 
Kentucky 2.50 
Louisville „ 553 
Monongahela 0.49 
Ohio Power 15.49 
Peninsula 555 
Southrais Indiana } SO 

Total 100.0 

1.0118 "TarifT means the open access transmission tariff of the 
Corporation, as amended from time to time, or any successor tariff, as accepted by the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Comniissioa or any successor agency. 

1.0119 "Thud Party" means any person other than a Sponsoring Company 
or its Affiliate. 

1.0120 "Total Minimum Generating Output' means the product of the 
Mirumum Generating Unit Output times the number of the Corporation's generation urtits 
available for service at that time. 

1.0121 "Transfemng Sponsor" has the meaning set forth in Section 
9.183(a) hereof 

1.0122 "Uniform System of Accounts" means tiie Uniform System of 
Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as in effect on 
January 1,2004. 

ARTICLE! 

TRANSMISSION AGREEMENT AND FACILITIES 

2.01, Transmission Agreement. The Corporation shall enter into a transmission 
service agreement under tiie Tariff, and the Corporation shall reserve and schedule transmission 
service, ancillary services and other transmission-related services m accordance with the Tariff 
to provide for tiie delivery of Available power and Available Energy to the apphcahle delivery 
point under this Agreement 
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2.02. Limited Burdening of Corporation's Transmission Facilities. 
Transmission facilities owned by the Corporation, including the Project Transmission Facilities, 
shall not be burdened by power and energy flows of any Sponsoring Company to an extent 
which would impair or prevent the transmission of Available Power. 

ARTICLE 3 

[RESERVED] 

ARTICLE 4 

AVAILABLE POWER SUPPLY 

.4.01. Operation of Project Generating Stations. Corporation shall operate and 
maintain the Project Generating Stations in a manner consistent with safe, pmdent, and efficient 
operating practice so that the Available Power available from said stations shall be at the highest 
practicable level attainable consistent with OVEC's obligations under RdiabilityFff-^r Reliabihty 
Standard BAL-002-RFC throughout the term of this Agreement 

4.02. Available Power Entitlement. The Sponsoring Companies collectively 
shall be entitied to take from Corporation and Corporation shall be obligated to supply to the 
Sponsoring Companies any and all Available Power and Available Energy pircsuant to the 
provisions of this Agreement, Each Sponsoring Company's Available Power Entitiement 
hereunder shall be its Power Participation Ratio, as defined in subsection 1.0117, of Available 
Power. 

4.03. Available Energy. Corporation shall make Available Energy available to 
each Sponsoring Company in proportion to said Sponsoring Company*s Power Participation 
Ratio. No Sponsoring Company, however, shall be obligated to avail itself of any Available 
Energy. Available Energy shall be scheduled and taken by the Sponsoring Companies in 
accordance vrith the following procedures: 

4-031 Each Sponsoring Company shall schedule the dehvery of all or any 
portion (in whole MW increments) of its entitiement to Available Energy in accordance 

., with scheduling procedures established by the Operating Committee from time to time. 

4.032 In the event that any Sponsoring Company does not schedule the 
. delivery of all of its Power Participation Ratio share of Available Energy, then each such 

other Sponsoring Company may schedule the delivery of all or any portion (in whole 
MW increments) of any such unscheduled share of Available Energy (through successive 
allotments if necessary) in proportion to their Power Participation Ratios. 
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4-033 Notwithstanding any Available Energy schedules made in 
accordance with this Section 4-03 and the appHcable scheduluig procedures, (i) the 
Corporation shall adjust all schedules to the extent that the Corporation's actual 
generation output is less than or more than the expected Nominal Power Available to all 
Sponsoring Companies, or to the extent that the Corporation is unable to obtain sufficient 
transmission service under the Tariff for the delivery of all scheduled Available Energy; 
and (ii) immediately follovring a Minimum Loading Event, any Sponsoring Company 
causing (in whole or part) such Minimum Loading Event shall have its Available Energy 
schedules increased after the schedules of the Sponsoring Companies not, causing such 
Minimum Load Event, in accordance with the estimated ramp rales associated with the 
shubiown and start-up of the Corporation's generation imits as reflected in the schedules 
prepared by the Operating Committee and in effect as of the commencement of any 
Minimum Loading Event, which schedules may be adjusted from time to time as 
necessary by the Operating Committee'. 

4.034 Each Sponsoring Company availing itself of Available Energy 
shall be entitied to an amoimt of energy (herein called billing kilowatt-hours of Available 
Energy) equal to its portion, determined as provided in tbis Section 4.03, of the total 
Available Energy after deducting therefrom such Sponsoring Company's proportionate 
share, as defined in this Section 4.03, of all losses as determined in accordance with the 
Tariff incurred in transmitting the total of such Available Energy from the 345-kV busses 
of the Project Generating Stations to the apphcable delivery points, as scheduled pursuant 
to Se^on 9.01, of all Sponsoring Companies availing themselves of Available Energy. 
The proportionate share of all such losses that shall be so deducted from such Sponsoiing 
Company's-portion of Available Energy shaD be equal to all such losses multiplied by the 
ratio of such portion of Available Energy to the total of such Available Energy. Each 
Sponsoring Company shall have the right, pursuant to this Section 4.03, to avail itself of 
Available Energy for tiie purpose of meeting the loads of its own system and/or of 
supplying energy to other systems in accordance with agreements, other than this 
Agmement, to which such Sponsoring Company is a party. 

4.035 To the extent that, as a result of the failure by one or more 
Sponsoring Companies to take its respective Powei Participation Ratio share of the 
appli<^le Total Minimiim Generating Output during any hour, a Minimum Loading 
Event shall occur, then such one or more Sponsoring Compam'es shall be assessed 
charges for any Mirumum Loading Event Costs in accordance with Section 5.05. 

ARTICLE 5 

CHARGES FOR AVAILABLE POWER AND MINIMUM LOAD[NG EVENT COSTS 

5-01. Total Monthly Charge. The amount to be paid to Corporation each month 
by the Sponsoring Companies for Available Power and Available Energy supplied under this 
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Agreement shall consist of the sum of an energy charge, a denand charge, and a transmission 
charge, all determined as set forth in this Article 5. 

5-02. Energy Charge. The energy charge to be paid each month by the 
Sponsoring Companies for Available Energy shall be determined by Corporation as follows: 

5.021 Determine the aggregate of all expenses for fad incurred in the 
operation of the Project Generating Stations, m accordance with Account 501 (Fuel), 
Account 506.5 (Variable Reagent Costs Associated With Pollution Control Facilities) and 
509 (Allowances) of the Uniform System of Accounts. 

5.022 Determine for such month the difference between the total cost of 
fiiel as described in subsection 5.Q21 above and the total cost of fiiel included in any 
Minimum Loading Event Costs payable to the Corporation for such month pursuant to 
Section 8.03. For the purposes hereof the difference so determined shall be the fiiel cost 
allocable for such month to the total kilowatt-hours of energy generated at the Project 
Generating Stations for the supply of Available Energy. For Available Energy availed of 
by the Sponsoring Companies, each Sponsorhig Company shall pay Corporation for each 
such month an amotmt obtained by multiplying the ratio of the billing kilowatt-hours of 
such Available Energy avaded of by such Sponsoring Company during such month to the 
aggregate of the biUing kilowatt-hours of all Available E n e ^ availed of by all 
Sponsoring Ccampanies during such month times the total cost of fuel as described in this 
subsection 5.022 for such month. 

5.03. Demand Charge. During the period commencing with the Effective Date 
and fr)r the remainder of the terra of this Agreement, demand charges payable by the Sponsoring 
Companies to Corporation shall be detemdned by the Corporation as pro"vided below in this 
Section 5.03. Each Sponsoring Company's share of the aggregate demand charges shall be the 
percentage of such charges represented by its Power Participation Ratio. 

The aggregate demand charge payable each month by the Sponsoring Companies 
to Corporation shall be equal to the total costs incurred for such month by Corpoiation resultir^ 
from its ownership, operation, and mainienance of the Project Generating Stations and Project 
Transmission'Facilities determined as foHows: 

As soon as practicable after the close of each calendar month the following 
components of costs of Corporation (eliminating any dupUcation of costs which 
might otherwise be reflected among the corporate entities comprismg 
Corporation) apphcable for such month to the ownership, operation and 
maintenance of the Project Generating Stations and the Project Transmission 
Facihties, including additional facilities and/or spare parts (such as fiiel 
processing plants, flue gas or waste product processing facilities, and facilities 
reasonably required to enable the Corporation to limit the emission of pollutants 
or the discharge of wastes in compliance with governmental requirements) and 
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•replacements-necessary or desirable tokreep the Project Generating StatioiS and"~ 
the Project Transmission Facilities in a dependable and efficient operating 
condition, and any provision for any taxes that may be applicable to such charges, 
to be determined and recorded in the following maimer: 

(a) Component (A) shall consist of fixed charges made up of 
(i) the amounts of interest properly chargeable to Accounts 427, 430 and 
431, less die amount thereof credited to Accotmt 432, of the Uniform 
System of Accounts, including the interest component of any purchase 
price, interest, rental or other payment under an installment sale, loan, 
lease or similar agreement relating to the purchase, lease or acquisition by 
Coiporarion of additional factiities and replacements (whether or not such 
mterest or other amounts have come due or are actually payable during 
such Month), Oi) the amounts of amortization of debt discount or premium 
and expenses properly chargeable to Accounts 428 and 429, and (iii) an 
amount equal to the sum of (I) the applicable amount of the debt 
amortization component for such month required to retire the total amount 
of indebtedness of Corporation issued and outstanding, (II) the 
amortization requirement for such month in respect of indebtedness of 
Corporation incurred in respect of additional facilities and replacements, 
and (III) to the extent not provided for pursuant to clause (II) of this 
clause (iii), an appropriate allowance for depreciation of additional 
facihties and replacements. 

(b) Component (B) shall consist of the total operating expenses 
for labor, maintenance, materials, supplies, services, insurance, 
administrative and general expense, etc., properly chargeable to the 
Operation and Maintenance Expense Accounts of the Uniform System of 
Accounts (exclusive of Accounts 501, 509,555, 911, 912,913,916, and 
917 of the Umfbrm System of Accounts), minus the total of all non-fuel 
costs included in any Mirumum Loading Event Costs payable to the 
Corporation for such month pursuant to Section 8.03, minus the total of all 
trananission charges payable to the Corporation for such month pursuant 
to Section 5.04, and plus any additional amounts which, after provision for 
ail income taxes on such amounts (which shall be included in Component 

• (C) below), shall equal any amounts paid or payable by Corporation as 
fines or penalties with respect to occasions where it is asserted that 
Corporation foiled to comply wth a law or regulation relath^ to die 
emission of pollutants or die discharge of wastes. 

(c) Component (C) shall consist of the total expenses for taxes, 
including all taxes on income but excluding any federal income taxes 
arising from payments to Corporation under Component (D) below, and 
all operating or other costs or expenses, net of income, not included or 
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^ 

Specifically excluded in Components (A) or (B) above, including tax 
adjustments, regulatory adjustments, net losses for the disposition of 
property and other net costs or expenses ^sociated with the operation of a 
utility. 

(d) Componait (D) shall consist of an amount equal to the 
product of $2,089 multiplied by the total number of shares of capital stock 
of the par value of $100 per share of Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 
which shall have been issued and which are outstanding on the last day of 
such month. 

(e) Component (E) shall consist of an amoimt to be sufficient 
to pay the costs and other expenses relating to the establishment, 
maintenance and administration of life insurance, medical msurance and 
other posfcretirement benefits other than pensions attributable to the 
employment and employee service of active employees, retirees, or other 
employees, including without limitation any premiums due or expected to 
become due, as well as admiiustrative fees and costs, such amounts being 
sufficient to provide payment with respect to all periods for which 
Corporation has committal or is otherwise obligated to make such 
payments, including amounts attributable to current employee service and 
any unamortized prior service cost, gain or loss attributable to prior 
service years ('Tostretircment Benefit Obligation"); r>rovided tiiat the 
amount payable for Postrctircment Benefit Obligations during any month 
shall be determined by "the Corporation based on, among other factors, the 
Statement of Financial Accountii^ Standards No. 106 (Employers' 
Accounting For Postrctircment Benefits Other Than Pensions) and any 
applicable accounting standards, policies or practices as adopted from thne 
to time relating to accruals with respect to all or any portion of such 
Postretirement Benefit Obligation. 

(f) Component (F) shall consist of an amount that may be 
mcurred hi connection with the deconunissioning, shutdown, demolition 
and closmg of the Project Generating Stations when production of electric 
power and energy is discontinu«i at such Project Generating Stations, 
which amoimt shall include, without limitation the followhig costs (net of 
any salvage credits): die costs of demolishing the plants' building 
stmctures, disposal of non-salvageable materials, removal and disposal of 
insulating materials, removal and disposal of storage tanks and associated 
piping, disposal or removal of materials and si^plies (including fuel oil 
and coal), grading, covering and reclaiming storage and disposal areas, 
disposing of ash in ash ponds to the extent required by regulatory 
authorities^ undertaking corrective or remedial action required by 
regulatory authorities, and any other costs incurred in putting the facilities 
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in a condition necessary to protect health or the environment or which are 
required by regulatory authorities, or which are incurred to fond 
continuing obhgations to monitor or to correct environmental problems 
"whichresult, or are later discovered toresuit, from the facilities' 
operation, closure or post-closure activities ("Decommissioning and 
Demotition Obligation").^mTdedJhat, the amount payable for 
Decommissioning and Demolition Obligations during any month shall be 
calculated by Corporation based on, among other factors, the tiien-
estimated useful life of the Project Generating Stations and any applicable 
accounting standards, poHcies or practices as adopted from time to time 
relating to accruals with respect to all or any portion of such 
Decommissioning and Demohtion Obhgation, and provided fiirther that 
the Corporation shall recalculate the amount payable under this 
Component (F) for fiitiire months from time to time, but in no event later " 
than five (5) years after the most recent calculation 

5.04. Transmission Charge. The transmission charges to be paid each month by 
the Sponsoring Con^anies shall be equal to the total costs incurred for such month' by 
Corporation for the purchase of transmission service, ancillary services and other transmission-
related services under the Tariff as reserved and scheduled by die Corporation to provide for the 
dehvery of Available Power and Available Energy to the apphcable delivery point under this 
Agreement Each Sponsoring Company's share of the ^gregate transmission charges shall be 
the percentage of such chaiges represented by its Power Participation Ratio. 

5.05. Minimum Loading Event Costs. To the extent that, as a result of the 
failure by one or more Sponsoring Companies to take its respective Power Participation Ratio 
share of the applicable Total Minimum Generating Output during any hour, a Minimum Loading 
Event shall occur, then the sum of all Minimum Loading Event Costs relating to such Minimum 
Loading Event shall be charged to such Sponsoring Company or group of Sponsoring 
Comparues that failed take its respective Power Participation Ratio share of the applicable Total 
Minimum Generating Output during such period, with such Minimum Loadhig Event Costs 
allocated among such Sponsoring Companies on a pro-rata basis in accordance with such 
SponsorxDg Company's MWh share of the MWh reduction in the dehvery of Available Energy 
causing any Minimum Loading Event. The applicable charges for Minimum Loadmg Event 
Costs as determined by the corporation in accordance "with Section 5.05 shall be paid each month 
by the applicable Sponsoring Companies. 

ARTICLES 

Metering of Energy St^pHed 

6.03. Measuring Instruments. The parties hereto shall own andmaintain such 
metering equipment as may be necessary to provide complete information regarding the dehvery 
of power and energy to or for the account of any of the parties hereto; and Ihe ownership and 
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expense'ofsiich metering shall be in accordance with agreements among tiiem. ^ch party will 
at its own expense make such periodic tests and inspections of its meters as may be necessary to 
maintain them at the highest practical commercial standard of accuracy and will advise all other 
interested parties heieto prompfly of the results of any such test showing an inaccuracy of more 
than 1%. Each partywillm^eadditional tests ofits meters attherequest of any otberioterested 
party. Other interested parties shall be given notice of, and may have representatives present at 
any test and inspection made by another party. 

ARTICLE 7 

COSTS OF REPLACEMENTS AND ADDITIONAL FACILITIES; 

PAYMENTS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS; 

DECOMMISSIONING, SHUTCOWN, DEMOLITION AND CLOSING CHARGES 

7.01. Replacement Costs. The Sponsoring Companies shall reimburse 
Corporation for the difference between (a) the to^ cost of replacements chargeable to property 
and plant made by Corporation during any month prior thereto (and not previously reunbursed) 
and (b) the amounts received by Corporation as proceeds of fire or other applicable msurance 
protection, or amounts recovered from third parties responsible for damages requiring 
replacement plus provision for all taxes on income on such difference; provided that to the 
extent that the Corporation arranges for the financing of any replacements, the payments diie 
under this Section 7.01 shall equal the amount of all pincipal, interest, taxes and other costs and 
expenses tdaisd to such financing during any month- Each Sponsoring Company's share of 
such payment shall be the percentage of such costs represented by its Power Participation Ratio. 
The term cost of replacements, as used herein, shall include all components of cost pl"^ removal 
expense, less sai-vage. 

7.02. Additional Facility Costs. The Sponsoring Companies shall reimburse 
Corporation for the total cost of additional facilities and/or spare parts purchased and/or installed 
by Corporation during any month prior thereto (and not previously reimbursed), plus provision 
for all taxes on income on such costs; provided that, to the extent that th.e Corporation arranges 
for the financing of any additional facihties and/or spare parts, the paymeants due under this . 
Section 7.02 shall equal the amount of all principal, interest taxra and other costs and expenses 
related to such financing during any month. Each Sponsoring Company's share of such payment 
shall be the percentage of such costs represented by its Power Participation Ratio. 

7.03. Payments for Employee Benefits. Not later dian the effective date of 
termination of this Agreement each Sponsoring Company will pay to Corporation its Power 
Participation Ratio share of additional amounts, afisr provision for any taxes that may be 
applicable thereto, sufficient to cover any shortfall if the amount of the Postretirement Benefit 
Obligation collected by the Corporation prior to the effective dale of termination of the 
Agreement is insufficient to permit Corporation to tidfill its commitments or obhgations with 
respect to both postemployment benefit obligations under the Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 112 and postretirement benefits other than pensions, as determined by Corporation 
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with the aid of an actuary or actuaries selected by the Corporation based on die terms of the 
Corporation's then-applicable plans. 

7.04. Decommissioning, Shutdown, Demolition and Closing. The Sponsoring 
Companies recognize that a part of the cost of supplying power to it under this Agreement is the 
amount that may be incurred in connection wi"th the decommissiomng, shutdo"wn, demolition and 
closing of the Project Generating Stations when production of electric power and energy is 
discontinued at such Project Generating Stations. Not later than the effective date of termination 
of this Agreement each Sponsoring Company will pay to Corporation its Power Participation 
Ratio share of additioral amounts, after pro"vision for any taxes that may be apphcable thereto, 
sufficient to cover any shortfeU if the amount of the Decommissioning and Demotition 
Obhgation collected by the Corporation prior to the effective date of termination of the 
Agreement is insufficient to permit Corporation to complete the decommissioning, shutdown, 
demolition and closing of the Project Generating Stations, based on the Corporation's 
recalculation of the Decommissioning and Danotition Obligation in accordance with Section 
5.03(f) of this Agreement no earlier than twelve (12) months before the effective date of 
termination of this Agreement 

ARTICLES 

BELLING AND PAYMENT 

8.01, Available Poyver, and Replacement and Additional Facility Costs. As 
soon as practicable after the end of each month Corporation shall render to each Sponsoring 
Company a statement of all Available Power and Available Energy supplied to or for the account 
of such Sponsoring Company during such month, specifying the amount due to the Corporation 
therefor, including any amounts for reimbursement for the cost of replacements and additional 
iacifities and/or spare parts incurred during such month, pursuant to Articles 5 and 7 above. 
Such Sponsorn^ Company shall make payment therefor prompdy upon the receipt of such 
statement but in no event later fcan fifteen (15) days after the date of receipt of such statement. 
In case any factor entering mto the computation of die amount due for Available Power and 
Available Energy cannot be determined at the time, it shall be estimated subject to adjustment 
when the actual determination can be made. 

8.02. Provisional Paytnents for Available Power. The Sponsormg Conipanies 
shall, from time to time, at the request of the Corporation, make pmvisional semi-monthly 
payments for Available Power in amounts approximately equal to the estimated amounts payable 
for Available Power dehvered by Corporation to the Sponsoring Companies during each semi­
monthly period. As soon as practicable after the end of each semi-monthly period with respect 
to which Corporation has requested the Sponsoring Companies to make pro"visional send-
monthly payments for Available Power, Corporation shall render to each Sponsoring Company a 
separate statement indicating the amount payable by such Sponsoring Company for such semi­
monthly period. Such Sponsoring Company shall make payment therefor prompdy upon receipt 
of such statement but m no event later than fifteen (15) days aft:er the date of receipt of such 
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statemenT and the amounts so paid by such Sponsoring Company shall be credited to the account 
of such Sponsoring Company with respect to fiiture payments to be made pursuant to Articles 5 
and 7 above by such Sponsoring Company to Corporation for Available Power. 

5.03. Minimum Loading Event Costs. As soon as practicable after the end of 
each month. Corporation shall render to each Sponsoring Company a statement indicating any 
applicable charges for Minimum Loading Event Costs pursuant to Section 5.05 during such 
month, speciiying the amount due to the Corporation therefor pursuant to Article 5 above. Such 
Sponsoring Company shall make payment therefor prompdy upon the receipt of such statement 
but in no event later than fifteen (15) days after the date of receipt of such statement In case the 
computation of the amount due for Minimum Loading Event Costs cannot be determined at the 
ihiiC, it shall be ^unafed subject to adjustment when Ihe actual determination can be made, and 
all payments shall be subject to subsequent adjustment. 

8.04. Unconditional Obligation to Pay Demand and Other Charges. The 
obligation of each Sponsoring Company to pay.its specified portion of the Demand Charge under 
Section 5.03, the Transmission Charge under'Section 5.04, and all charges vaidex Article 7 for 
any Month shall not be reduced irrespective of: 

(a) whether or not any AvaUable Power or Available Energy 
are supplied by the Corporation during such calendar month and whether 
or hot any Available Power or Available Energy arc accepted by any 
Sponsoring Company during such calendar month; 

(b) the existence of any claint set-off, defense, reduction, 
abatement or other right (other than irrevocable payment performance, 
satisfaction or discharge in full) that such Sponsoring Corripany may have, 
or which may at any tune be available to or be asserted by such 
Sponsoring Company, agamstthe Corporation, any other Sponsoring 
Company, any creditor of the Corporation or any other Person (including, 
without limitation, arising as a result of any breach or alleged breach by 
either the Corporation, any other Sponsoring Company, any creditor of the 
Corporation or any other Person under this Agreement or any other 
agreement (whether or not related to the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreem^t or any other agreement) to which such party is a party); or 

(c) the validity or enforceability against any other Sponsoring 
Company of this Agreement or any right or obligation hereunder (or any 
release or discharge thereof) at any time. 
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ARTICLE9 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.01. Characteristics ofSupply and Points of Delivery. All power and energy 
delivered hereunder shall be 3-phase, 60-cycle, alternating current, at a nominal unregulated 
voltage designated for tiie point of dehvery as described in this Article 9. Available Power and 
Available Energy to be delivered between Corporation and the Sponsoring Compam'es pursuant 
to this Agreement shall be delivered under the terms and conditions of the Tariff at the points, as 
scheduled by the Sponsoring Conipany in axx:ordance widi procedures established by the 
Operating Committee and in accordance with Section 9.02, where the transmission facilities of 
Corporation interconnect with the transmission facilities of any Sponsoring Company (or its 
successor or predecessor); provided that to the extent that a joint and common market is 
established for the sale of power and energy by Sponsoring Companies within one or more of the 
regional transnussion organizations or independent system operators approved by the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission in which the Sponsoring Comparues are members or otherwise 
participate, then Corporation and the Sponsoring Companies shall take such action as reasonably 
necessary to permit die Sponsoring Companies to bid their entitlement to power and energy from 
Corporation into such market(s) hi accordance -with the procedures esfahtished for such 
market(s).. 

9.02. Modification of Delivery Schedules Based on Available Transmission 
Capability. To the extent that transmission capabihty available for the dehvery of Available 
Power and Available Energy at any delivery pomt is less dian the total amount of Available 
Power and Available Energy scheduled for dehvery by the Sponsoring Companies at such 
delivery point in accordance with Section 9.01, then the following procedures shall apply and the 
Corporation and the apphcable Sponsoring Companies shall modify their delivery schedules 
accordingly until the total amount of Available Power and Available Energy scheduled for 
dehvery at such dehvery point is equal to or less than die transmission capability available for 
the delivery of Available Power and Available Energy: (a) the txansmission capabdity available 
for tbe dehvery of Available Power and Available Energy at the following delivery points shall 
be allocated first on a pro rata basis (in whole MW increments) to the follo"wiDg Sponsoring 
Companies up to their Po-wcr Participation Ratio share of the total amount of Avai^le Energy 
available to all Sponsoring Companies (and as applicable, fiirther allocated among Sponsoring 
Companies entitied to allocation under this Section 9.02(a) in acconlance with then Power 
Participation Ratios): (i) to Allegheny, Appalachian, Buckeye, Cblumbus, FirstEnergy, Indiana, 
.Monongahela, Ohio Power and Peninsula (or thek successors) for dehveries at the points of 
interconnection between tbe Corporation and Appalachian, Columbus, Indiana or Ohio Power, or 
"their successors; (ii) to Duke Ohio (or its successor) for dehveries at die points of 
interconnection between tbe Corporation and Duke Ohio or its successor; (hi) to Dayton (or its 
successor) for dehveries at the points of interconnection between the Corporation and Dayton or 
its successor; and (iv) to Kentucky, Louisville and Southern hidiana (or then successors) for 
dehveries at the points of interconnection between die Corporation and Louisville or Kentucky, 
or their successors; and (b) any remaining transmission capabihty available for the delivery of 
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Available Power and Available Energy shall be allocated on a pro rata basis (in whole MW 
increments) to the Sponsoring Companies in accordance with their Power Participation Ratios. 

9.03. Operation and Maintenance of Systems Involved Coiporation and the 
Sponsorir^ Companies shall operate their systems in parallel, directly or indirectiy, except 
during emergencies that temporarily preclude parallel operation. The parties hereto agree to 
coordinate their operations to assure maximum continuity of service from the Project Generating 
Stations, and with relation thereto shall cooperate with one another in the estabhshment of 
schedules for maintenance and operation of equipment and shall cooperate in the coordination of 
relay protection, frequency control, and communication and telemetering systems. The parties 
shall build, maintain and operate their respective systems in such a manner as to nunimize so far 
as practicable rapid fiuctuations in energy flow among the systems. The parties shall cooperate 
with one another in Ihe operation of restive capacity so as to assure mutually satisfactory power 
factor conditions among themselves. 

The parties hereto shall exercise due diligence and foresight in carrying out all 
matters related to the providing and operating of theh respective power resources so as to 
minimize to the extent practicable deviations between actual and scheduled deliveries of power 
and energy among their systrais. The parties hereto shall provide and/or install on their 
respective systems such communication, telemetering, frequency and/or tie-line control fkiilities 
essential to so minimizing such deviations; and shall fiiUy cooperate with one another and with 
third parties (such third parties whose systems are either dire^dy or indirectiy interconnected 
with the systems of the Sponsoring Companies and who of necessity together with the parties 
hereto must unify their efforts cooperatively to achieve effective and efficient interconnected 
systems operation) in developing and executing operating procedures that will enable the parties 
hereto to avoid to the extent practicable deviations from scheduled deliveries. 

In order to foster coordination of the operation and maintenance of (Ilorporation's 
transmission fecihties with those facihties of Sponsoring Companies that are owned or 
functionally controlled by a regional transmission orgardzation or independent system operator, 
Corporation shall use commercially reasonable efforts to enter into a coortSnation agreement 
with any regional transmission organization or independent system operator ^iproved by the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Comrrussion tiiat operates transtnission facilities thai interconnect 
with Corporation's transniission facihties, and to.enter into a mutually agreeable savices 
agreem^ with a regional transmission or^nization or independent system operator to provide 
the Corporation with reliability and security coordination services and other related services. 

9.04, Power Deliveries as Affected by Physical Characteristics of Systems. It is 
recognised that the physical and electrical characteristics of the transmission facilities of the 
interconnected network of which the transmission systems of the Sponsorhrg Companies, 
Corporation, and other systems of third parties not parties hereto are a part may at times 
preclude the direct delivery at the points of interconnection between the transmission systems of 
one or more of the Sponsoring Companies and Corporation, of some portion of the energy 
supplied imder this Agreement and that in each such case, because of said cl^racteristics, some 
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of fhe cnergywijrBedehvered at points which interconnect the system of one or more of tlie " 
Sponsoring Companies with systems of companies not parties to this Agreement. The parties 
hereto shall cooperate in the development of mutually satisfactory arrangements among 
themselves and with such companies not parties hereto whereby die supply of power and energy 
contemplated hereunder can be fiilfilled. 

9.05. Operating Committee. There shall be an "Operating Committee" 
consisting of one member appomted by the Corporation and one member appointed by each of 
the Sponsoring Companies electing so to do; provided that if any two or more Sponsoring 
Companies are Affiliates, then such Affiliates shall together be entitied to appoint only one 
member to the Operating Committee. The "Operating Committee" shall establish (and modify as 
necessary) scheduling, operating, testing and maintenance procedures of the Corporation in 
support of this Agreement including establishmg:.(i) procedures for scheduling delivery of 
Available Energy under Section 4.03, (ii) procedures for power and energy accounting, (iii) 
procedures for the reservation and scheduling of fmn and non-firm transmission service under 
the Tariff for the delivery of Available Power and Available Energy, (iv) the Minimum 
Generatu^ Unit Output and (v) the form of notifications relating to power and energy and the 
price thereof. In addition, the Operating Committee shall consider and make recommendations 
to Corporation's Board of Directors with respect to such other problems as may arise affectmg 
the transactions under this Agreement. The decisions of die Operatmg Committee, including the 
adoption or modification of any procedure by the Operating Committee pursuant to this Section 
9.04, must receive the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the members of the Operating 
Committee, regardless of the number of members of the Operating Committee present at any 
meeting-

9.06. Acknowledgment of Certain Rights. For die avoidance of doubt all of the 
parties to this Agreement ackno-t^edge and agree that (i) as of the effective date of the Current 
Agreement, certain rights and obligations of die Sponsoring Companies or their predecessors 
under the Original Agreement were changed, motfified or otherwise removed, (ii) to the extent 
that die rights of any Sponsorhig Company or their predecessors were diereby changed, modified 
or otherwise removed as of the effective date of the Current Agreement such Sponsoring' 
Company may be entitied to ri^ts under applicable law, regulation, rules or orders under the 
Federal Power Act or otherwise adopted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
("FERC"), (iii) as a result of the elimination as of the effective date of the Current Agreement of 
the firm transmission sendee previously provided durhig the term of the Origmal Agreement to 
Sponsoring Companies or their predecessors whose transmission systems were only indirectiy 
connected to the Corporation's facihties tbrough intervening transmission systems by certain 
Sponsoring Companies or their predecessors whose transmission systems were directiy 
connected to the Corporation's facihties, such Sponsoxic^ Companies or their predecessors 
whose transmission systems were only indirectly connected to the Corporation's facilities 
through mtervening transmission systems shall have been entitied to such "roll over" fiini 
transmission service for dehvery of their entitlement to tiieir Power Participation Ratio share of 
Surplus Power and Surplus Energy under this Agreement to the border of such Sponsoring 
Company system and mtervenmg Sponsoring Company system, as would be accorded a long-
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term firm point-to-point transmission service reservation under the then otherwise applicable 
FERC Open Access Transmission Tariff ("OATT'), (iv) the obhgation of any Sponsoring 
Company to rnaintain or expand transmission capacity to accommodate another Sponsoring 
Company's "roll over'* rights to transmission service for delivery of their cntidement to their 
Power Participation Ratio share of Surplus Power and Surplus Energy under this Agreement 
shall be consistent with the obligations it would have for long-term firm point-to-point 
transmission service provided pursuant to the then otherwise applicable OATT, and (v) the 
parties shall cooperate with any Sponsoring Company that seeks to obtain and/or exercise any 
such rights available under applicable law, regulation, rules or orders under the Federal Power 
Act or otherwise adopted by the FERC. 

9.07. Term ofAgreejnent. This Agreement shall become effective upon the 
Effective Date and shall tennmate upon tiie earlier of: (1) June 30,2040 or (2) the sale or other 
disposition of all of the facihties of the Project Generating Stations or Ihe permanent cessation of 
operation of such facilities; provided tiiat the provisions of Articles 5, 7 aiid 8̂  this Section 9.07 
andSections 9.08,9.09,9.10,9.11,9.12,9.14,9.15,9.16,9.17 and 9.18 shaU survive die 
terrm'nation of this Agreement and no termination of this Agreement for whatever reason, shall 
release any Sponsoring Company of any obligations or liabiUtics incurred prior to such 
termination 

9.08. Access to Records. Corporation shall, at all reasonable times, upon the 
request of any Sponsoring Company, grant to its representatives reasonable access to die books, 
records and accounts of the Corporation, and fiimish such Sponsoring Company such 
information as it may reasonably request to enable it to determine the accuracy and 
reasonableness of payments made for energy supplied under this Agreement 

9.09. Modification of Agreement. Absent tbe agreement ofail parties to this 
Agreement die standard for changes to provisions of this Agreement related to rates proposed by 
a party, a non-party or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (or a successor agency) 
acting sua sponte shall be the "public interest" standard of review set forth in United Gas 
Pipeline Co. v. Mobile Gas Serv. Corp., 350 U.S. 332 (1956) and Federal Power Comm 'n v. 
Sierra Pacific Power Co., 350 U.S. 348 (1956). 

9.10. Arbitration. Any controversy, dispute or claim arising out of this 
Agreement or the refiisal by any party hereto to perform the whole or any part thereof; shall be 
determined by arbitration, iu the City of Columbus, Franklin County, Ohio, in accordance widi 
the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association or any successor 
orgaruzation, except as otherwise set forth m this Section 9.10. 

The party demanding arbitration shall serve notice in "writing upon all other 
parties hereto, setting forth in detail the controversy, dispute or claim with respect to which 
arhilration is demanded, and the parties shall thereupon endeavor to agree upon an arbitration 
hoard, which shall consist of tiirec mcanbers ("Aibitcation Board"). If all the parties hereto fail 
so to agree "within a period of thirty (30) days from the original notice, the party demanding 
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arbitration may, by written notice to all other parties hereto, direct that any members of the 
Arbitration Board that have not been agreed to by the parties shall be selected by the American 
Arbitration Association, or any successor organization. No person shall be eligible for 
appointment to the Arbitration Board who is an officer, employee, shareholder of or otherwise 
interested iu any of the parties hereto or in the matter sought to be arbitrated. 

The Arbitration Boaid shall afford adequate opportunity to all partis hereto to 
present information with respect to the controversy, dispute or claim submitted to arbitration and 
may request fiirther information from any party hereto; provided, however, that the parties hereto 
may, by mutual agreement specify the mles which are to govern any proceeding before the 
Arbitration Board and limit the matters to be considered by the Arbitration Board, in which event 
the Arbitration Board shall be governed by the terms and conditions of such agreement. 

The determination or award of the Arbitration Board shall be made upon a 
determination of a majority of the members diereof. The findings and award of the Arbitration 
Beard shall be firial and conclusive with respect to the controversy, dispute or claim submitted 
for arbitration and shall be binding upon the parties hereto, except as otherwise provided by law. 
The award of the Arbitration Board shall specify the manner and extent of the division of the 
costs of die arbitration proceedkg among the parties hereto. 

9.11. Liability. The rights and obligations of all the parties hereto shall be 
several and not joint or joint and several. 

9.12. Force Majeure. No party hereto shall be held responsible or liable for any 
loss or damage on account of non-delivery of energy hereunder at any time caused by an event of 
Force Majeure. "Force Majeure" shall mean the occurrence or non-occurrence of any act or 
event that could not reasonably have been expected and avoided by exercise of due diligence and 
foresight and such act or event is beyond the reasonable control of such party, including to the 
extent caused by act of God, fire, flood, explosion, strike, civil or military authority, insurrection 
or riot ^ t of the elements, or fadure of equipment. For the avoidance of doubt "Force 
Majeure" shall in no event be based on any Sponsoring Company's financial or economic 
conditions, including witho"Ut limitation CO the loss of tbe Sponsoric% Company's markets; or (ii) 
the Sponsoring Company's inabihty economically to use or resell the Available Power or 
Available Energy purchased hereimder. 

9.13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, die laws of the State of Ohio. 

9.14- Regulatory Approvals. This Agreement is maite subject to the jurisdiction 
of any governmental authority or authorities having jurisdiction in the premises and the 
performance thereof shall be subject to the following: 

(a) The receipt of all regulatory approvals, in form and substance 
satisfactory to Coix>oration, necessary to permit Corporation to perform all the 
duties and obtigations to be performed by Corporation hareunder 
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~(b) The receipt ofall regulatory approvals, in form and substance 
satisfactory to toe Sponsoring Companies, necessary to pennit the Sponsoring 
Companies to carry out all transactions contemplated herein 

, 9-15. Notices. All notices, requests or other communications under fliis 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficient in all respects; (i) if delivered in person or 
by courier, upon receipt by the mtended recipient or an employee that routinely accepts packages 
or letters from couriers or other persons for delivery to personnel at the address identified above 
{as confirmed by, if delivered by courier, the records of such courier), (h) if sent by facshnile 
transmission, when the sender receives confirmation from the sending fecsintile machine that 
such facshnile transmission was transmitted to die facsimile number of the addressee, or (iii) if 
mailed, upon the date of delivery as shown by the return receipt dierefor. 

9.16. Waiver. Performance by any party to tins Agreement of any responsibility 
or obligation to'be performed by such party or compliance by such party with any condition 
contained m this Agreement may by a written instrument signed by all other parties to this 
Agreement be waived in any one or more instances, but the failure of any party to insist in any 
one or more instances upon strict performance of any of the provisions of this Agreement or to 
take advantage of any of its rights hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of any such 
provisions or the relinquishment of any such rights, but the same shall continue and remain hi 
fidi force and effect. 

9.17. Titles of Articles and Sections. The tides of the Articles and Sections in 
this Agreement have been inserted as a matter of convenience of reference and are not a part of 
this Agreement 

9.18. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement may be executed in any number 
of counterparts, all of which shall constitute but one and the same document 

9.181 This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 
the parties hereto and then: respective successors and assigns, but a party to this 
Agreement may not assign this Agreement or any of its rights, tide or interests in or 

•• obligations (inciuding widiout limitation the assumption of debt obhgations) under this 
Agreement except to a successor to all or substantially all the properties and assets of 
such party or as provided in Section 9.182 or 9.183, without the -written consent of all the 
other parties hereto. 

9.182 Notwithstandkig the provisions of Section 9.181, any Sponsoring 
Company shall be permitted to, i ^ n thirty (30) days notice to the Corporation and each 
other Sponsoring Company, "without any fiirther action by the Corporation or the other 
Sponsoring Companies, assign all or part of its rights, title arid interests in, and 
obligations under this Agreement to a Permitted Assignee, pro"vided that die assignee and 
assignor of the ri^ts, tide and interests in, and obhgations under, tins Agreement have 
executed an assignment agreement m form and substance acceptable to the Corporation 
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in its reasonable discretion (including, without limitation; the agreement by the 
SponsoringOmj^ny assigning such rights, title and interests in, and obligations under, 
this Agreement to reimburse the Corporation and the other Sponsoring Companies for 
any fees or expenses required under any security issued, or agreement entered into, by the 
Corporation as a result of such assignment mcluding without limitation any consent fee 
or additional financing costs to the Corporation under the Corporation's then-existing 
securities or agreements resultnig from such assignment). 

9.183 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 9.181, any Sponsoring 
Company shall be permitted to, subject to compfiance with all of the requirements of this 
Section 9.183, assign all or part of its rights, title and interests in, and obhgations under 
this Agreement to a Third Party without any fiiither action by the Corporation or the 
other Sponsoring Companies. 

(a) A Sponsoring Company (the "Transferring Sponsor") that 
desires to assign all or part of its rights, title and interests in, and 
obhgations imder this Agreement to a Third Party shall deliver an Offer 
Notice to the Corporation and each other Sponsoring Company. The Offer 
Notice shall h& deemed to be an irrevocable offer of the subj ect ri ghts, title 
and interests in, and obhgations under this Agreement to each of the other 
Sponsoring Companies that is not an Affiliate of the Transferring Sponsor, 
which offer must be held open for no less than ttnity (30) days fixjm the 
date of the Offer Notice (the "Election Period"). 

(b) The Sponsoring Compani^ (other than the Transferring 
Sponsor and its Affiliates) shaU first have the right, but not the obligation, 
to purchase all of the rights, tide and interests in, and obhgations under 
this Agreemait described in the Offer Notice at the price and on the terms 
specified therein by delivering written notice of such election to the 
Transferring Sponsor and the Corporation within the Election Paiod; 
provided that irrespective of the terms and conditions of the Offer Notice, 
a Sponsoring Company may condition its election to purchase the interest 
described in the Offer Notice on the receipt of approval or consent from 
such Sponsoring Company's Board of Directors; provided further that 
written notice of such conditional election must be delivered to the 
Transferring Sponsor and the Corporation within the Election Period and 
such conditional election shall be deemed withdrawn (as if it had never 
been pro"wded) unless the Sponsoring Company that dehvered such 
conditional election subsequentiy dehvers written notice to the 
Transferring Sponsor and the Corporation on or before the tenth (10^ day 
after the expiration of the Election Period that all necessary approval or 
consent of such Sponsoring Company's Board pf Directors have been 
obtained. To the extent that more than one Sponsoring Company 
exercises its right to purchase all of the rights, title and interests in, and 
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"oBHgations under this Agreement described in the Offer Notice in 
accordance with the previous sentence, such rights, tide and interests in, 
and obligations xmder this Agreement shall be allotted (successively if 
necessary) among the Sponsoring Companies exercising such right in 
proportion to their respective Power Participation Ratios. 

(c) Each Sponsoring Company exercising its right to purchase 
any rights, title and interests in, and obligations under this Agreement 
pursuant to this Section 9.183 may choose to have an Affiliate purchase 
such rights, tide and interests in, and obligations under this Agreement; 
provided that notwiflistanding anydung in this Section 9.183 to the 
contrary, any assignment to a Sponsoring Company or its Affdiate 
hereunder must comply with the requirements of Section 9.182. 

(d) . Ifone or more Sponsoring Companies have elected to 
purchase all of the rights, tide and interests in, and obligations under this 
Agreement of the Transferring Sponsor pursuant to the Offer Notice^ the 
assignment of such rights, tide and interests in, and obligations under this 
Agreement shaU be consummated as soon as practical after the delivery of 
the election notices, but in any event no later than fiflsen (15) days after 
the filing and receipt as ^plicable, ofall necessary governmental filings, 
consents or other approvals and the esqpiration ofall applicable waiting 
periods. At the closing of the purchase of such rights, tide and interests in, 
and obligations under this Agreement fiom die Transferring Sponsor, the 
Transferring Sponsor shall provide representations and warranties 
customary for transactions of this type, including those as to its tide to 
such securities and that there are no fiens or other encumbrances on such 
securities (other than pursuant to this Agreement) and shall sign such 
documents as may reasonably be requested by the Corporation and the 
other Sponsoring Companies. The Sponsoring Comparues or their 
Affiliates shall only be required to pay cash for ih& rights, tide and 
interests in, and obligations under this Agreement being assigned by the 
Transferring Sponsor. 

(e) To the extent that die Sponsoring Companies have not 
elected to purchase all of the rights, tide and interests in, and obhgations 
under this Agreement described in the Offer Notice, the Transferring 
Sponsor may, within one-hundred and eighty (180) days after the later of 
the expiration of the Election Period or the deemed withdrawal of a 
conditional election by a Sponsoring Company under Section 9.183(b) 
hereof Cif applicable), enter into a definitive agreement to, assign such 
ri^ts, tide and interests in, and obligations under this Agreement to a 
Third Party at a price no less than 92.5% of the purchase price specified in 
the Offer Notice and on other material terms and conditions no more 
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favorable to die such Third Party than those specified in the Offer Notice; 
provided that such purchases shall be conditioned upon: (i) such Third 
Party having long-term unsecured non-credit enhanced indebtedness, as of 
the date of such assignment with a Standard & Poor's credit rating of at 
least BBB- and a Moody's Investors Service, Inc. credit rating of at least 
BaaS (provided that, if such Third Party's long-term unsecured non-credit 
enhanced indebtedness is not currently rated by one of Standard & Poor's 
or Moody, such Thud Party's long-term unsecured non-credit enhanced 
indebtedness, as of the date of such assignment must have either a 
Standard & Poor's credit rating of at least BBB- or a Moody's Investors 
Service, Inc. credit rating of at least Baa3); (ii) the filing or receipt as 
apphcable, of any necessary governmental fitings, consents or other 
approvals; (iii) the determination by counsel for the Coiporation that the 
assignment of the rights, tide or interests in, or obligations under, this 
Agreement to such Third Party would not cause a termination, default 
loss or payment obligation under any security issued, or agreement entered 
mto, by the Corporation prior to such transfer, and (iv) such Thnd Party 
executing a coimterpart of this Agreement and both such Third Party and 
the Sponsoring Company which is assigning its rights, title and interests 
in, and obligations under, this Agreement executing such other documents 
as may be reasonably requested by the Corporation (including, vrithout 
limitation, an assigrsncnt agreement in form and substance acceptable to 
the Corporation in its reasonable discretion and containing the agreement 
by such Sponsoring Company to reimburse the Corporation and the other 
Sponsoring Companies for any fees or expenses required under any 
security issued, or agreement Altered into, by the Corporation as a result 
of such assignment including without limitation any consent fee or 
additional financing costs to the Corporation under the Corporation's then-
existing securities or agreements resulting fitim such assignment). In the 
event that the Sponsoring Company and a Third Party have not entered 
into a definitive agreement to assign the mterests specified in die Offer 
Notice to such Third Party within the later of one-hundred and eighty 
(180) days after the expiration of the Election Period or the deemed 
withdrawal of a conditional election by a Sponsoring Company under 
Section 9,183(b) hereof (if applicable) for any reason or if either the price 
to be paid by such Third Party would be less than 92.5% of the purchase 
price specified in the Offer Notice or the ofiier material terms of such 
assignment would be more favorable to such Third Party than "the t&rms 
specified in the Offer Notice, then the restrictions provided for herein shall 
again be effective, and no assignment of any rights, tide and interests in, 
and obligations under this Agreement may be made thereafter withoirt 
again offering the same to Sponsoring Companies in accordance "with this 
Section 9.183. 
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ARTICLE 10 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

10.01, Representations and Warranties. Each Sponsoring Company hereby 
represents and warrants for itself, on and as of the date of this Agreement as follows: 

(a) it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing 
under the laws of its state of organization, with full corporate power, 
authority and legal right to execute.and deliver this Agreement and to 
perform its obligations hereunder; 

(b) it has duly authorized, executed and delivered this 
Agreement and upon the execution and delivery by all of the parties 
hereto, this Agreement will be in fidl force and effect and will constitute a 
legal, valid and binthng obligation of such Sponsoring Company, 
enforceable in accordance "with the terms hereof, except as enforceability 
may be limited by apphcable bankruptoy, insolvency, fi^udulent 
conveyance, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors' rights generally; 

(c) Except as set forth in Schedule lO.QlTc) hereto, no consents 
or apprO"vals of, or filings or registrations with, any governmental 
authority or pubhc regulatory authority or agency, federal state or local, or 
any other entity or person are required in connection with the execution, 
dehvery and performance by it of this Agreement except for those which 
have been didy obtained or made and are in fiill force and effect, have not 
been revoked, and are not the subject of a pending appeal; and 

(d) the execution, dehvery and performance by it of this 
Agreanent will not conflict with or result in any breach of any of the 
terms, conditions or provisions of̂  or constitote a default under its charter 
or by-laws or any indenture or other material agreement or instrument to 
•which it is a party or by which it may be bound or result in the imposition 
of any liens, claims or encumbrances on any of its property. 

ARTICLE 11 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

11.01. Payment Default, ffany Sponsoring Company fails to make Ml payment 
to Corporation under this Agreement when due and such :feilurc is not remedied within ten (10) 
days aifer receipt of notice of such fadure from the Corporation, then such failure shall constitute 
a "Payment Defeulf on the part of such Sponsoring Company. Upon a Payment Default the 
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' '- Corporation may suspend'^ervice to tBH"Sponsormg Company that has caused such Payment 
Defeult for all or part of die period of contmuing default (and such Sponsoring Company shall be 
deemed to have notified the Corporation and the otiier Sponsoring Companies tiiat any Avadable 
Energy shall be available for scheduling by such other Sponsorhig Companies m accordance 
with Section 4.032). The Corporation's right to suspend service shall not be exclusive, but shall 
be in addition to all remedies available to the Corporation at law or in equity. No suspension of 
service or teinnination of tins Agreement shall relieve any Sponsormg Company of its obligations 
under this Agreement which are absolute and unconditional. 

11 -02. Performance Default. If the Corporation or any Sponsoring Company 
fails to comply in any material respect with any of the material terms, conditions and covenants 
of diis Agreement (and such fadure does not constitute a Payment Default under Section 11.01), 
the Corporation (in the case of a default by any Sponsoring Company) and any Sponsoring 
Company (in die case of a default by the Corporation) shall give die defaulting party written 
notice of die default ("performance Default"). To the extent that aperformance Default is not 
cured -within tinrty (30) days after receipt of notice diereof (or within such longer period of time, 
not to exceed sixty (60) additional days, as necessary for the defeulting party widi die exercise of 
r^sonable diligence to cure such default), dien the Corporation (in die case of a default by any 
Sponsormg Company) and any Sponsoriug Company (in the case of a default by the 
Corporation) shall have all of the rights and remedies provided at law and in equity, other than 
termination of this Agreement or any release of the obligation of the Sponsoring Companies to 
make payments pmrsnant to this Agreement "fthich obligation shall remain absolute and 
unconditional. 

11.03. Waiver. No waiver by die Corporation or any Sponsoring Company of 
any one or more defaults in the performance of any provision of this Agreement shall be 
construed as a waiver of any odier default or defaults, whedier of a Hke kind or different nature. 

11.04. Limitation of liability and Damages. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY LAW, HETTHERTHE CORPORATION, NOR AKY SPONSORING 
COMPANY SHALL BE LIABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR ANY 
CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNTIIVE, EXEMPLARY OR INDIRECT DAMAGES 
LOST REVENUES, LOST PROFffS OR OTHER BUSINESS INTERRUPTION DAMAGES 
BY STATUTE, IN TORT OR CONTRACT, OR OTHERWISE. 

[Signature pages follow] 
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IN WITNESS •WHEREOF, ihe parties h a ^ have caused this Amended and Restated liilcr-
Cougjany Pcwer Agreement to be duly executed and deUvcred by thdr proper and duly 
authorized officers as of Septembei 10,2010. 

OHIO VALLEY KLECIKEC 
COSPORATtON 

AP:PAI:ACHIAJ^ PO^VER COMPANY 

ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 
COMPANY, LX.C. 

By 
Its 

BUCKEYE FO"WER GENERATIHG, 
LLC 

By 
Its 

By 
Its" 

co tVMsm soirraERN K)WER 
COMPANY 

THE DAYTON POWER AND 
UGHT COMPANY 

B y . 
Its 

By 
Its 

DIfKE 1ENE8GY OHIO, INC. FERSTENERGY GENERAnON 
CORP. 

B y . 
Us _ By 

Its 

INDIANA MICfflGAN POWER 
COlrfPANY 

KENTUCKY trntrrTES 
COMPANY 

B y . 
Its . 

By 
Its 

Amended aiulRistded lotcrCoiî taDy Power Agretmcnt 
S-I 

tawsyVHtfoist̂ uAe nsxat.* 
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IK WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused diis Amended and Restated Inter­
company PcfWT Agreement to be didy executed and deh'-rered by tfieir propet and duly 
an&orized officers as of Septembo: 10,2010-

OHTO YAJbLEY ELECTRIC 
CORPORATION 

ALLEGHENY ENJStGTV SUPPLY 
COMPANY, LJL.C 

By By 
Its 

APFALACeiAN FOWEE COMPANY BUCKEYE POWER GENERATING, 
LLC 

By 
Its 

COLUMBCS SOUTHERN POWER 
COMPANY 

THE DAYTON POWER AND 
UGHT COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC. FISStENERGY GENERATION 
CORF. 

By 
fis By 

Its 

INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER 
COMPANY 

KENTUCKY UTILmES 
COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

AiDcodcd Hod Restated IntEn^Coii^aDy Power Agreement 
S-1 

eWC&JWS-CCVZ -̂Aom imitW.'t 
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IN WriNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amended and Restated Intcr-
Compaay Pô ver Agreement to be duty ejcccutcd and delivered by thear proper and duly 
authoiiaed offices as of September 10,2010. 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC 
CORPORATION 

ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 
COMPANY, LJLC 

By 
Its 

By 
lis 

APPALACHIAN POWER COMPANY HUCKEYE POWER GENERAIING, 
IXC 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

COLUMBUS SOUTHERN POWER 
COMPANY 

By 
Its 

THE DAYTON POWER AND 
UGHT COMPANY 

By 
Its 

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC FIRSTENERGY GENEKAIION 
CORP. 

By 
Its 

INDLU^ MtCHiGAN POWER 
COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

KENTUCKY UHLmES 
COMPANY 

By 
Its 

AmenSrfBniReflSttdlQttrCon^wny Power AgremntoJ 
S-I 

CJIBaWKHS^BBJjaiwianSl K.4 
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IN WITNESS "WHEREOF, tfee parties hereto havj caused this Amended and Restated Inter-
Coagiany Power Agreemeaat to be diJy execiitcd and d e l m i ^ 
aofiiorized ofBcas^ of September 10,2010. 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC 
CORPORATION 

ALLEGHENY SSERGY SUPPLY 
COMPANY, LX,C 

By 
Its 

By 
It3 

APPALACHUN KJWER OMdPANY BUCKEYE POWER GENERATING, 
LLC 

By 
lis 

By 
Its 

COLGMBIS SOUTHERN POWER 
COMPANY 

THE DAYTON POWER AND 
UGBTT COMPANY 

By 
hs 

By 
Its 

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC 

QQ. By 

FERSTgaSERGY GENERATION 
CORP-

By 
ha 

DSDIANAMCHIGAN POWER 
COMPANY 

KENTDCKY U n L m E S 
COMPANY 

By 
Us 

By 
Its 

AsDcndcd Bod Rc3t«fe4 lubx^-Ccnî iBî  Power A^tdncnt 
S-I 

cet«t«.(«iMcti:5.AEfiic izmnieii 
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M T O H ^ WHEREOF̂  Ac pffltieshoito hare c a ^ ^ 
Cfsr^sn^ Powar A^̂ eementtO be duty executed and ddiVEred by di«r proper and duly 
aiaiHsnzed ofRctts 4s of September 10,203 Q. 

OHiOVALLEYjEiECXRIC 
CORPtJRATtON 

AIXEGHENV mm.GY SUPPLY 
COMPANY, LL.C. 

By By 
lis 

•At^AIACHIAK POWJeKJCOMPANY BUCKEYE POWERGSJffiRATING, 
IXC 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

COLUM0US SOUTHERN POWER 
COMPANY 

lBEDAYtONP6"9?ERANB 
UGHT COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By-. 
Its 

&tlKEEN)QlGFYOmo, INC FKtSTENERGY GENERATION 

ifs B y _ 
&3 

EPCblANAfiHCHHJAK POWER 
COMPANY 

liiENniacy UTtLrraes 
COMPANY 

By. 
Its-

ajiasMaiMQiBMedr&uattn^^ 
S-1 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tbe parties hen?to hsvc caused iMs Ajnended and Restated Inter-
CompfiBiy Power Agreanent to be duly CKecoted and delivered by thdr proper and duly 
authorized ofBcasasof S^rtanber 10,2010-

OHIO VALLEY EUSCimC 
CORPORATION 

By 
fis 

ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 
.COMPANY, U L a 

APPALACffiAN POWERCOMPANY BUCKEYE POWER GENERATING, 
LLC 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

C»LUMBUS SOUTHERN POWER 
COMPANY 

THE DAYTON POWER AND 
LIGHT COMPANY 

By 
lis 

By 
Its 

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC FHtSXENERGY GENERATION 
CORP. 

By 
fis By 

Its 

INDIANA MIOaiGAN POWER 
COMPANY 

KHSTUCKY UnUTIES 
COMPANY 

By 
]fes 

By 
Its 

AACDded tod Rcstited bto'-Con^aay Power A^nxxDod 
S-1 

issB»a>js4am'*i:B>'Li2SBsiiu 
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IENT WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amended and Restated Inter­
company Power Agreemeut to be duly executed and delivered by thdr piopei and duly 
authorized officers as of September 10, 2010. 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC 
CORPORATION 

ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 
COMPANY, LX-C. 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

APPALACHIAN POWER COMPANY 

By 
Its 

BUCKEYE POWER GENERATING, 
LLC 

Its President & CEO " 

COLUMBUS SOUTHERN POWER 
COMPANY 

THE DAYTON POWER AND 
UGHT COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC. FIRSTENERGY GENERATION 
CORP. 

By 
Its By 

I£s 

INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER 
COMPANY 

KENTUCKY UnUTIES 
COMPANY 

By 
Ss 

By 
Its 

Anundcd ai>d Restate! taia-Coiapary Power Agreement 
S-I 

tiyouM0t5-taaaju£vt.i3a26n&i 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the paities hereto haye caused tbis Amended and Restated inter­
company Power Agreement to be duly exectrted and delrv'cred by their proper and du [y 
authorized officers as of Septemba-10,2010. 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC 
CORPORATION 

ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 
COMPANY, Li-C. 

By 
lis 

By 
Its 

APPALACBOAN POWER COMPANY BUCKEYE POWER GENERATING, 
LLC 

By 
lis 

By 
Its 

COLUMBUS SOUTBDERN POWER 
COMMNY 

By 
Its 

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC 

THE DAYTON POWER AND 
UGHT COMPANY 

By 
Its y-e^^tcepi^/0' ̂&ir 

FIRSTENERGY GENERATION 
CORP. 

By 
Its By 

Its 

INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER 
COMPANY 

KK^rrucKY t r n L m E S 
COMPANY 

By 
Us 

By 
Its 

Amcodoi sndRcslatel IiBEf-Ctaripfiny PDwef Agiwansnt 

S-1 
G9(iZ£0491»2IIZJ-AcdM Iza»II&4 
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IN WITNESS •WHEEEOP, the paities hereto have esused fius Amended and Restated Inter-
CSampaiiy Power Agreement to be duly executed and dcUvtred by theit proptr and duly 
aufijorizcdolScasasof Sepieraber 10,2010. 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC 
CORPORATION 

AILEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 
COMPANY, I X . a 

By 
Its 

By 
lis 

AKPALACBIAN POWER COMPANY. BUCKEYE POWER€fENERATING, 
LLC 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

COLXIMBUS SOUTHERN POWBSEl 
COMPANY 

THE DAYTON POWER AND 
LIGHT COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 

DUKE ]&NERGy OHIO, INC BtRSTEM^GY GENERATION 
CORP. 

By 
Its BY Mfyin t ' ^ l / ^ ^ 

Its ~ ~ y ~ ^ ^ y ^ _ 

INDIANA MICEHGANPOWER 
COMPANY 

KENrUCKYUlTLmES 
COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

S-I 
tSOitMnMOSOtAtdftntSClKA 
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IN WTTNESS WHEREOF, tbe parties hereto have caused this Amended and Restated Inler-
Compm^ Povrer Agreement to be duly executed and dcli'votd by their proper and duly 
arrihorizcd offico^ as of September 10,2010. 

OHIO VALLEY ELECHUC 
CORPORATION 

ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 
COMPANY, L.L.C. 

By By 
Its 

APPALACHIAN POWER COMPANY BUCKEYE POWER GENERATING, 
IXC 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

COLUMBUS SOirmERN POWER 
COMPANY 

TSE DAYTON POWER AND 
U G H I COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC. PffiSTENERGY GENERAHON 
CORP. 

By 
Its By 

Its 

INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER 
COMPANY 

KENTUCKY UTILTTIES 
COMPANY 

By 
Its ^ ^ S i ^ ^ 

Arocndai snd Rr\hitcd Intet-Coiiî Mny Pcwer Agccemcal 
S-t 

630»«-t»l^^I2It&Aa)Te 12Q3ei )G.4 
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LODISVTLUE GAS AND ELECTRIC 
COMPANY 

MONONGAHELA POWER 
COMPANY 

Byjy^/^/y;/" By 
Its y P T<<\^.^ \ (^/jyi e^taftVh Its 

OHJO POWER COMPANY SOUTHERNINDIANA GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY 

B y , 
Its _ By 

Its 

atas«M)015'«2im-Aetne 130361164 

Amended Bod Rcsialej Iirter-Campany Power AgrEement 
S-Z 
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LOUISVaXE GAS AND ELECTRIC 
COMPATfY 

MONONGAHELA POWER 
COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

OHIO POWER COMPANY 

Its 

SOUTHERN INDIANA GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY 

By 
Its 

0Sa60-t&tŜ OaZ3-fimic IZIcm 164 

AtDcudcd sad Rcsteied [nta-ConqBiy Poivcr A^Cancni 
S-Z 
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LOmSVBLLE GAS AND ELECTRIC 
COMPANY 

By 
Its 

MON(MGAHELA POWER 
COMPANY 

Its (^Z^Zx£^^ / ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ . 
• F r = f C ^ 

OHIO POWER COMPANY SOUTBERNINDLANA GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY 

By 
Its By 

Bs 

iBin»4eiMatD3̂ b£«« muiifi^ 

AiocDiW s«l BawtaJ irto-Company Power AgreonoH 
S-2 
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LOI3ISVHXE GAS AND ELECTRIC 
COMPANY 

MONONGAHELA POWER 
COMPANY 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

OHIO POWER COMPANY SOUTHERN IfflBUNA GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY 

By 
Its 

Its'^lksffifAl-^ 

vsi^iAXisiysinB-Mp^ uo^T i£ J 

Aroowfcd and Rcsisfcd Eoia-CiHDpany ?owcr Agjraocnt 
S-2 
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PENINSULA GENERATION COOPERATIVE 

By 
Its P r e s i d e n t 

ROVED AS TO FORI/1: 

msm a VALICE 
ATTORNEY FOR PENINSOLA 
GENERATION COOPERATIVE 

«96»MDi»anziAi«w.iaiVn&.4 
S-3 • 



2 0 1 1 0 4 2 7 - 5 1 5 3 FERC^PDF ( U n o f f i c i a l ) 4 / 2 7 / 2 0 1 1 2 : 1 7 : 5 9 PM 

SCHEDULE i0.01(c) 

Allegheny Energy Supply Company, LX.C. 

and 

Monongahela Power Company 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

002600^001-02023-AEiivc 12026151J 
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SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Appalachian Power Conapany 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

Approval of the Virginia State C^qjoration Comroission. 

Filing with the Public Service Commission of West Virginia 

00260CM«0] ̂ 202J-Atth«.]2tEl6 IS r 3 
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SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC 

None 

<101«10-00Dl.CQO23-Acrivc.l2&2fcl513 
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SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Colambus Southern Power Company 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

M26Ml^Dl.D2023-Ailive.l202615U 
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SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

The Dayton Power and Light Company 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

W)26«W»01-D2023-Atlive, 120^1513 
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SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

0026D0JK»l-lJK123T^divc.l2026151J 
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SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

FirstEnergy Generation Corp. 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

M26(XW»Ol-O2023-AE:tive.I2D261 S I J 
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SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Indiana Michigan Power Company 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

Filing with the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission 

«126Oft-ODOl-O2023-Acrivc 12D261SU 



. 20110437-5153 FERC PDF ( U n o f f i c i a l ) 4 / 2 7 / 2 0 1 1 2 : 1 7 : 5 9 PM 

SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Kentucky Utilities Company 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Cormmssion 

Consent or approval of, or filings or registrations with, the Kentucky Public Service Commission 
may be required 

002600-«)01-02D23-Acriye. 12036151,3 
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TV 
SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Louisville Gas and Electric Compauy 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

Consent or approval of, or filings or registrations with, the Kentucky Public Service Commission 
may be reqmred 

00260CK»01412023-AclJve.l 20261SIJ 
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SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Ohio Power Company 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

OO26OtWK)O]-O2023-AaJvc.l2026l51J 
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None 

SCHEDULE 10.01(c) 

Peninsula Generation Cooperative 

OQ2600-0£» i.O2II2$.Aaivcl2026151J 



2 0 1 1 0 4 2 7 - 5 1 5 3 FERC PDF ( U n o f f i c i a l ) 4 / 7 7 , / ? 0 l X 2 :1 7 • s 9 PM_ 

SCHEDULE iQ.Ol(c) 

Southern Indiana Gas and Electric Company 

Filing with, or consent or approval of, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

OtOfiOWJOOl-02023-Active.l2Q261513 
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Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 
G E N e R A L O F F I C E S , 3932 U.S. Route 2 3 , Pikefon, Ohio 45661 

7 

Ohio Valley Electric Coxpora&oa (OVEC) and its whoUy 
o w n e d subsidiary, ladiana-EaitDcky Elec&ic 

CjDrporation QKEC), collectively, the Companjts, -were 
Drgaiii2Ed on Ocfobtr 1, 1952. The Companies w ^ e 

fermcd b y iuvesfor-owocd utilities funushing electric 
service in the Ohio River Valley area and their parent 
holding companies for the purpose of providing flie large 

electric power requirements projected for the uranium 
enrichment fecilities fheu under construction by the 

Atomic Energy Commission (AEC) near Portsmouflt, 
Ohio. 

OVEC, AEC and OVEC's ownos or tbeir utility-
company affiliates (called Spoiisoiing Corapanies) 
entered into power agreements to ensure the availability 
of d i e AEC ' s sabstantial power requirements. OIL 
October 15, 1952, OVEC and AEC executed a 25-year 
agreement, which was later extended t h r o n g 
P e c e r o b o r S l , 2005 (DOE Power Agreement). On 
September 29, 2OO0, Uie ODE gave OVEC iiotice of 
caacellatiocQfttie D O E Power AgeemesL On April 30, 
2 0 0 3 , l i e D O E Power Agreement terminated in 
accordance mth. the notice of cancellation. 

OVEC and the Sponsorir^ Corapanies signed an 

Intcr-Company Power Agreement (ICPA) on July 10, 

1953, to support the DOE Power Agreement and provide 

for excess energy sales to the Sponsoring Companies of 

power not utilized by the DOE or its predecessoi3. Since 

the terflanation o f the DOE Power Agreement on 

Apri l 3 0 , 2003, OVEC's cofirc gcnciaiiQg capadty has 

been available to the Sponsorihg Companies under the 
tETXQs of the ICPA. The Sponsoring Companies and 

O V E C catered into an Amended and Restated ICPA, 

effective as-of August 11 , 2011, which extends its term 
to Tuae 30 ,2040 . 

OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant at Cheshire Ohio, and 
I K E C ' s CliSy Creefc Plant at Madison, tidiaoa, have 

nameplate geworalmg capacities of 1,OS6300 and 
1 ^ 0 3 ^ 6 0 kilowatts, respectively. These two gcaeratrog 
stations, both of which began opcratioa in 1955, are 

comiected by a network of 705 drcuit miles of 345,000-
volt transmission lines. These lines also intercomicct 

with t h e major power transiaission netwodcs of several 
of-ftie utilities scrvii3gfe.earea. 

The cur ren t S h a r e h o l d e r a n d the i r respective 
percentages of equi ty i n OVEC are: 

Allegheny Energy, Ihc.^ _ 3.50 

American Electric Power Company, Inc.* 39.17 
Buckeye Power Generating, IXC^. 18.00 

The DaytonPower and Light Companj^ 4.90 
Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.* 9-00 
Kentucky Utilities Company^ „ 2 3 0 

Louisville Gas andElectric Coropany^ 5.63 
Ohio Edison Compai^^ _: „ „,. 0.85 
Olao Power Cciin.pas.y**.^ __ 4 3 0 
Peninsula Gcncsafion Cooperative' _, S.S5 

Soutiem Indiana Gas and Elccfeic Company^.,,.., -. L50 

The Toledo Edison Cotopauy' 4.00 

These investor-owned utilities comprise the 
Sponsoring Companies and currently share Jhe OVEC 

power paiticipaljon benefits and requirements in the 
following perceotagcs: 

Allegheny Energy Supply Company L L C ' 3.01 

Appalachian Power Company^ „ 15.59 

Buckeye Power Generating. LLC*™ 18.00 

The Dayton Power and L i ^ t Company^ 4.90 
Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.* 9.00 
FirstEnergy Generation, LLC* 4.S5 

IJndiaoa Michigan Power Company^ 7.85 

Kentucky Utilities Company^ 2 5 0 

Louisville Gas and Electric Company^ 5.63 
Monongahela Power Company' _... 0.49 

Ohio Power Company^ _ _ _ 19.93 

Peninsula Gcnecadon Cooperalive'..-'., _ 6.65 
Southern Iiuiiana Gas and Electric Company^ 1 j Q 

100.00 

Some of l i e Common Stock issued in ihe name of: 

*AjQerican Gas & Electric Company 
**Colijmbus and Southern Ohio Electric Cooipany 

Buhsidaary or afEtiate of; 
'FirstEnergy Corp. 

^ t tckcye Power, Inc.. 
^ e AES Cwpoxation 
*Duke Energy CorporatiDn 

*PPL CoiporatioiL 

American Electric Power Company, Inc. 
'Wolverine Power SiEppiy Cooperative, Inc. 
Vcctrca Corporation 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

A Message from the President 

Ohio Valley Electric Coiporation and its subsidiary, 
Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation, observed 

, their 60^^ anniversary as corporate entities oa 
October 1, 2012. Over the years, tjie companies' 
long-established competitive operating efficiency 
and performance have proved to be valuable to our 
owners, tiie Sponsoring Companies. Going 
forward, we will continue to focns on our values — 
safety, operational excellence, cost controls and 
environmental compliance. 

F L U E G A S DESULFURIZATION ( F G D ) PROJECTS 

Xlie first FGD scrubber at Kyger Creek was 
successMly placed into service in November 2011, 
and tiie secoad. Kyger FGD scrubber began 
SQccessfui operation in February 2012. Both, 
scrubbers continue to meet our environmental 
performance exp>ectations. As designed, the Kyger 
Creek scrubbers achieve 98 percent suLfinr dioxide 
(SO2) removal efficiency. 

The first Clifty Creek plant FGD system was 
successfully placed into service in March 2013, and 
the -second FGD' system began successfijl operation 
in May 2013. Tltese FGDs are also d e s e e d to 
achieve 98 percent SO2 removal efSciency, and 
initial data shows that the Clifty Creek FGD 
systems wiU perform as designed. 

E N E R G Y S A L E S 

OVEC's use factor — tiie ratio of power 
scheduled by the Sponsoring Companies to power 
available — for the combined on- and off-peak 
periods averaged 69.4 percent ia 2012 compared 
with 89.6 percent ia 2011. The on-peak use fector 
averaged 82.9 percent in 2012 compared with. 
98.9 percent in 2011. The off-peak use fector 
averaged 52.4 percent in 2012 and 77.5 percent ia 
2011. 

In 2012, OVEC delivered 1034 million MWh 
to the Sponsoring Companies compared with 
14.20 miliion MWh in 2011-

PowER COSTS 

. In 2012, OVEC's average power cost to the 
Sponsoring Companies was $62.86 per MWh 
compared with $50.86 per MWh in 201L The total 
Sponsoring ' Company power costs were 
$650 million in 2012 compared with 5722 million 
in 2011. Thelower energy sales in 2012 accounted 
for the m^'ority of the increase in the cost per MWh 
in 2012. Mild weather, a soft ena^gy market and 
low-cost natural gas generation were responsible for 
lower energy sales ia 2012. 

2013 ENERGY S A L E S O U T L O O K 

In 2013, tiie demand for energy remains weak 
as the national economy continues to recover and 
natural gas generation contiQues to compete with 
'coal-fired generation. OVEC projects that these 
factors will continue to impact the Sponsors' 
schedniingof OVEC's power in 2013- 'Asaresult, 
OVEC anticipates the combined use fector for 2013 
will be approximately 75 percent 

C O S T CONTROL (NmATiVEs 

In 2012 and continuing in 2013, OVEC has 
been en^ged in a continuous improvement 
initiative to control costs, improve operating 
performance and explore opportunities to enhance 
the value of the OVEC investcaent This work wiU • 
produce sustainable saving? throu^ OVEC's 
partnering with the workforce ia forming change 
management teams. 

AVAlLABtLTfY 

ia 2012, the combiaed equivalent availability 
of the five generating units at Kyger Creek and the 
six units at Clifty Creek was 78.9 percent compared 
with 83.0 percent in 2011. 



OVEC FERC ORDER 1000 COMPLIANCE 

.. The Federal Energy Regulatory Cbmmission 
(FERC) Order 1000 issued in July 2011 requires 
transmission providers, including OVEC, to 
participate ia regional and intene&onal 
transmission planning. Because OVEC is not a 
member of a Regional Txansmission Organization 
that provides such planning to its members, OVEC 
partnered with. LG&E/KU to joia tbe Southeast 
Regional Transmission Planning (SERTP) group. 
The SERTP had been formed ia 2007 by a group of 
utihties led by Soutiiem Company. Working with. 
this ^x>up, OVEC WEis able to submit a compliance 
filing to tiie FERC for tbe le^onal planning portion 
of Order 1000 in February 2013. A ruling ofl this 
filing is expected from the FERC later tiiis sunimer-
OVEC is currently working wi& the SERTP on 
developing a filing to address the interre^onal 
portion of Order 1000. As it did for the regional 
filing; the FERC has granted an extension of the 
intexregjonal filing date fiom April until July 2013. 

DOE ARRANGEMEKTS wrm OVEC 

hi 2012, OVEC purchased 245,994 MWh of 
power and energy fcom other electricity suppliers 
for delivery and use by tbe Department of Eaergy 
(DOE) for its Portsmouth fecihty. At the request of 
the DOE, OVEC makes these limited purchases of 
power and energy under the terms and conditions of 
an. Arranged Power A^eement with the DOE. 

As ordered by the FERC, the North Amciican 
Electric Reliability Coiporation OJERC) registered 
OVEC as tije load-serving eatibf for the DOE I c ^ 
at ttie Portsmouth facility. OVEC is working with 
Sponsor representatives to mitigate any icajwcts, 
other than additional NERC contpliance obH^on, 
ti^ could result frora tbis additioi^ NERC 
registration. Discussions continue with the DOE on 
assuming responsibility for the ranaioiog fai^-
voltage substation at tiie fecility. 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPUANCE 

OVEC and IKEC have a strong commitment 
to maintain compliance with all applicable federal, 
state and local environmental rules and regulations. 
During -2012, tiie Kyger Creek and CliSy Creek 
plants operated iu compliance with their respective 
air emission limits, and the Corapanies received no 

- notices of violation fiom any of the envirumnental 

agencies responsible for overseeing the status of our 
environmental compliance activities. 

SAFETY 

OVEC and IKEC are coromitted to provitHng 
a safe and healthy place to work for aU employees. 
In 2012, the Companies continued making progress 
on their transition to a culture that leads with safety. 
Safety training on Rianan Perfonnance 
Improvement tools was initiated in 2012 and will 
continue ia 2013. Strong leadfiisbip and the 
iavolvement of all employees will help ensure th^f 
we achieve and sustain the desired goal of zero 
harm. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS CHANGES 

In December 2012, James R Haney, vice 
president, compliance & regalated services and 
chief FERC comptiance officer of FirstEuergy 
Services Comj^ny, was elected to serve as a 
director of OVEC following tbe resi^ation of 
Stanley F- Srwed, Also m December 2012, 
Charles D. Lasky, vice president, fossil fleet 
operations of FirstEnergy Generation, LLC, was 
elected a director of IKEC and appointed to the 
Exectctive Conimitfee of OVEC and IKEC, 
succeeding Stanley F. Szwed Mr. Szwed had 
served on tiie OVEC and IKEC boards and as a 
member of the Executive Committee of both 
companies since 2003. Effective March 1, 2013, 
Lana L. EEUebrand, senior vice president and chief 
aduunistrative officer of American Electric Power' 
Company, Inc., was elected a director of OVEC and 
a member of the OVEC Human Resources 
Comroittee, replacing Fablg A. Vegas. Mr. Vegas 
had served oa the OVEC board and as a member of •• 
the Human Resources Committee since 2012. 

ha. January 2013, Julie Sioat, senior vice 
president and treasurer for American Electric Power 
Company, Inc., was elected asastant secretary and 
assistant treasurer of OVEC and IB^C, 

Nicholas K. Akins 
President 

June 24,2013 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOUDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEiVlBER 31 , 2012 AND 2011 

ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PL.ANT: 
At origioai cost 
Less — accuiaiilated provisions for depreciation 

Construction i n progress 

Total electric plant 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel in storage 
Materials and supplies 
Property taxes applicable to fiihrre years 
Emission allowances 
Deferred tax assets 
Income taxes receivable 
Regulatory assets 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

RBGULATORV ASSETS: 
Unrecogoized postemployment benefits 
pension benefits 
Postretirement benefits .., 

Total regrulatoiy assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES AM) OTHER 
Unamortized debt expense 
Deferred tax assets 
Long-term investments 
Special deposits - restricted 
Other 

Total deferred charges and other 

TOTAL 

2012 

S 1,985,645,118 
1,115,363,691 

870,281,427 

645,484,896 

1,515,766,323 

19=924,318 
36,952,825 
79,550,095 
27,464,418 

2,503,440 
86,649 

18,302,793 
15,832,666 
8,277,357 
2,168,143 

211,062,704 

2,498,759 
30,561,325 

_1324,775 

34,384,859 

14,485,787 
22,265,884 

120351,712 
57,938,752 

103,107 

215,145,242 

$1,976,359,128 

2011 

$1,782;236,938 
1,041,198,318 

741,038,620 

684,076,875 

1,425,115,495 

4,752^23 
40,901,450 
71,696,998 
27,805,915 

2,521,920 
28,519 

13,213,395 
1,441,451 

1,907,652 

164,269,523 

2,412,685 
50,922,795 
2,980,6X0 

56,316,090 

13,714,625 
31,902,804 

105,1773206 

222,482 

152,017,117 

Sl.797,718,225 

(ContiDued) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOUDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABlLmES 

CAPrTALIZATION: 
Common stock, $100 par value—authorized, 300,000 shares; 
outstanding, 100,000 shares i(i2012 and 2011 

Long-term debt 
Line of credit borro wiogs 
Retaiaed earnings 

Total capitalization 

CURRENT LMBILrriES: 
Current portion of Io:^-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue — advances for construction 
Accrued other taxes 
Regulatory liabilities 
A c c n : ^ ioterest and other 

Total current liabilities 

C0MM3XMENTS AKD CONTINGENCIES (Note 13) 

REGULATORY LIABRmES: 
Deconmtissioning and demolition 
iavestmenttax credits 
Net antitrust settlement 
Income taxes retimdahle to ctistomers 

Total regulatory liabilities 

OTHER LL^BlLmES: 
Pension liability 
Asset retiremeait obligations 
Postretirement benefits obligation 
Postemployment benefits obligation 

Total other tiabilities 

2012 

; 10,000,000 
1358^47,337 

60,000,000 
5,293,968 

1,433,641,305 

238,138.903 
53,916,997 
19,389380 
8,651.108 
2,586,594 

25,822374 

348,505,556 

14,230,459 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

38,645,647 

58,093,181 

30,561325 
20,961379 
82,097,623 
2,498,759 

136.119,086 

2011 

; 10,000,000 
1,197,204,828 

100,000,000 
4,037;278 

1311,242,106 

135,797,658 
78,722,972 
31,084;Z84 
8,811,972 
2,973,856 

22,909,899 

280300,641 

10,610,565 
3393,146 
1,823,929 

40,284,930 

56,112,570 

50,922,795 
19,809316 
76,918,112 
2,412,685 

150,062.908 

TOTAL 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

$1,976359,128 $1,797.718,225 

(Concluded) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLfDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNfNGS 
FOR THE YEAHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 

2012 

OPERATING F^VENUES — Sales of electric energy to: 
Etepaitment o f Energy • 
Sponsoring Companies 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Fuel and emission allowances consumed in operation 
Purchased popver 
Otiier operation 
Maintaiance 
Depreciation 
Taxes — other than income taxes 
Income taxes 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING ENCOME 

OTHER INCOME 

INCOME BEFORE I^TTEKEST CHARGES 

INTEREST CHARGES: 
Amortization o f debt expense 
Interest expe^xsc 

Total interest charges 

NET rtsrcoME 

RETAINED EARNINGS — Beginning of year 

CASH DIVIDRNDS ON COMMON STOCK 

RETAINED EARNINGS — End of year 

; 9,097,306 
661,721,951 

670,819,257 

302,925,697 
8,552,565 

101,967,242 
89,645,354 
85,140,820 
10,765327 

893,533 

599,890,538 

70,928,719 

10.920,111 

81.848,830 

4,606,617 
74,985,523 

79,592,140 

2011 

; 11,643355 
705,294,774 

716,938,129 

397,543,208 
10,912,769 
95,597,681 
81,451,764 
56,131,434 
11,207,820 

851,608 

653,696,284 

63,241,845 

10,167,078 

73,408,923 

1,478,943 
69,259,876 

70,738,819 

2356,690 2,670,104 

4,037,278 2,367,174 

(1,000,000) (1,000,0003 

S 5,293,968 $ 4,037,278 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ' 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 

2£rt2 2II11 

OPERATINGACnVinES: 
Net iocomc 
Adjiistocnls to reconcile net inct»ne to nd cash provided by (used in) operating activities; 

DcprcctslJoa 
Ajooithsdaa of debt expense 
Deferred. taxcsAr&mdabJc faxes 
(Gain) on maltcta&le sccuritits 
Changes in zsseis aod liabiQitics: 
Accoiiois reca'vabje 
Foe] in storage ' 
Mattaials .aod siipplics 
Pioperty faxes applicable to fiituiC ycais 
Einissfaa allowrances 
Jbcome t3xiS receivable 
Prcfiaid expenses aad other 
OllicrreguIatMy assets 
OlbCT assets 
Other Doocurrcnt assets 
Accounts payable 
Deiciicd icveime - advances fix cposlmcticMi 
Accrued taxes 
Accrued inlcrest and ofiier 
Olber liabilitJcs 
Otbcr rcgulatoiy liahOifies 

J7ct cadi pStcrided t y opoaimg activities 

INVESTING A C n V m E S : 
Elcctnc plant additions 
Proceeds from sale of L T investments 
Puidiases of Jong-tctm infestaieats 

Net cash used in invesfingactivitJes 

FINANCING A C n V m E S : 
Issuance of Senior 2012 Bonds 
Issuance of Senior 2010 Bonds 
Loan originaliMi cost 
'Rxp^ymait of SmiM"2(X>6 Notes 
Rtpayment of Senior 2007 Nobs 
Rr^jayEaent of Senior 2008 Nolcs 
Proceeds femi line of credit 
Psynieatsonl ineofcrwi i • .. 
Dfvidea>ds on conunon stock 

Net casi provided by finandng aciivitics 

NET n^CREASE pECREASE) M CASH AM> CASH EQOIVALENTS 

CASH.AHD CASH EQUIVALENTS—B<:sinainS of yo r 

CASH AKD CASH EQOIVAI^NTS —End of y o r 

SUPPUEMENTAL DISCLOSUSES; 
Ihterestpiaid 

IDCOTOC taxes paid (received) — net 

NocrC^:^ dcctric plant additions included is accounts payable aX December 31 

Sec botes to a»)solidatcd finanoal stalcmcnls. 

S 2^56,690 

85,140.820 
4.606.617 
2,908.239 
{S^S.mS) 

3,54£.62S 
(7,853.097) 

341.497 
18.480 .• 

(58.130) 
C14^9U15) 

(260.491) 
11,638.471 

-
119375 

2^1.729 
(11.694.904) 

(160.864) 
2,912,675 

(13>i3.822) 
5^45.035 

67,003.655 

(203,169352) 
20342,154 

(86.110337) 

(265^37.535) 

299.403.938 

-
(5377.779) 

(14.730.774) 
(IO352343) 
(1D,?97.{B7) 
150,000,000 

(200,000.000) 
(3,003,000) 

217,105^75 

15.172,095 

4.75> ^ '^ 

S 19.924318 

S 74.1^)307 

S 12304,500 

S 8,654,116 

S 2.670,104. 

56.131,434 
1.478.943 

(i;256.767) 
(5.844.074) 

3^17,008 
(8.859.671) 

• (4.853.014) 
(19.920) 
612,810 

12.430,808 
496.368 

(43323.464) 
(117.906) 
(?7?,74?) 

13,822,449 
16,858.709 

299.402 
235,410 

61,025.439 
(8,904,125) 

96.198^201 

(151.562.139) 
26,095.488 

(38,955.548) 

(164,422.199) 

_ 
100.000.000 

(3.807.975) 
• (15.842.599) 

(10.524355) 
(12.853.086) 
80,000.000 

(85.000.000) 
n,K)D.OO0) 

50,971.785 

(17,252313) 

22,004.436 

S 4,752.223 

S 69.615.825 

S (7.486.412) 

S 36,031,820 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDfARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED RNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 

1- ORGA!>fIZATION AND SIGNIFrCANT ACCOnNTING POLICIES 

Consoiidated Financial Stateraaats — The consolidaled. financial stafeme-nts include the accounts of 
Oiiio Valley Electric Corjwratioa (OVEC) and its •wholly owned sutsidiaiy, Indiaoa-Kentucjky Electric 
CJDiporation (IKEC), collectively, the Companies. Ail intercompany transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Organizatioa-— The Companies own two generating stations located in Ohio and Indiana with a 
combined electric production capabihty of approximately 2,256 megawatts. OVEC is owned by several -
investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and two affihates of generation and transmission 
rural electric coopeialives. These entities or their affiliates comprise the Sponsoring Companies. The 
Sponsoring Companies purchase power &om OVEC according to the terms of the Ihter-Company Power 
Agreemeat (ICPA), which has a current termination date of June 30, 2040. Approximately 27% of tbe 
Companies' employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreemeirf: that expires August 31, 2014. 

Prior to 2004, OVEC's primaiy commercial customer was the U.S. Department of Enexgy (DOE). The 
contract to provide OVEC-generaled power to the DOE was tenninated in 2003 and all obligations were 
settled at that time. (Currently, OVEC has an agreexoent to arrange for the purchase of power (Arranged 
Povper), under the direction of the DOE, for re;sale directiy to the DOE. All purchase costs are billable by 
OVEC to the DOE. 

Rat£ Regulation — The proceeds &om the sale of power to the Sponsoring Companies are desired to be 
sufBcient for OVEC to meet its operating expenses and fixed costs, as weU as earn a retura on equity 
before federal income taxes, hi addition,, the proceeds from power sales are desigaed to cover debt 
amorrizalion. and interest expense associated with financings. The Companies have coatiQued and espect 
to continue to operate pursuant to the cost plus late of return recovery provisions at least to June 30, 2040, 
the date ofteiminaiion of the ICPA. 

The accountiDg guidance for Regulated Operations provides that latc-reguIated uhhties account for and 
report assets and liabihties consistent with the economic effect of the way in which rates are established, if 
the rates e:stabhshed are designed to recover the costs of providing the regulated service and it is probable 
that such rates can be diarged and collected. The Companies follow the accountiiig and reporting 
requirements in accordance with the guidance for Regulated Operations. Certain expenses and credits 
subject t o utility regulation or rate determioation normally reflected in income are deferred on the 
accompartying coDsolidaled balance sheets and are recognized in income as the related amounts are 
included i n service rates and recovered from or refunded to customers. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

The Companieis' regulatory assets, liabilities, and amounts authorized for recovery through Sponsor 
billiogs at December 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows: 

Regulatory assets: 
Current assets: 
Lease termination costs^quldated damagps 
Unrecognized loss on coal sales 

Total 

Other assets: 
Unrecogoi2Ed postemployment benefits 
Pension benefits 
Postretiremcait benefits 

Total 

Total regulatory assefe 

Regulatory liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Deferred credit—EPA emission allowance proceeds 
Advance collection of interest 

Total 

Other liabilities: 
Decoramissioning and demolition 
hivestroeat tax credits 
Net antitrust seltiement 
Income taxes xefimdable to customers 

Total 

Total regulatory iiabiMes 

2012 

$ 5^5,467 $ 
3,051,890 

2011 

8;277,357 

$ 2,498,759 $ 2,412,685 
30^61,325 50,922,795 

1324,775 2,980,510 

34,384,859 56,316,090 

$42,662,216 ' $56,316,090 

$ 274,687 $ 269,506 
2,311,907 2,704,350 

2,586,594 

$14,230,459 
3^93,14^ 
1,823,929 

38,645,647 

58,093,181 

$60,679,775 

2,973,856 

$10,610,565 
3393,146 
1,823,929 

40,284,930 

56,112,570 

$59,086,426 

Regulatory Assets — Regulatory assefe consist primarily of postrethement benefits, iocome taxes billable 
to customers, and pension benefits. lacome taxes billable to cnstDmeis are billed to customers iu tbe 
period vrfien the related defared tax habihties are realized. The fijel related costs, including railcar lease 



OHIO V A L L E Y ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCfAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 

teimination costs and Hquidated damages, will be billed to customer? in 2013. All other regulatory assets 
are being recovered on a long-term basis. 

Regulatory Liabilities —The regulatory liabilities classified as current in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sbeet as of December 31, 2012, consist primarily of interest expense collected from cxistomers in 
advance of expense recognition-- These amounts outstanding wih be credited to customer bills during 
2013. Other regulatory liabilities consist primarily of iucome taxes rehindable to customers, 
postretireEaent benefits, and decommissioning and demohtion costs, income taxes refundable to customers 
are credited to customer bills in the period when the related deferred tax assets are realized. The 
Companies' current ralemaldng policy recovers postretirement benefits in an amount equal to estimated 
benefit accrual cost plus amortization of unfunded Habihties, if any. As a result, related regulatory 
Habilities are being credited to customer bUIs on a long-term basis. Ib.e remaining re^atory Habiiities are 
awaiting credit to customer bills ia a firture period that is yet to be detennined. 

In 2003, the DOE termioated the DOB Power Agreement with OVEC, entitling the Sponsoring 
Companies to 100% of OVEC's generating capacity under the terms of the ICPA. Under the terras of the 
DOE Power Agreement, OVEC was entitied to receive a "termination payment" from the DOE to recover 
unbilled costs upon termiuation of the agreement The teimiiiation payment included unbilled 
postretirenient b^iefit costs, hi 2003^ OVEC recorded a settlement payment of £97 miUion for the DOE 
obligation related to poslretiiement benefit costs. The regulatory liability for postretirement benefits 
recorded a t December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, represents amounts collected iu historical billings 
in excess of the Generally Accepted Accounting f^±iciples net periodic benefit costs, including the DOE 
tennination payment 

Cash antl Cash Equivaleats — Cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of cash and money market 
funds and their carrying value approximates feh value. For purposes of these statements, the Companies 
consider temporary cash investments to be cash equivalents since they are readily convertible into cash 
and have origraal roatorities of less than three montlis. 

Electric P"Iaat— Property additions and replacements are charged to utiUty plant accounts. Depreciaficn. 
expense i s recorded at the time property additions and replacements are billed to customers or at the dale 
the proper^ is placed in service if the in-service date occurs subsequent to the customer billiog. Customer 
billing?- for construction hi progress are recorded as defeaxed revenue-advances for construction. These 
amounts atre closed to revenue at the time the related property is placed in service. Depreciation expense 
and accumulated depr«:iation are recorded when financed property additions and replacements are 
recovered over a period of years throi:^ customer debt retirement billing. All depreciable property will be 
fully bille:^ and depreciated prior to the expiration of the ICPA. Repairs of property are charged to 
maintenance expense. 

Fuel in Storage, Emission Allowances, and Materials and Supplies — The Companies maintain coal, 
reagent, and oil inventories for use in the generation of electricity and enusslon allowance inventories for 
legulatoiy compliance purposes due to the generation of electrici'^. These inventories are vaiii^d at 
average cost, less reserves for obsolescence. Materials and supplies consist primarily of replacement parts 
necessary to main^aia the generating facilities and are valued at average costi 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 

Long-Term Invesfcoients — Long-term investments consist of marketable securities that are held for the 
purpose of funding postretirement benefits and decommissioning and demohtion costs. These securities 
have been classified as trading securities in accordance with the provisions of investments — Debt and 
Equity Securities accountiog guidance. Trading securities reflected in Long-Term hivestments are carried 
at fear value with Ihe unrealized gain or loss, reported in Other Income. The cost of securities sold is based 
on. the specific identification cost method. The fair value of most investment securities is determined by 
reference to currently available market prices. Wbeare quoted martet prices are not available, we use the 
market price of similar types of securities that are traded in the xamket to estimate fair value. See Fair 
Value Measuremehts in Note 10. Due to tax limitations, the amounts held in the postretirement. benefits 
portfolio have not yet beea transferred to the Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Assodation (VESA) trusts 
(see Note 8). Long-term investments primarily consist of munic^jal bonds, money market mxdual fund 
invesrtments, and mutual hinds. Net unrealized gains (losses) recognized during 2012 and 2011 on 
securities still held at the balance sheets date were $6,250,092 and $5,844,074, respectively. 

Special Deposits — Special deposits consist of money market mutijal funds held by trustees restricted for 
use in specific construction projects. The feir value of special deposits at the balance sheet d̂ te- was 
$57,938,752. 

Money mariEt mutual fimds reflected in special cbposrts are carried at feir value with the related 
investment iucome reported in Other Income. The cost of securities sold is based on The specific 
ideadification method. The feir value of money market mutual fimds is determined by reference to 
currentiy available market prices and, as such, is considered Level 1. There were no unrealized gains or 
losses recognized on this portfolio dnriog 2012. 

Fair Value- MJeasuremenfa of Assets and Liabilities— The accountiog guidance for Fair Value 
Measureanents and DiscIosuTES establishes a feir value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure 
fail value. The hierarchy ©ves the higjiest priority to uradjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities -(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 measureinents). Where observable inputs are available, pricing may be completed using 
comparable securities, • dealer values and general market conditions, to determine fair value. Valuation 
models utilize various ir^uts that include quoted prices" for shmlar assets- or liabilities ia active markets, 
quoted, prices for identical or similar assets or liabihties in inactive markets and other observable inputs 
for the asset or liability. 

Unamortized Pebt Expense— UnamortizEd debt expense relates to loan origination costs incurred to 
secure financing. Tbese costs are being amortized using the effective yield method over the hfe of the 
related, loans. 

Asset Retirement Obligations and Asset Retireraen't Costs — Tbe Companies reco^iize the fair value 
of legal obUgatioi^ associated with the retirement or removal of long-Uved assets at ihe time the 
obhgations are iucurred and can be reasonably estimated. The itutial reco^ution of this Uahihty is 
accompanied by a corresponding increase in depreciable electric plant SubseqiKnt to the initial 
recogjtition, the liability is ai^usted for any revisions to fee expected value of the retirement obhgation 
(wiflj corresponding adjustments to elecbdc plant) and for accretion of the liabihty due to the passage of 
time. 

11 
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AND SUBSIDfARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 

These asset retirement obligations are primarily related to obligations associated with future asbestos 
abatement at certain generating stations and certain plant closure costs. 

Balance—-January 1,2011 $ 30,999,653 

Accretion 2,130,471 
Liabilities settied (338,375) 
Revision ju cash frow estimates ' (12,982,433) 

Balance —December 31,2011 19,809316 

Accretion 1,429,394 
Liabilities settied (277,331) 
K-cvision jn cash flow estimates ' -

Balance —December 31,2012 £ 20,961379 

The revised estimated costs are recorded in the accompanying balance sheets. The asset retirement 
obtigations originally assumed a decoromissioning and demohtion date consistent with t i e ICPA expiring 
m. 2025. A s liie ICPA was extended an additional 14 y^irs to 2040, the cash flow estimates were revised 
to reflect the new decoromissiomng and demolition date, which resulted in a decreased obligation as of 
December 31, 2011. 

The Companies do not recognze liabihties for asset retirement obhgations for which the fair value cannot 
be reasonably estirc^ted, I b e Companies have asset retirement obligations associated with transmission 
assets at certain generating stations. However, the retirement date for these assets caruiot be determined; 
therefore^ the fair value of the associated liabihty currentiy carmot be estimated and no amounts are 
recognized, in the consohdated financial statements herein. 

I nc om e Xaxes — The Companies use the HabiUly method of accounting for income taxes. Under the 
iiabiiity method, the Compaines provide deferred income taxes for all "temporary differences between the 
book and tax basis of assets and liabilities which will res^lIt in a future tax consequence. The Companies 
account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the accounting guidance for Income Taxes. 

Use of Es t imates — The preparation of consohdated frnancial statements in conformity with accounting 

principles gesuerally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habihties and disclosure of contingent assets 

and habilities at the date of the consohdated financial- statements and the reported amounts o f revenues 

and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulte could differ from those estimates-

S u b s e q u e n t E v e n t s — In preparing the accompanying financial statements and disclosures, the 

Companies reviewed subsequent events through April 10, 2013, vrtiich is the date the consolidated 

financial statements were issued. 

12 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
A N D SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS O F AND FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2012 AND 2011 

Z- RJELATEO-PARTYTRAKSACTIONS 

Transactions with the Sponsoriog Companies during 2012 and 2011 included the sale of all generated 
power to theni, the purchase of Arranged Power from them and other utihty systems in order to m.E£t the 
Department of Energy's power requirements, contract barging services, railcar services, and minor 
transactions for services and materials. The Companies have Power Agreemeuts with Louisville Gas and 
Electric Company, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., The Daj^n Power and Ligjit Company, Kentocky Utihties 
Company, Ohio Edison Company, and Aiherican Electric Power Service Corporation as agent for the 
American Electric Power System Corapanies; and Transmission Service Agreements with Louisville Gas' 
and Electric Company, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Power and L i ^ t Company, The Toledo 
Edison Company, Ohio Edison Company, Kentucky Utihties Company, and Amraican Electric Power 
Service Corporation as agent for the American Electric Power System Companies. 

AtDecembof 31,2012 and 2011, balances diK from the Sponsoring Companies are asfbUows: 

Accoimts receivable 

2012 2Q11 

$34>t3,741 _ $36,650,231 

American Electric Power Corc^any, htc. and subridiary company owned 43.47% of the common stock of 
OVEC as of December 31, 2012. The following is a summary of the principal services received from the 
American Electric Power Service Corporation as. aufliori2»d by the Companies' Boards of Directors: 

General services 
Specific projects 

Total 

2012 

; 3,216,482 
12,746^57 

2011 

$ 3,656,595 
9,612,272 

$ 15,962,839 $ 13,268,867 

General services conast of regular lecuaiting operation and maintenance services. Specific projects 
primarily represent lionrecurring plant construction projects and en^eering studies, which are approved 
by the Companies' Boards of Directors. The services are provided in accordance with ihe service 
agreement dated December 15, 1956, between the Companies and the American Electric Power Service 
Corporation 

3 . COAL SUPPLY 

The Companies have coal supply" agreements with certain nonafSliated companies that expire at various 
dates from the year 2013 throu^ 2017. Pricing for coal under these contracts is subject to contract 
provisions and adjustments. The Companies currentiy have 94% of thrar 2013 coal requirements under 
long-term agj:eements of one year or ^eater. These contracts are based on rates in effect at the time of 
purchase. Dndng 2012, OVEC failed to meet the contracted obhgations relatii^ to one coal transportation 
contract, "which resulted in hquidated dam^cs of £2,227,781. These costs are payable to vendors and 
recoverable fiom the Sponsor Con^janies within the next 12 months and are recorded as current 
regolatory assete (see Note 1). 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TOCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
A S OF AND F O R THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2012 AND 2011 

4. ELECTRIC PLANT 

Electric plant at December 31, 2012 and 2011, consists of the following: 

2012 2011 

Steam production plant £1,898,140,562 $1,695,243,965 
Transmission plant 74,777,994 74,443,405 
General plant . 12,699,998 12.523,004 
Intangible 26,564 26,564 

1,985,645,118 1,782,236,938 

Less accumulated depreciation 1,115,363,691 1,041,198318 

870,281,427 741,038,620 

Constiuction iu progress 645,484,896 ' 684,076,875 

Total electric plant - $1,515,766323 £1,425,115,495 

All prqperty additions and replacements are fuUy depreciated on the date the property is pitied ia service, 
uriless the addition or replacement relates to a financed project The majority of financed projects placed 
in service over the past 5 years have been recorded to steam production plant with depreciable lives 
lan^ng from 32 to 45 years. However, as the Companies' pohcy is to bill in accordance- with the principal 
billings of the debt agreements, ail finance projects are being depreciated in line with principal payments 
on outstanding debt 

5- BORROWING ARRAI^GEMEISTS AND NOTES 

OVEC has an unsecured bank revolving line of credit agreement with a borrowing limit of S275 million as 
of December31, 2012, and $225 nuUion as of December 31, 2011. The £225 million tine of credit was 
renewed in June 2010, increased to $275 miUion in April 2012, and has an expiration date of June 18, 
2015- At December 31, 2012 and 2011, OVEC had borrowed $60 million and $100 milhon, respectively, 
under this line of credit Interest expense related to line of crecht borrowings was $3,139,158 in 2012 and 
$2,216,871 in 2011. During 2012 and 2011, OVEC incurred annual commitment fees of $412,458 and 
$573,958, respectively, based on the borrowing limits of the hue of credit 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2012 AND 2011 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following amounts were outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011; 

Scoior 2006 Notes: 
2006A due February 15,2026 
2006B due June 15,2040 

Scoior 2007 Notes: 
2007A-A due Fetmaiy 15,2026 
2007A-B due February 15.2026 
2007A-C due February 15,2026 
2007B-A due June 15, 2040 
2007B-B due June 15,2040 
2007B-C due June 15,204O 

Seiuor 2008 Notes : 
200 8 A due February 15.2026 
20D8B due Febmaiy 15,2026 
2008C due February 15.2026 
2008D due June 15,2040 
2008E due June 15,2040 

Series 2009 Notes : 
2009A ducFebmaiy 15,2013 

Series 2009 Bonds: 
2D09A due February 1,2026 
2009B ducFebniaiy 1,2026 
2O09C due February 1,2026 
2009D due Febniary 1,2026 
20D9E due OctDbex 1,2015 

Series 2010 Bonds: 
20 iOA due June 29. 2014 
2010B due June 29.2016 

Scries 2012 Bonds: 
2 0 1 2 A d u e J u n e 1,2032 
2012A due June 1,2039 
2012B due June 1,2040 
2012C due June 1.2040 

Total debt 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Total long-tenn debt 

Interest 
Rate 

5.80 % 
6.40 

5.90 
5.90 
5.90 
6.50 
6S0 
650 

552 
6.71 
6.71 
6.91 
6.91 

1.96 

0.11 
0.11 
0.12 
0.12 
5.63 

1.48 
1.48 

4.95 
5.05 
D.12 
0.11 

2012 

$ 292.095,074 
61,252,481 

132,475,263 
33.362,594 
33.628,247 
30,609314 
7,708,654 
7,770,034 

41334,943 
83,014,206 
84,578^21 
44,242,121 
45,010,851 

100,000.000 

25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 

100,pOO,000 

50.000,000 
50.000,000 

77,091,234 
122312,703 
50.000,000 
50,000,000 

2011 

$ 306.042.656 
62.035,673 

138,983.105 
35,001;279 
35,279,980 
31,003,872 

7,808,021 
7,870,192 

43362,126 
86,898.218 
88,408,080 
44,765.728 
45343,556 

100,000.000 

25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 

100.000,000 

50,000,000 
50.000,000 

_ 

-
~ 
-

1.596,486;240 1,333,002.486 

238,138^03 135,797.658 

$ 1358,347337 $ 1,197,204,828 

All of the OVEC amortizing unsecured senior notes have maturities y^heduled for February 15, 2026, or 
June 15,2040, as noted in the previous table. 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF A N D FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 1 , 2012 AND 2011 

During 2009, OVEC issued XlOOmiUion variable rate non-amortizing unsecured senior notes (2009A 
Notes) in private placement, a series of four $25 million variable rate non-amortiTJng tax exempt pollution 
control bonds (2009A, B, C, and D Bonds), and $100 million fixed rate non-amortizing tax exempt 
pollution coutiol bonds (2009E Bonds). The variable rates hsted above reflect the interest rale in effect at 
December 31,2012. 

The 2009 "Series A, B, C, and D Bonds are secured by irrevocable transferable direct-pay letters of credit, 
e :^ i r ing August 12, 2013, and August 21 , 2013, issued for the benefit of the owners of the bonds. The 
Ln'terest r a ^ on the bonds are adjusted weekly, and bondholders may reqmie repurchase of the bonds at the 
t ime of such interest rate adjustments. OVEC has entered into an agreement to provide for the remarketing 
of the bonds if such repurchase is required The 2009A, B , C, and D Series Bonds are current, as they are 
callable at any time. 

I Q December 2010, OVEC established a borrowing facihty under which OVEC borrowed, in 2011, 
S100 mill ion variable rale bonds due February 1, 2040. In June 2011, the $100 milhon variable rate bonds 
were issued as two $50 milhon non-amortiring pollution contioi revenue bonds (Series 2010A and 
201 OB) i n a short-term hank: arrangement for three years and five years, respectively. 

During 2012 , OVEC issued $200 miBion fixed rate tax-exerqpt midwestem disaster relief revenue bonds 
(2012A Bonds) and two series of $50 milhon variable rate tax-exempt midwestem disaster rehef revenue 
bonds (2012B and 2012C Bonds). The 2012A, 2012B, and 2012C Bonds witl b e ^ amortizing Jime I, 
2027, to their respective maturity dates. The variable rates listed above reflect the interest rate in effect at 
December 31 , 2012. 

•The 2012B and 2012C Bonds are secured by irrevocable transferable direct-pay letters of credit, expiring 
June 28 , 2014, and June 28, 2015, issued for the benefit of the owners of the bonds. The interest rates on 
the bonds are adjusted weekly, and bondholders may require repurchase of the bonds at the tune of such 
interest rafe adjustments. OVEC has entered into agreements to provide for the remarketing of the bonds if 
such repurchase is required The2012B and 20 i2C Bonds are current, as they are callable at any t ime. 

Ixi2013, t i ie $100 million 2009A Notes were retired on February 15, 2013, with fimding fiom the issuance 
of $100 mill ibn 2013A variable rate ra>n-amorti7ing unsecured senior notes (2013A Notes). The 2013A 
Notes mature on February 15, 2018. As aresult, the 2009A Notes are excluded fix)m current liabilities and 
classified as long term at December 31, 2012. 

The annual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31 , 2012, are as follows: 

2013 $ 38,138,903 
2014 90,496,382 
2015 43,000,194 
2016 95,559,472 
2017 48,483,907 
2018-2040 1,280,807,382 

Total $1,596,486,240 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS O F A N D FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 1 , 2012 AND 2011 

7. " I N C O M E TAXES 

OVEC and IKEC file a consohdated federal income tax return. The effective tax rate varied firom the 
statutory federal income tax rate due to differences between the book and tax treatment of various 
trzmsactions as follows: 

income tax expense at 35% statutory rate 
State income taxes — net of federal benefit 

. Temporary difierences flowed through to customer bills 
Permanent differences and otha: 

Income tax provision 

Effective tax rate 

Components of the income tax provision were as follows: 

201Z 

;i,i02,283 
549 

(224,609) 
15310 

2011 

$1,232,599 
(181,531) 
(228,753) 

29,293 

$ 893,533 $ . 851,608 

28.4 % 24:2% 

Current income tax (benefit)/expense 
Deferred income tax expease/(benefit) 

Total income tax provision 

2012 

: (9,609,247) 
10,502,780 

2011 

$ 5,004,517 
(4,152,909) 

$ 893,533 S 851,608 

O V E C and IKEC record deferred tax assets and liabilities based on differences between book and tax 
basis of assets and habihties measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that wiQ be in effect when the 
differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets and habilities are adjusted for changes in tax rates. 
The deferred tax assets recorded hi the accornpanying consohdated balance sheets cousist primarily of the 
net deferred taxes on depreciation, postretirement benefits obhgation, asset retirement. obhgations,-
regjilatory assets, and regulatory habihties. 

To the extent that tiie Companies have not reflected credits in customer billings for deferred tax assets, 
they have recorded a regulatory hability representing income taxes refundable to customers under the 
apphcable agreements among the parties. The regulatory liability was $38,645,647 and $40,284,930 at 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FiNANClAL STATEMENTS 
AS O F A N D F O R T H E YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2012 AND 2011 

Deferred Income tax assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2012 and 2011, consisted of the following: 

2012 2011 

Deferred tax assets: 
Deferred, revenue— advances for construction 
AMT credit carryforwards 
Federal net operating loss 
Postretirement benefit obligation 
Pension habttity 
Postemployraent benefit obligation 
Asset retirement obhgations 
Misceilameous accruals 
Regulatory liabihty— investment tax credits 
Regulatory tiabUity — net antitrust settlement 
Regulatory Hability — asset retirement costs 
Regulatory liabihty—income taxes refimdable 
to customers 

Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabihties: 
Prepaid expenses 
Electric plant 
Unrealizied gain/loss on marketable securities 
Regulatory a^et—postietiremcnt benefits 
Regulatory asset—pension benefits 
Regulatory asset— unrecognized postemployment benefits 

Total deferred tax liabihties 

Deferred incom.e tax assets 

Current deferred income taxes 
Non-current deferred income taxes 

6,789,730 
2,574,572 
9.392,878 

28,748,763 
9,207,805 

875,010 
7,340,209 
2,742,592 
1,188,204 

638,700 
4,983,191 

13.844,317 

88,325,971 

(622,408) 
(29,477,415) 

(5,616,658) 
(463,906) 

(10,701,897) 

(875,010) 

(47,757,294) 

: 40,568,677 

18,302,793 
22,265,884 

10,967,289 
2,574,572 

27328.379 
16,511,400 

851,254 
6,989,207 
2,833,433 
1,197,184 

643,527 
3,743,665 

14,613,570 

88,253,480 

(587327) 
(19;226,351) 

(3,453,921) 
(1,051,631) 

(17,966.797) 

(851,254) 

(43,137,281) 

; 45,116,199 

13,213,395 
31,902,804 

The accoronting giidance for Income Taxes addresses the determination of whether the tax benefits 
claimed o r expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under 
this guidaoice, the Companies may recognize the tax benefit fiom an uncertain tax position only if it is 
more likeLy than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based 
on the tectinical merits of the positiorL The tax benefi.ts lecogoized in the financial statements from such a 
position axe measured based on the largest benefit that has a greatea: than fifty percent likelihood of being 
realized irpon ultimate settiement The Companies have not identified any uncertain tax positions as of 
I>ecHnber31, 2012 and 2011, and accordingly, no habihties for uncertain tax positions have been 
recognize^d. 
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On March 23, 2010. President Obaroa signed into law the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (the 
PPAC Act). The PPAC Act is a comprehensive health care reform bill that includes revenue-raising 
provisions of nearly $400 billion over 10 years through tax increases on high-income individuals, excise 

• taxes on hi^-cost group health plans, and new fees on selected heaHh-care-related industiies. In addition, 
on March 30, 2010, President Obama signed into law the reconcihation measure, which modifies certain 
provisions of the PPAC Act 

An employer offering retiree prescription drug coverage that is at least as valuable as Medicare Part D 
coverage is currerrtiy entitied to a federal retiree drug subsidy. Eir^loyers can currently claim a deduction 
for the enthe cost of providing the prescription drug coverage even though a portion of the cost is ofeet 
by the subsidy they receive. However, the PPAC Act repealed the current rule permitting a deduction of 
the portion of the drug coverage expense tiiat is offeet by Ihe Medicare Part D subsidy. This provision of 
the PPAC Act as modified by the reconcihation measure is effective for taxable years beginning after 
December 31, 2012. 

During 2012, the passage of the PPAC Act resulted in a reduction of the postemployment benefits 
deferred tax asset of approximately $80,000 and a reduction to the related regulatory liability (income 
taxes refundable to customers) of approximately $80,000. 

The Companies file income tax xetoms vfith the Intemal Revenue Service and the stales of Ohio, Indiana, 
and the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The Companies are no longer subject to federal tax examinations 
for tax years 2007 and earlier. The Companies are currentiy under audit by the Internal Revenue Service 
for the tax years ended December 31, 2008 tbrou^ December 31, 2011. The Companies are no longer 
subject to State of Indiana tax examinations for tax years 2007 and eartier. The Companies are no longer 
subj ect to Ohio and the Commonwealth of Kentucky examinations for tax years 2005 and earher. 

8. PENSION PLAN, OTEDERPOSTREimEMENT AND POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

The Companies have a noncontributoiy qualified defined benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) covering 
substantially all of their employees. The benefits..are based on years of service and each employee's 
highest consecutive 36^nonth compensation period, Employees are vested in the Pension Plan after five 
years of service with the Companies. 

Funding for the Pension Plan is based on actuarially determined contributions, the maximnm of which is 
genially the amount deductible for income tax purposes and the mimmum berog that required by the 
Employee Retiiemcnt Iocome Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), as amended The full cost of Ihe pension 
benefits and related obligations has been allocated to OVEC and IKEC in the accompanying consohdated 
financial statements. The allocated amounts represent approximately a 57% and 43% spht between OVEC 
and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31,2012, and approximately a 56% and 44% spht for OVEC and 
IEJEC, respectively, as of December 31, 2011. The Pension Plan's assets as of December 31, 2012 consist 
of investments m. equity and debt securities. 

In addition to the Pension Plan, the Companies provide certain health care and fife insurance benefits 
(Other PostretiremeHt BeiKfits) for retired employees. Substantialiy all of the Companies' employees 
become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement age while woriing for the Companies. These 
and similar benefits fer active employees are provided tbrotigb einployer fimding and insurance policies. 
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I n December 2004, the Companies estabfished Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (VEBA) 
trusts. lQJanuars' '201I,the Comparues established an IRC Section 401(h) account under the Pension Plan, 

AJl of the trust funds' investments for the pension and postemployment benefit plans are diversified and 
managed i n corripHance with all laws and regulations. Management regularly reviews the actual asset 
allocation and periodically rebalances the investments to targeted allocation when appropriate. The 
investments are r^x)rted at fair value under the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures accounting 
guidance. 

AH benefit plan assets are invested in accordance with each plan's investment-poticy. The investment 
policy outlines the investment objectives; strategies, and target asset allocations by p l a n Benefit plan 
assets are reviewed on a formal basis each quarter by the 0VEC/3KEC Qualified Plan Trust Committee. 

The investment philosophies for the benefit plans st^iport the allocation of assets to minimize risks and 
opiiuaize a e t returos. 

Investment strate^es include: 

* Maintaining a long-term investment horizon 
•• Diversifying assets to help control volstilriy o f returns at acceptable levels. 

• • Managing fees, transaction costs, and tax habihties to maximize investment eamiogs. 
^ Using active roanagement of investments where appropriate risk/return opportunities exist 
- Keeping portfoho structure style neutral to limit volatihty compared to applicable benchmarks. 

The target asset allocation for each portfoho is as follows: 

Pens ion Plan Assets Target 

Domestic equity 15.0 % 
IntematioDal and global eqmty 15.0 
Fixed income . 70.0 

VEBA Plan Asse t s Target 

Domestic equity 20.0 % 
tatemational and global equity 20.0 
Fixed income 5.7.0 
Cash 3.0 

• Each beDe;fit plan contains various investment limitations. These limitations are described in the investment 
poficy statement and detailed in customized investment guidelines or documented by muhial fund 
prospectus. These investment guidelines require appropriate portfolio diversification and define security 
concentration Ihnits. Each investment manager's portfoho is compared to an appropriate diversified 
benchmark indesi 
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Equity investment limitations: 

*- No security in excess of 5% of aU equities. 
- Cash equivalents must be less than 10% of each mvestment manager's equity portfoHo. 
• Individual securities must be less than 15% of each manager's equity portfolio. 
^ No investment ia excess of 5% of an outstanding class of any company. 
- No securities may be bought or sold on margin or other use of leverage, 
•• As otherwise defined by fiiod prospectus. 

^Fired Iiicoine Limitations— As of December 31, 2012, the Pension Plan fixed income allocation 
consists of managed accounts composed of U.S. Government, corporate, and municipal obligations. The 
VEBA benefit plans* fixed income allocation is composed of a variety of fixed income managed accounts 
and mutual fiinds. Investment limitations for these fixed income ftinds axe defined by managea: prospectus. 

Cash Limitations — Cash and cash equivalents are held in each trust to provide hquidity and meet short-
term cash needs. Cash equivalent fimds are used to provide diversification and preserve principal. The 
underiying holdings in the cash fimds are investmeait grade money market instruments, including money 
mariEt mutual fimds, certificates of deposit, treasury biUs, and other types of investment-grade short-term 
debt securities. The cash funds are valued each business day and provide daily hquidity. Prqiected Pension 
Plan and Other Postretheanent Benefits obhgations and funded status as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
are as foUows: 
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CIisi:^e in pjojected bsaefit obligalioa: 
Projected benefit obligation— bc^nning 

of year 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
'F'lsa participants' confaibntJons 
Benefits paid 
Ket actuarial (gaic)/IoES 
Medicare subsidy 
Exjpenses pa id firom assets 

Projected benefit obligation — cad 
of year 

Change ia feir vajtie of plan assets: 
Fair value o f plan assets—beginning 

of year 
Actual i c t am on plan assets 
Expenses p a i d firom assets 
FmplrvypT ^nptrThnrimiC 

Plan participants' conftibiiiions 
Medicare subsidy 
BencSfs pa id 

Fair va lue of plan assets—end 
of y e a r ' 

(Underfimde:<l) sfafni—endofycar 

Pension Plan 
2D12 

5192,294,158 
7,050,298 
M83,604 

-
(3,536,952) 
(9,114,566) 

. -
(69^83) 

195,007,159 

141371,363 
21,180,806 

(69383) 
5^00,000 

-
-

(3^36,952) . 

164,445,834 

S (30^61,325) 

2011 

S I50,799,5S7 
5;235.212 
7,S62,149 

-
(3.142,434) 
31,529,560 

-
(49.916) 

192^94,158 

127,044.744 
11,418.969 

(49,916) 
6,100,000 

-
-

(3,142,434) 

I4l ,37U63 

J (50,922,795) 

Other Postretiremefit 
Benefits 

2012 

5171,866,123 
6,411,493 
7,442.065 

908,758 
(4,449,852) 
7,821.460 

323.844 

-

190323,891 

94>i8,011 
10,538,257 

-
5.957.250 

908,758 
323,844 

(4,449.852) 

108,226,268 

S (82,097,623) 

3311 

5123,680352 
4318.132 , 
6.727,007 

846,824. 
(4.937387) 
40,723,781 

507,614 

-

171,866,123 

92356.147 
288,095 

-
5,891,110 

846.824 
503,422 

(4,937387) 

94,94^,011 

S (76.918,112) 

See Note 1 for loformatioa regarding regulatory assets . related to the Peaasion. Plan and Otiier 
Postretirenaent Benefits plan-
On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States of America signed into law the Medicare 
Prescriptioii Drug, Improvement and Modemi23±ion Act of 2003 (tiie Act). The Act introduced a 
prescription drug benefit to retirees as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit 
plans that provide a prcscriptipD. dmg benefit tiiat is actoarially equivalent to tiie benefit provided by 
Medicare. The Companies beUeve thai the coverage for prescription drugs is at least actuarially equivalent 
to tbe benefits provided by Medicare for most current retirees because Ihe benefits for that group 
substantially exceed the benefits provided by Medicare, thereby allowing Ihe {Ibrnpaaies to qualify for the 
subsidy. Tfce Companies' employer corrtribulions for Other Postretirement Benefits in the above table are 
net of subsidies received of $323,844 and S503,422 for 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Companies have 
accounted for the subsidy as a reduction of the benefit obligation detailed in the above table. The benefit 
obligation was reduced by approximately SO and $500,000 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively. See'Note 7 for changes in ihe tax law s\irroKiidiiigthe new health care bill 

22 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATiON 
AND SUBS/DIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2012 AND 2011 

The accumulated benefit obligatiou for the Pension Plan was $167,595378 and $154,437,821 at 
I>ecember31, 2012and2011,respectively. 

Componeats of Net Periodic Benefit Cost— The Companies record tbe expected cost of Other 
Postretirement Benefits over the service period during which such benefits are earned. 

Pension expense is recognized as amounts are contributed to the Pension Plan and billed to customeis. The 
accumulated diffsence between recorded pension, expense and the yearly net periodic pension expense, as 
calculated under the accomiting guidance for Compensation— Retirement Benefits, is billable as a cost of 
operations under the ICPA when contributed to &e pension fiind. This accumulated digerence has been 
recoided as a regulatory asset ia the accompanying consolidated balance sheets 

pension Pten 
Other postraiireniBnt' 

Benefits 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected rcfura onplaH assets 
AmDitazalion of prior service cost 
RecogEUZcd actuarial jloss 

Total bcneSt cost 

PcnsiDH aad olicx poslretircinaJt bcsicfits 
expense recognized in tiie consolidaicd 
statements of income and icfained eamiogs and 
biQed to Sponsoring Conq>anies under &c ICPA 

2012 

J 7,050;298 
8,383.604 

(8^22,609) 
189,437 

2.086365 

9,187.095 

2011 

; 5^35^12 
7,862,149 

(7,693.957) 
189,437 

5,592.841 

2012 

S 6,411,493 
7,442.065 

(5,516.937) 
(379.000) 

1^77,730 

9,535351 

2011 

S 4^18.132 
6,727.007 

(5,282;524) 
(379.000) 
(133,988) 

5.249.627 

S 5,500,000 £ 6.100,000 S 5,500.000 S 4,908,485 
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The following table presents the classification of Pension Plan assets within the fair value hierarchy at 
December 31, 2012 and 2011: 

Fair Value Measurements at 
Reporting Date Using 

2012 

Domest ic equity 
International and global equity 
Cash anc5 cash equivalents 
U .S . TreLasury securities 
Ck>rporat£ securities 
Miinicm;^} <;«^nrffies 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Market for 
Identical Asse ts 

{Level 1) 

$23,558,247 
17,292;251 
4,924,712 

-
-
-

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ •• 

8,550,837 
~ 

6,804,928 
92,091,492 
l i ;223,367 

Significant 
Unobservabie 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

% 
-
-
-
-
-

Total feix value $45,775,210 S 118,670,624 S 

2011 

Domestic equity 
Eatemalional and global equity 
Cash and cash equivalents 
U-S- Trfcasury securities 

Total fair value 

S21,716,581 
14,047,289 

- 5;302,i74 

$41,066,044 

6,902,062 

93,403,257 _ 

$100,305,319 % 
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The following table presents the dassificalion of VEBA and 401 (h) account assets witoa the fe£r value 
hierarchy at December 31,2012 and 2011: 

Fair Value Measurements at 
Report ing Date Using 

2D12 

Domestic equity 
Mecaational andgbbal equity 
Fixed income muhial funds 
Fixed income securities 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total fair value 

2011 

Domestic equity 
Tnf rraational and global equity 
Fixed ioconie mutual firods 
Cash and cash efpiivalents 

Total fair value 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Market for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

$21,360,870 
22,601305 
48,177,536 

2,504,667 

$94,644,378 

$19,752,467 
31,865,804 
37.8S0;252 

5,449,488 

. $94,948,011 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

13,581,890 

$13,581,890 

$ 

$ 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs , 
(Level 3) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

-

_ 

Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit. Assumptions — Actuarial assumptions used to 
determine benefit obligatioDS at December 31,2012 and 2011, were as follows: 

Discount rate 
Rate o f compecsahon increase 

Pension 
2012 

4^9 % 
3.00 

Plan 
2011 

4-40 % 
4.00 

Benefits 
. 2012 

Medical 

4.40 % 
N/A 

Life 

4 3 0 % 
3.00 

2011 
Medical 

4.40 % 
N/A 

Life 

4.40 % 
4.00 
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Actuarial assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2012 
and 2011, were as follows: 

Pension Plan Other Postretirement Benefits 

Discount rate 
Expected long-terai return on 

plan assets . . 
Rjale of compensation increase 

2012 

4.40 % 

6.00 
4.00 

2011 

5.50 % 

6.00 
4.00 

2012 
Medical Life 

4.40 % 4.40 % 

5.60 6.50 
N/A 4.00 

2011 
Medical 

5.50 % 

5.60 
N/A 

[ 

Life 
5.50 % 

5.60 
400 

In selecting the expected long-tenn rate of return on assets, the Companies considered the average rale of 
earning expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for plan benefits. This included 
considering the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts' asset allocation, as well as the target asset allocations for 
the feture, and the e>^ected returns likely to be earned over the life of the Pension Plan and the VEBAs. 

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates atDecember31,2012 and 2011, were as follo^^. 

Health care trend rate assumed for next year — participants under 65 
Health care treod rate assumed for next year — participants over 65 
Rate to "which tbe cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate 

trend, rate) — participants under 65 
Rate to "which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate 
trend rate) — participants over 65 

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 

2012 

8.00 % 
8.00 

5.00 

5.00 
2019 

2011 

8.50 % 
8.50 

5.00 

5.00 
2019 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on tiie amounts reported for the health care 
plans, A one-percentage-point diange in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following 
eSects: 

Effect o n total service and interest cost 
Effect o n postretirement benefit obUgahon 

One-Percentage 
Point Increase 

$ 3,134,278 
36349,761 

One-Percentage 
Point Decrease 

S (2355,685) 
(28,085,825) 

Pension E*ian, and Other Postretirem.eat Benefit Assets — The asset allocation for the Pension Plan and 
VEBA tnjists at December 31, 2012and2011, by asset categoiy was as follows: 

Asset category: 
Equity securities 
Debt securities 

Pension Plan 
2012 2011 

30 % 30 % 
70 70 

VEBA Trusts 
2012 2011 

41 % 41 % 
59 59 
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pension Plan and Other PosfretiremeDt Benefit Contribntioas — The Clompanies expect to contribute 
$6,400,000 to thdr Pension PJan and $7,661,448 to Iheir Other Postretirement Benefits plan in 2013. 

Estimated Fntare Benefit Paymenfa — The following benefit paycoents, which reflect expected fiitme 
service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid: 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Five years thereafter 

Pension 
Plan 

S 4,175,740 
4,804,038 
5,537,299 
6ji93,997 
7,237,682 

50302,520 

Other 
Postretirefnent 

Benefits 

S 5,651,448 
5.992.604 
6,385,523 
5,983,700 
7,567.996 

45,794,285 

Postemployment Benefits— The Companies follow the accountiDg guidance in Compensation— Non-
Retirement Postemployment Benefits and accrue the estimaled cost of benefits provided to former or 
inactive employees after employment but .before retirement Such benefits include, but are not hmited to, 
salary continuations, ^plcmcntal unemployment, severance, disability (including woricers' 
compeosaiion), job tcaining, counseling, and continuation of benefits, such as health care and life 
insurance coverage. The cost of such benefits and related oUli^tions has been allocated to OVEC and 
IKEC in the accompanying consohdated financial statements. The allocated amoimts represent 
approxioiately a 45% and 55% split between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31, :^12, 
and approximately a 46% and 54% split between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31, 
2011. The liabihty is ofeet with a corresponding regulatory asset and lepreseots unrecognized 
postemployment benefits billable ia the future, to oistomers. The aco^ied cost of such benefits was 
$2,498,759 and $2,412,685 atDecember31, 2012 and2011,respectively. 

Defined Contribution Plan — The Comparues have a trustee-defined contrihurtion supplemental pension 
and. savings plan that includes 401(lc) features and is avaitable to employees who have met eli^bi3ity 
requirements. The Companies' contributions to the savings plan equal 100% of the first 1% aud 50% of 
the next 5% of employee-participants' contribufions. Benefits to participating ctDployees are based solely 
i ^ a amoxmts contributed to the participants' accounts and investment earnings. By its nature, the p W is 
fully funded at all times. The employer contributions for 2012 and 2011 were $1,942,045 and $1,804,270, 
respectively. 

9. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

Title IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments (CAAAs) leqoired the Companies to reduce sulfiir 
dioxide (SO2) emissions in two phases: Phase I in 1995 and Phase H in 2000. The Companies selected a 
fuel switching strategy to comply with the emission reduction requrrcments- Tbe Companies also 

- purchased additional SO2 allowances. The cost of these purdiased allowances has been inventoried and 
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included on an average cost basis in the cost of fuel consmned when used. The cost of unused allowances-
at December 3 J, 2012 and20U, was $86,649 and $28,519, respectively. 

Title r v of the 1990 CAAAs also required the Companies to comply with a nitrogen oxides (NO,/) 
emission rate limit of 0.84 Ib/romBm in 2000. The Companies installed overfire air systems oa all eleven 
units at the plants to conqjly with this limit The total coital cost of the eleven overfire air systems was 
approximately $8.2 million. 

During 2O02 aod 2003, Ohio and Indiana finalized respective NO^ State hiqjlementafion Plan (SIP) Call-
regulations that required firrther sigoificaut NO^ emission reductions for coal-bimiing power plants during 
the ozone control period. The Companies installed selective catalytic reduction (SCR) systems on ten of 
their eleven units to comply with these rules. The total capital cost of the ten SCR systems was 
approximately $355 milliorL 

On March 10, 2005^ the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the U.S. EPA) issued the Clean 
Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) that required fiirther significant reductions of SO2 and NO^ emissions from 
coal-buming power plants. On March 15, 2005, the U.S. EPA also issued the Clean Air Mercury Rule 
(CAMR) that required sigoificant mercury emission rediK;tions for coal-buming power plants. These 
emission reductions were required in two phases: 2009 and 2015 for NO^; 2010 and 2015 for SO^; and 
2010 and 2018 for mercury. Ohio and Indiana subsequentiy finalized their respective versions of CAIR, 
and CAMR_ In response, the Companies determined that it would be necessary to install fine gas 
desulfurization (FGD) systems at both plants to comply with these nsw rules. Following completion of the 
necessary en^eering and permitting, construction was started on the new FGD systems. 

In February 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision which vacated the federal CAMR 
and remanded th.e rule to the U.S. EPA with a determination, that the rule be rewritten under the maximum 
achievable control technologies QAACT) provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act A group of 
electric utihties and the U S . EPA requested a rehearing of the decision, which was denied by the Court, 
Following those denials, both the group of electric utihties and i!t̂  U.S. EPA requested that the 
U-S, Supreme Court hear the case. However, in February 2009, the U.S. EPA withdrew its request and the 
group of utihties' request was denied. These actions left the o r i ^ a l court decision ia place, which 
vacated the federal CAMR. and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA with a deteaninatida that the rule be 
rewritten under the MACT provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act The U.S. EPA has 
subsequentiy written a replacement rule for tbe regulation of coal-fired utility emissions of mercury and 
other hazardous air pollutants. This replacement nile was published in the Federal Register on 
February 16,2012, and it is referred to as the Mercury and Air Toxics Stanc^ds (or MATS) rule. The rule 
became final on April 16, 2012, and OVEC-IKEC must be in compliance by April 15, 2015 (absent 
quali^ring for and securing a one-year extension from the state regulatory agencies). 

In July 2O08, the D.C, Circuit Couri: of Appeals issued a decision that vacated the federal CAIR and 
remanded the r^ile to the U.S. EPA. In. September 2008, the U.S. EPA, a groiip of electric utihties and 
ofrrer parties filed petitions for rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals granted 
the "U.S. EPA'S petition and remanded the rule to theU.S, EPA without vacatur, allowing the federal 
CAIR to remain in effect while a new rule was developed and promulgated Following the remand, the 
U.S. EPA promtilgaied a replacement rule to CAIEL This new rule is called the Cross-Stale Air Pollution 
Rule (CSAPR) and it was issued on Jufy 6, 2011, and it was scheduled to go into effect on January 1, 
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2012. However, on December 30,2011, the D.C. Circuit Court issued an indefinite "stay" of fie CSAPR 
rule imlii the Court considers tbe numerous state, trade association, and industry petitions filed to have the 
rule either stayed or reviewed The Court also instructed the U.S. EPA to keep CAIR in place while they 
consider the numerous petitions. On August 21, 2012, in a 2-1 decision, the D.C. Circuit Court vacated the 
CSAPR rule and ordered ihe U.S. EPA to keep CAJR m effect until a CSAPR replacement rule is 
promulgated- The U.S. EPA and other p ^ e s filed a petition seeking rehearing before the entjie D.C. 
Circuit Court on October 5, 2012, and on January 24, 2013, the Court denied all petitions for rehearing. 

-The U.S. EPA and other parties may r>ow petition the U.S. Supreme Court tO'review the D.C. Circuit 
Court's decision on CSAPR In the intedro, CAIR. wili remain in effect 

3x1 December 2008, the Boards of Directors of the Companies authorized a delay in construction of the 
FGD at the Clifty Creek plant of at least 18 months due to economic unceitainty in the capital markets. 

Ih March 2009, the Boards of Directors also authosazed a delay in tbe tie-in of the FGD systems of ail five 
generating units at the Kyger Creefc plant pending an iuvestigatioa into the stiucturai integrity of the 
internal components of two newly constructed jet bubbling reactors (JBRs), which are m^or components 
of the FGD system. Extensive studies were conducted relating to this design issue, which affected the 
FGD construction projects at both the Kyger Creek and Qifly Creek plants, and as a result, the Boards of 
Directors anthoriad a complete redesign and replacement of the JBR internal components to resolve this 
structural integrity issue. 

ia I>ecember 2010, the Boards of Directors authorized the con^Ietion of the FGD constmction. projects at 
the Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek plants with the tedesi^ and replacement of the JBR internal 
components. The Kyger Creek plant FGD system became fiilly operational during the second quarter of 
2012 and the Clifty Creek plant FGD system is expected to be fuUy operational by the end of the second 
quarter of 2013. One of tiie two FGD systems at Kyger Creek began successful operations in November 
2011. The second FGD at Kyger Creek began operatrog iu the fiist quarter of 20 i 2. 

Additional SQj and NO^ allowances were purchased to operate the Clifty Creek generating units to 
comply withlh^ reiostaied CAIR environmaital emission rules during tibe 2012 comptiance period. "SVith 
the KygCT Creek FGD system now fiiUy operational and with the Clifty Creek FGD systocos scheduled to 
become operational in 2013, and with the 10 SCR Systems operational at both plants, management does 
not currently anticipate the need to purchase additional SO2 allowances in 2013; however, there may be a 
need to purchase limited NO, allowances in 2013 and beyond 

Clifty Creek's two FGD sorubbers are scheduled to come onlineiuMarchandMay of 2013. As aresult, 
OVEC is positioned to meet the anticipated reductions in SO2 and 'tiO^ enussions that are required under 
the CSAPR rule if the U.S. EPA ultimately prevails on its petition before the St^reme Court and CSAPR 
is rein^aied. Alternatively, OVEC is also positioned to meet comparable eroissions reductions that may be 
required by an equivalent replacement rule should the D .C, Circuit Court (kcision. ultimately stand. 

Once ail FGD systems are fiiUy opoiational, OVEC expects to have adequate SO2 allowances available 
without having to rely on market purchases if the CSAPR mles are upheld in their current form; however, 
additional NO^ allowances or additional NO,; controls may be necessary for Clifty Creek Unit 6. 
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Management expects that, with the SCRs and FGD systems fully fimctional, OVEC will be able to meet 
the emissions requirements outlined ia the Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (MATS) rule by the 
April 15, 2015, comptiance deadliae. 

The total cost to complete the new Kyger Creek and Chfty Creek FGD systems and the associated 
landfills is currently estimated not to exceed $1.35 biHion, including the amounts expended to date and 
included in construction in progress in the accompan3ang balance sheets. 

On November 6, 2009, the Companies r^^eived a Section 114 jhiformation Request fiom the U.S. EPA. 
The stat&i purpose of the information request was for the U.S. EPA to obtain the necessary information to 
determine if the Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek plants have been operating m. compliance with the Faierai 
Clean Air Act Attorneys for the Companies subsequentiy contacted the U.S. EPA and established a 
schedule for submission of the requested information. Based on this schedule, all requested iofoimatioa 
was submitted to the U.S. EPA by March 8, 2010. 

In late December 2011, OVEC-DCEC received a letter dated December21, 2011, from the U S . EPA 
requesting fohow-up infonnation. Specifically, the U-S. EPA asked for an update on the stains of the FGD 
scarubber projects at both plants as well as additional information on any other new emissions controls that 
either have heen installed or are planned for installation since the last submittal we filed on March 8, 
2012. This mfonnation "was prepared and filed with tiae U.S. EPA in lale January 2012. In the fall of 2012, 
following an on-site visit, the U.S. BPA made an infcsmal request that OVEC provide the agency with a 
monthly email progress report on the ChSy Creek FGD project until both FGD systems are operationalin 
2013. As of friis date, the only communication OVEC has had witii the U.S. EPA related to either the 
original Section 114 data submittal or the sarpplemental data filiug made in 2011 are the monthly email 
progress reports. 

10. FAJR VAXUE MEASUREMENTS 

The accounting guidance for Financial Instruments requires disclosure of the feir value of certain financial 
- instruments. The estimates of fair value under this guidance require the appfication of broad assumptions 

and estimates. Accordingly, any actual exchange of such financial instruments could occur at values 
significantly different from the amounts disclosed. As cash and cash equivalents, currant receivables, 
current payables, and line of credit borrowing are ail short term ia. nature, their canyiug amounts 
approximate fair value. 

OVEC iitilizes its trastee's extemal pricing service in its estimate of the fair value of the underlying 
investments held in the benefit plan trusts and investment poxtfohos. The Companies' management 
reviews and vahdates the prices utilized by tiae tmstee to determine fair value. Equities and fixed income 
securities are classified as Level 1 holding? if they are actively traded on exchanges. Certain fixed income 
securities do not trade on an exchange and do not have an official closing price. Pridng vendors calculate 
bond valuations using financial models and matiices. Fixed iocome securities are typically classified as 
Level 2 holdings because their valuation inputs are based on observable market data_ Observable inputs 
used for valuing fixed income secinities are benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, 
issuer spreads, bids, offers, and econontic evente. Other securities with model-derived valuation inpuis 
that are observable are also classified as Level 2 investments. luvestmcnis with unobservable valuation 
ixtputs are classified as Level 3 investments. 
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As of DecembCT3I,20i2 and 2011, the Companies held certain assets that are required to be measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis. These consist of investments recorded withitt special deposits and long-
term investments. The special deposits consist of money maricet mutual funds restricted for tise on certain. 
projects. The invesrfccaeats consist of money market mutual fimds, equity mutual funds, and fixed income 
municipal securities. Changes ia the observed trading prices and liquidity of .money roarket fimds are 
monitored as additional support for determiniDg : ^ r value, and unrealized gains and losses are recorded ia 
earnings. 

The mefiDds described above may produce a feir value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflectiye of future feir values, FurthKmbre, whUe the Companies believe their 
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants^ the use of (hfferenf 
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 
different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 

X-ong-Term Investments — Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2012 and 
2011, were as follows: 

2012 

Equity mutual fends 
Fixed income municipal securities 
Cash and cash equiv^ents 

Total feir value;. 

2011. 

Equity mutual fends 
Fixed income municipal ser^urities 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total feir value 

Fair Value Measurements at 
Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Market for 
Identical Assets 

( U v e i l ) 

S2],192,480 

61,009,960 

Sg2;202,440 

$17,515,143 

2,105,486 

S 19,620,629 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2} 

96,088,024 

$96,08S,024 

86,556,577 

SB6,556,577 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

% 

$ 

$ 

Long-Term Debt — The fair values of the senior notes and fixed rale bonds were esfimaled using 
discounted cash flo^w analyses based on cuaent incremental borrowing rales for similar types of 
borrowing sarangemeals. These fair values ace not reflected in the balance sheets. 
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The fair values and recorded valt^s of the senior notes and fixed and variable rale bonds as of 
Decembex 31, 2012 and 201L are as follows: 

20-12 2011 

Senior 2O06 Notes 
2006 Notes Extended 
Senior 2O07 Notes 
2007 N o t e s Extended 
Senior 2O08 Notes 
2008 Notes Exteoded 
Senior 2O09A Notes 
2009A B o n d s 
2009B B o n d s 
2009C B o n d s 
2009D B o n d s 
2O09E B o n d s 
20IOA&BBoDds 

2012A B o n d s 
2012A. Bonds 
2 0 1 2 B & C Bonds 

Total 

Fair Va lue 

351,94.5,355 
80,253,001 

241,074.733 
60,951,383 

262,552;244 
122.856,716 
100,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 • 
25,000,000 
25,000.000 

115,638,000 
100.000,000 

82,7X3,600 
13 0;217,472 
100.000,000 

Recorded Value 

S 292.095,074 
61,252,481 

199.466,104 
46,088,002 

.208,927,670 
• 89,252,972 

100.000.000 
25,000,000 
25.000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 

100,000,000 . 
100,000,000 

77,091,234 
122,312,703 
100.000.000 

Fair Value 

346,562,704 
71,775,275 

238,414,890 
54.417,306 

259,006,749 
109.748.707 
98,520.000 
25.000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 

110,750,000 
100,000,000 

Recprded V a i u e 

S 306.042,656 
62,035,673 

209,264;364 
46.682,085 

218,668,424 
90,309,284 

100,000,000 
25,000,000 
25.000,000 
25,000,000 • 
25,000,000 

100,000,000 
100,000,000 

£ 1,848.202,504 S 1.596.486,240 $1,489.195.631 £ 1333,002.486 

11. LEASES 

OVEC has .entered into operating leases to secure railcars for the transportation of coal in connection with 
the fuel s"witchis.g modifications at the OVEC and the IKEC generating stations. OVEC has railcar lease 
agreements that extend to as long as I>ecember31, 2025, with options to exit the leases under certain 
conditions. The amount in property under capital leases is S2,277,088 with accumulated depreciation of 
$460,693 and $141,434 as of December 31, 2012 aud 2011, respectively. OVEC also has various o&er 
operating leases with other property aud equipmenL During 2012, OVEC tenninated certam railcar lease 
agreements, which resulted in lease terminatibn costs of $3,497,300. A-S of December 31, 2012, OVEC 
had billed. Sponsor Companies $499,614 resiilting in a balance of $2,997,686 that will be recovered fiom 
the Sponsor Companies within the next 12 months. This amount is to be recorded in current regulatory 
assets (see Note 1) and is not iucluded in the lease payments below. 
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Future minimimi lease payments for coital and operating leases at December 31, 2012. areas follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 

Total fatmc EDinimnm lease payments 

L e ^ estimated iatsest element 

'EsSmat&d. present value of future miniroum lease payments 

Operating Capital 

$ 1,834,312 
1,050,918 

850,338 
4,504 

-
-

$ 535,492 
527,119 

- 351,787 
139,313 
119,119 
573,220 

$ 3,740,072 2,246,050 

590,372 

S 1,655,678 

The annual- operating lease cost incurred was $3,310,227 and $3,435,766 for 2012 and 2011, re^ecrively, 
and the annual capital lease cost incurred was $437,084 and $138376 for 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

12. COMMTTMENTSAMDCONITNGENCIES 

The Companies are party to or may be affected by various matters under Utigation. Management believes 
that the ultimate outcome of these matters wiU not have a significant adverse effect on either the 
Companies* future results of operation or financial positron. 

* 4; + * =̂  * 
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To the Board o f Directors of I 
Ohio Valley El&ctric Corporation; I 

We have audited the accompanyrog consohdated financial statements of Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and ; 
its subsidiary company, ladiana-KentucIty Electric Corporation (the "Companies"), which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of ; 
income and retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to tbe consolidated [ 
financial statements. . 

M a n a g e m e n t ' s Responsifailify for t h e Consoiidated Rnancial Sta tements [ 

Management is responsible for the preparation aud fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in : 
accordance witix accounting principles generally accepted in Ihe United States of America; this includes the [ 
design, implementafion, and maintenance of iotemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentafion of \ 
consolidated financial statements that are fi-ee from material misstatement, whether due to fi^ud or error. [ 

A u d i t o r s ' R e s ponsibifify f 
1 

Our re^onsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We i 
conducted our axidils in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. I 
Those standards require that we pl^i and j^rfoim the audit to obtain reasonable assTiianee about whether the ; 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement 

I 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amoimts and disclosures in the i 
consolidated fiixancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the i 
assessment of thxe risks of material misstatement of the consohdated financial statements, whether due to fiaud ; 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the Companies' i 
preparation and iair presentafion of the consohdated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that i 
are appropriate in. the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressiog an. opinion on the eSectiveness of the ; 
Companies' intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinionu An audit also includes evaluafing the 
appropriateness of accounting poUcies used and the reasonableness of sigoificant accounting estimates made by . : 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and ^propriate to provide a basis for our audit ; 
opinion. 

Opinion 

hi our opinion, t i e consohdated financial statements referred to above present feirly, in all material respects, the • 
financial positio-n of the Companies as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operafions and j 
their cash flows- for the years then ended in accordance with acconntiag principles generally accepted in tbe ; 
United States ofAjnerica. r 

D E L O m B & r O U C H E L L P : 

April 10, 2013 
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Net GcDcratJon (MWh) 

Enexgy Delivered (MWh) to: 
. DOE 

Sponsors 

}t^kcirnmn Scheduled (MW) by; 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Power Costs to; 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Average Price {>iWli); 
DOE 
Spceasoics 

Opcralii^ Kevenues 

OpcCTting Expoises 

Cost of Fuel ConsirnKd 

Taxes (frdiaral, state, and local) 

Payroll 

Fuel Burned (tons) 

Heai F nff: (Bti per kWh, 
net ^xieratioa) 

Unit Cost of Ftfcl Bamcd 
(permaiBhi) 

Equivalent Availabilrty (pcxccnl) 

Power Use Factor (percent) 

F-TTipIoyecs (year-end) 

2012 

10,514,762 

207,692 
10,340,568 

36 
Z,i6S 

59,097,000 
S650,027,0[K( 

S43.SC2 
S62.862 

$670,819,000 • 

5599,891,000 

S302,926,(KIO 

511,659,000 

$61^7,000 

• 5,290,009 

10,581 

S2.72 

7S.9 

69.40 

828 

2011 

14,468,168 

253,157 
14,199,025 

39 
2,247 

511,643.000 
5722,153,000 

545.993 
550.859 

5716,938.000 

• 5653,696,000 

5397,543,000 

112,059,000 

557,141.000 

7.310,107 

10,467 

52.63 

83.0 

S9.61 

810 

2010 

14.634,079 

249,139 
14,421,180 

39 

SIL;ZO7,QOQ 

5671,671,000 

S44if84 
54^375 

5690,687.000 

5618,790,000 

5358,507.000 

511,208,000 

555.609,000 

7.506,530 

10310 

5238 

81.0 

92.82 

783 

2009 

15.260,922 

264,664 
15.069.699 

39 
2,212 

511,451,000 
5632,506.000 

$43-266 
541.972 

5645,593,000 

5584,881.000 

5329,448,000 

$12,298,000 

556,589,000 

7,900,894 

10.299 

52,10 

81.6 

96.29 

809 

2008 

15,260,029 ; 

270369 : 
15.026,497 ; 

45 ; 
2,216 ! 

• 

518,539,000 
5605355,000 

568.570 
540.286 

$621,813,000 

5566,798,000 

5340.213,000 

510.808.000 

553,694,000 

7.891.440 

10,236 
i 

i 
• $2.18 i 

1 
80.5 j 

9639 

817 
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Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 
GENERAL OFFICES, 3932 U.S. Route 23 , Piketon, Ohio 45661 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (OVEC) and its wholly 
owned subsidiary, Indiana-Kentucky Electric 
Corporation (IKEC), collectively, the Companies, were 
organized on October 1, 1952. The Companies were 
formed by investor-owned utilities furnishing electric 
service in the Ohio River Valley area and their parent 
holding companies for the purpose of providing the large 
electric power requirements projected for the uranium 
enrichment facilities then under construction by the 
Atomic Energy Commission (AEC) near Poitsmouth, 
Ohio. 

OVEC, AEC and OVEC's owners or their utility-
company affiliates (called Sponsoring Companies) 
entered into power agreements to ensure the availability 
of the AEC's substantial power requirements. On 
October 15, 1952, OVEC and AEC executed a 25-year 
agreenient, which was later extended through 
Decembers!, 2005 (DOE Power Agreement). On 
September 29, 2000, the DOE gave OVEC notice of 
cancellation of the DOE Power Agreement. On April 30, 
2003, the DOE Power Agreement terminated in 
accordance with the notice of cancellation. 

OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies signed an 
Inter-Company Power Agreement (ICPA) on July 10, 
1953, TO support the DOE Power Agreement and provide 
for excess energy sales to the Sponsoring Companies of 
power not utilized by the DOE or its predecessors. Sioce 
the termination of the DOE Power Agreement on 
April 30, 2003, OVEC's entire generating capacity has 
been available to the Sponsoring Companies under the 
terms of the ICPA. The Sponsoring Companies and 
OVEC entered into an Amended and Restated ICPA, 
effective as of August 11, 2011, which extends its term 
to June 30,2040. 

OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant at Cheshire, Ohio, and 
IKEC'S Clifty Creek Plant at Madison, Indiana, have 
nameplate generating capacities of 1,086,300 and 
1,303,560 kilowatts, respectively. These two generating 
stations, both of "which began operation in 1955, are 
connected by a network of 705 circuit miles of 345,000-
volt transmission lines. These lines also interconnect 
with the major power transmission networks of several 
of the utilities serving the area. 

The current Shareholders and their respective 
percentages of equity in OVEC are: 

Allegheny Energy, Inc.^ 3.50 
American Electric Power Company, Inc.* 39.17 
Buckeye Power Generating, LLC^ 18.00 
The Dayton Power and Light Company^ 4.90 
Duke Energy Ohio, Inc." 9.00 
Kentucky Utilities Company^ 2.50 
LouisviUe Gas and Electric Company^ 5.63 
Ohio Edison Company^ 0.85 
Ohio Power Company*** 4.30 
Peninsula Generation Cooperative' 6.65 
Southern Indiana Gas and Electric Company^ 1.50 
The Toledo Edison Company' 4.00 

IQQ.OQ 

These investor-owned utilities comprise the 
Sponsoring Companies and currently share the OVEC 
power participation benefits and requirements in the 
following percentages: 

Allegheny Energy Supply Company LLC^ 3.01 
Appalachian Power Company^ 15.69 
Buckeye Power Generating, LLC^ 18.00 
The Dayton Power and Light Company^ 4.90 
Duke Energy Ohio, Inc."* 9.00 
FirstEnergy Solutions Corp.' 4.85 
Indiana Michigan Power Company* 7.85 
Kentucky Utilities Company^ 2.50 
Louisville Gas and Electric Company^ 5.63 
Monongahela Power Company^ 0.49 
Ohio Power Company* 19.93 
Peninsula Generation Cooperative' 6.65 
Southern Indiana Gas and Electric Company^ 1.50 

100.00 

Some of the Common Stock issued in the name of: 

*American Gas & Electric Company 
**Columbus and Southern Ohio Electric Company 

Subsidiary or affiliate of: 
'FirstEnergy Corp. 
^Buckeye Power, Inc. 
^The AES Corporation 
^Duke Energy Corporation 
^ P L Corporation 
^American Electric Power Company, Inc. 
'Wolverine Power Supply Cooperative, Inc. 
^Vectren Corporation 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

A Message from the President 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and its subsidiary, 
Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation, have begun 
a new journey competing in a volatile power market 
equipped v̂ 'ith new environmental controls and new 
human performance improvement tools to adapt to a 
challenging future. We are partnering witii our 
employees to ensure a zero harm workplace, address 
our challenges, operate our facilities efficiently and 
be the provider of choice for our owners. 

SAFETY 

OVEC and IKEC are committed to providing 
a safe and healthy place to work for all employees. 
lo 2013, the Companies continued making progress 
on their transition to a culture that leads with safety. 
Safely training on human performance improvement 
tools was initiated in 2012 and continued in 2013. 
Strong leadersliip and the involvement of all 
employees and our contractors will help ensure that 
we achieve and sustain the desired goal of zero 
harm. 

FLUE GAS DESULFURIZATION (FGD) PROJECTS 
AND FUTURE ENVIRONMENTAL COMPUANCE 
OBLIGATIONS 

The two FGD scrubbers at Kyger Creek were 
successfully placed into service ia November 2011 
and February 2012. The two Clifty Creek plant 
FGD systems .were successfully placed into service 
in March 2013 and May 2013. All four scrubbers 
continue to meet our environmental performance 
expectations. The pollution control systems installed 
at both plants are also expected to meet emission 
limitations under the Mercury and Air Toxics 
Standards (MATS) beginning in April 2015 as well 
as future requirements under the Cross-State Air 
Pollution Rule (CSAPR), which was recently upheld 
by the U.S. Supreme Court. 

ENERGY SALES 

OVEC's use factor — the ratio of power 
schedxiled by the Sponsoring Companies to power 
available — for the combined on- and off-peak 
periods averaged 75.1 percent in 2013 compared 
with 69.4 percent in 2012. The on-peak use factor 
averaged 89.0 percent in 2013 compared with 

82.9 percent in 2012. The off-peak use factor 
averaged 57.4 percent in 2013 and 52.4 percent in 
2012. 

In 2013, OVEC delivered 10.3 million MWh 
to the Sponsoring Companies, which is the same 
amount delivered in 2012. 

POWER COSTS 

In 2013, OVEC's average power cost to the 
Sponsoring Companies was $65,183 per MWh 
compared with $62,862 per MWh in 2012. The 
total Sponsoring Company power costs were 
$672miUion in 2013 compared with $650 million 
in 2012. The lack of energy sales in 2013 
continued to account for the majority of the 
increased cost per MWh in 2013. Mild weather, 
low energy market prices and competitive natural 
gas generation were all contributing factors for 
lower-than-average energy sales in 2013. 

2014 ENERGY SALES OUTLOOK 

in 2014, the demand for energy improved 
significantly due to below average temperatures 
during the first quarter of 2014 and the increase in 
the cost of natural gas generation. OVEC projects 
that higher natural gas prices will have a significant 
impact on the Sponsors scheduling more of 
OVEC's power m 2014. As a result, OVEC 
anticipates the combined use factor for 2014 will be 
approximately 90 percent, which will result in 
increased energy sales estimated at 12 million 
MWh and average power costs less than $55 per 
MWh. 

COST CONTROL INITIATIVES 

In 2013, OVEC continued its engagement of 
employees in a continuous improvement initiative 
to control costs, improve operating performance 
and explore opportunities to enhance the value of 
the OVEC investment. These lean activities, 
developed and implemented by OVEC employees, 
are producing process improvements and 
sustainable savings tiiat translate into meaningful 
improvements. The continuous improvement team 
efforts are changing the culture of our Company, 



impacting our decision making and leading the way 
toward how we plan to do business in the future. 

ENTERPRISE ASSET MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

The OVEC Enterprise Asset Management 
(EAM) System was placed into service on 
August 12, 2013, after a team of OVEC employees 
spent over one year at the vendor's location 
developing and installing the system. The use of an 
EAM System allows the integration of core 
functionality within OVEC, including work 
management, labor entry, inventory management, 
purchasing and contracts management, project 
management and various accounting functions. 
Some of the benefits of the system include a 
transition from reactive maintenance to proactive 
maintenance, better data for informed decision 
making and standardized work practices and 
processes. 

OVEC FERC ORDER 1000 COWIPUANCE 

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(FERC) Order 1000 issued in July 2011 requires 
transmission providers, including OVEC, to 
participate in regional and interregional 
transmission planning. Because OVEC is not a 
member of a Regional Transmission Organization 
thai provides such planning to its members, OVEC 
partnered with LG&E/KU to join the Southeast 
Regional Transmission Planning (SERTP) group. 
The SERTP had been formed in 2007 by a group of 
utilities led by Southern Company. Working with 
this group, OVEC was able to submit a compliance 
filing to the FERC for the regional plaiming portion 
of Order 1000 in February 2013. On July 18, 2013, 
FERC issued a ruling on this filing accepting in part 
and rejecting in part certain provisions of the,. 
regional filing. Among the terms rejected were the 
Cost Allocation Methodology based on avoided 
construction costs and addressing Public Policy 
Requirements. On January 14, 2014, OVEC and its 
SERTP partners filed revisions to correct the issues 
identified by FERC. A ruling on this filing is 
expected later this summer. A ruling on the 
interregional filing made last July is also expected 
this summer. 

DOE ARRANGEMENTS WITH O V E C 

In 2013, OVEC purchased 230,042 MWh of 
power and energy from other electricity suppliers 
for delivery and use by the Department of Energy 
(DOE) for its Portsmouth facility. At the request of 
the DOE, OVEC makes these limited purchases of 

power and energy under the terms and conditions of 
an Arranged Power Agreement with the DOE. 

As ordered by the FERC, the North American 
Electric Reliability Coiporation (NERC) registered 
OVEC as the load-serving entity for the DOE load 
at the Portsmouth facility. OVEC is working with 
Sponsor representatives to mitigate any impacts, 
other than additional NERC compliance 
obligations, that could result firom this additional 
NERC registration. Discussions continue with the 
DOE on assuming responsibility for the remaining 
high-voltage substation at the facility. OVEC 
continues to explore other options for providing 
power and energy to the DOE. 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

OVEC and IKEC have a strong commitment 
to maintain compliance with all applicable federal, 
state and local environmental rules and regulations. 
During 2013, the Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek 
plants operated in compliance with their respective 
air emission limits. The Companies received no 
enforcement actions or fines from any of the 
environmental agencies responsible for overseeing 
the status of our environmental compliance 
activities. In addition, we have begim marketing 
the gypsum generated from our new scrubber 
operations as an agricultural soil amendment and 
are preparing to meet boiler tuning and optimization 
obligations under MATS. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS CHANGES 

In August 2013, Philip R. Herrington, 
president, competitive generation of AES U.S. 
Strategic Business Unit, was elected to serve as a 
director of OVEC following the resignation of 
Dermis A. Lantzy. Mr. Lantzy had served on the 
OVEC board since 2012. In June 2014, William S. 
Doty, executive vice president — utility operations 
of Vectren Corporation, resigned as a director of 
OVEC and IKEC. 

]n January 2014, David E. Jones retired as 
vice president-operations of OVEC and EKEC. He 
had served as vice president-operations of both 
Companies since 1990. 

Nicholas K. Akins 
President 

June 30,2014 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT: 
At original cost 
Less — accumulated provisions for depreciation 

Construction in progress 

Total electric plant 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel in storage 
Materials and supplies 
Property taxes applicable to future years 
Emission allowances 
Deferred tax assets 
Income taxes receivable 
Regulatory assets 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

REGULATORY ASSETS: 
Unrecognized postemployment benefits 
Pension benefits 
Postretirement benefits 

Total regulatory assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER: 
Unamortized debt expense 
Deferred tax assets 
Long-term investments 
Special deposits — restricted 
Other 

Total deferred charges and other 

2013 

2,671,807,219 
1,182,491,224 

1,489,315,995 

30,583,795 

1,519,899,790 

70,757,710 
35,332,653 
43,020,394 
32,564,435 
2,702,905 

62,428 
9,980,768 
3,331,536 

371,297 
2,244,413 

200,368,539 

2,078,864 
8,542,293 

10,621,157 

13,401,209 
19,432,479 

117,106,668 

488,407 

150,428,763 

2012 

1,985,645,118 
1,115,363,691 

870,281,427 

645,484,896 

1,515,766,323 

19,924,318 
36,952,825 
79,550,095 
27,464,418 

2,503,440 
86,649 

18,302,793 
15,832,666 
8,277,357 
2,168,143 

211,062,704 

2,498,759 
30,561,325 

1,324,775 

34,384,859 

14,485,787 
22,265,884 

120,351,712 
57,938,752 

103,107 

215,145,242 

TOTAL $ 1,881,318,249 $ 1,976,359,128 

(Continued) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

CAPITALIZATION: 
Common stock, $100 par value — authorized, 300,000 shares; 

outstanding, 100,000 shares in 2013 and 2012 
Long-term debt 
Line of credit borrowings 
Retained earnings 

Total capitalization 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accrued other taxes 
Regulatory liabilities 
Accrued interest and other 

Total current liabilities 

COMMrrMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 3, 11, 12) 

REGULATORY LIABILITIES: 
Postretirement benefits 
Decommissioning and demolition 
Investment tax credits 
Net antitrust settlement 
Income taxes refundable to customers 

Total regulatory liabilities 

OTHER LIABILITIES: 
Pension liability 
Asset retirement obligations 
Postretirement benefits obligation 
Postemployment benefits obligation 
Other noQ-current liabilities 

Total other liabilities 

TOTAL 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2013 

10,000,000 
1,267,873,554 

30,000,000 
6,478,234 

1,314,351,788 

290,496,381 
50,131,367 
9,062,813 

27,406,208 
28,145,464 

405,242,233 

32,619,457 
19,140,730 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

28,380,282 

85,357,544 

8,542,293 
22,230,109 
42,173,401 
2,078,864 
1,342,017 

76,366,684 

2012 

: 10,000,000 
1,358,347,337 

60,000,000 
5,293,968 

1,433,641,305 

238,138,903 
53,916,997 
8,651,108 

21,975,974 
25,822,574 

348,505,556 

14,230,459 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

38,645,647 

58,093,181 

30,561,325 
20,961,379 
82,097,623 
2,498,759 

136,119,086 

$1,881,318,249 $1,976,359,128 

(Concluded) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

2013 2012 

OPERATING REVENUES — Sales of electi-ic energy to: 
Department of Energy 
Sponsorhig Companies 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Fuel and emission allowances consumed in operation 
Purchased power 
Other operation 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Taxes — other than income taxes 
Income taxes 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME 

OTHER INCOME 

INCOME BEFORE INTEREST CHARGES 

INTEREST CHARGES: 
Amortization of debt expense 
Interest expense 

Total interest charges 

NET fNTCOME 

RETAINED EAJtMNGS -— Begirming of year 

CASH DIVIDENDS ON COMMON STOCK 

RETAINED EARNINGS — End of year 

; 9,281,567 $ 9,097,306 
666,367,706 661,721,951 

675,649,273 

311,899,995 
8,763,157 

98,197,470 
83,396,811 
80,172,750 
11,421,154 

890,377 

594,741,714 

80,907,559 

530,109 

81,437,668 

5,166,736 
74,086,666 

79,253,402 

2,184,266 

5,293,968 

(1,000,000) 

670,819,257 

302,925,697 
8,552,565 

101,967,242 
89,645,354 
85,140,820 
10,765,327 

893,533 

599,890,538 

70,928,719 

10,920,111 

81,848,830 

4,606,617 
74,985,523 

79,592,140. 

2,256,690 

4,037,278 

(1,000,000) 

$ 6,478,234 $ 5,293,968 

See notes to consolidated fmancial statements. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

OPERATING ACTrvrHES: 
Net income 
Adj'iostments fo reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Amortization of debt expense 
E>eferred taxes/refundable taxes 
(Gain) on marketable securities 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel in storage 
Materials and supplies 
Property taxes applicable to ftiturc years 
Emission allowances 
Income taxes receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other 
Other regulatory assets 
Other assets 
Other noncurroit assets 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue — advances for construction 
Accrued taxes 
Accrued interest and other 
Other liabilities 
Other regulatory liabilities 

Net cash provided hy operating activities 

INVESTING ACTTVITIES: 
Electric plant additions 
Proceeds from sale of LT investments 
Purchases of long-term investments 

Net cash used in investing activities 

HNANCING ACTIVmES: 
Issuance of Senior 2012 Bonds 
Issuance of Senior 2010 Bonds 
Loan origination cost 
Repayment of Senior 2006 Notes 
Repayment of Sem'or 2007 Notes 
Repayment of Senior 2008 Notes 
Proceeds from line of credit 
Payments on line of credit 
Dividends on common stock 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

NET INCREASE PECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES: 
Interest piaid 

Income taxes paid (received) — net 

NonKjash electric plant additions included in accounts payable at December 31 

2013 

2,184,266 $ 

2012 

2,256,690 

80,172,750 
5,166,736 

890,065 
4,331.444 

1,620,172 
36,529,701 
(5,100,017) 

(199,465) 
24,221 

12,501,130 
(76,270) 

46,467,540 

(385,300) 
(829,201) 

411,706 
2,322,890 

(59,752,402) 
28,162,184 

154,442.150 

(87,262,647) 
97,023,136 

(40,170.784) 

(30.410,295) 

. 

(4,059,559) 
(15,602,389) 
(11,017,149) 
(11,519,366) 
10,000,000 

(40,000,000) 
(1,000,000) 

(73.198,463). 

50,833,392 

19.924.318 

$ 70,757,710 S 

S 74,902,175 S 

$ (12.501,572) S 

$ 5,697,686 $ 

85,140,820 
4,606,617 
2,908,239 

(6,345,075) 

3,948,625 
(7,853,097) 

341,497 
18,480 

(58,130) 
(14,391,215) 

(260,491) 
11,638,471 

119,375 
2,571,729 

(11,694.904) 
(160,864) 

2,912,675 
(13,943,822) 

5.248,035 

67,003,655 

(203,169,352) 
20,342,154 

(86,110,337) 

(268,937,535) 

299.403,938 

(5,377,779) 
(14,730,774) 
(10,392,343) 
(10,797,067) 
160,000,000 

(200,000,000) 
(1,000,000) 

217,105,975 

15,172,095 

4,752,223 

19,924,318 

74,160,30? 

12,504.500 

8,654,116 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Consolidated Financial Statements — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (OVEC) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Indiana-Kentucky Electric 
Corporation (IKEC), collectively, the Companies. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Organization— The Companies own two generating stations located in Ohio and Indiana with a 
combined electric production capability of approximately 2,256 megawatts. OVEC is owned by several 
investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and two affiliates of generation and transmission 
rural electric cooperatives. These entities or their afifiliales comprise the Sponsoring Companies. The 
Sponsoring Companies purchase power from OVEC according to the terms of the Inter-Company Power 
Agreement (ICPA), which has a current termination date of June 30, 2040. Approximately 27% of the 
Companies' employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement that expires August 31, 2014. 

Prior to 2004, OVEC's primary commercial customer was the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE). The 
contract to provide OVEC-generated power to the DOE was tenninated in 2003 and all obligations were 
settled at that time. Currently, OVEC has an agreement to arrange for the purchase of power (Arranged 
Power), imder the dkection of the DOE, for resale directly to the DOE. All purchase costs are billable by 
OVEC to the DOE. 

Rate Regulation — The proceeds from the sale of power to the Sponsoring Companies are designed to be 
sufficient for OVEC to meet its operating expenses and fixed costs, as well as earn a return on equity 
before federal income taxes. In addition, the proceeds from power sales are designed to cover debt 
amortization and interest expense associated with financings. The Companies have continued and expect 
to continue to operate pursuant to the cost plus rate of return recovery provisions at least to June 30,2040, 
the date of termination of the ICPA. 

The accounting guidance for Regulated Operations provides that rate-regulated utilities account for and 
report assets and liabilities consistent with the economic effect of the way in which rates are established, if 
the rates established are designed to recover the costs of providing the regulated service and it is probable 
that such rates can be charged and collected. The Companies follow the accounting and reporting 
requirements in accordance with the guidance for Regulated Operations. Certain expenses and credits 
subject to utility regulation or rate determination normally reflected in income are deferred on the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are recognized in income as the related amounts are 
included in service rates and recovered from or refiinded to customers. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2013 AND 2012 

The Companies' regulatory assets, liabilities, and amounts authorized for recovery through Sponsor 
billings at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as foUows: 

Regulatory assets; 
Current assets; 

Lease tennination costs/liquidated damages 
Unrecognized loss on coal sales 

Total 

Other assets: 
Unrecognized postemployment benefits 
Pension benefits 
Postretirement benefits 

Total 

Total regulatory assets 

Regulatory liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Deferred credit — EPA emission allowance proceeds 
Deferred revenue — voluntary severance 
Deferred revenue — advances for construction 
Deferred credit — gain on coal sale 
Deferred credit — advance collection of interest 

Total 

Other liabilities: 
Post retirement benefits 
Decommissiomng and demolition 
Investment tax credits 
Net antitrust settlement 
Income taxes refimdable to customers 

Total 

Total regulatory liabilities 

2013 

$ 371,297 

371,297 

2,078,864 
8,542,293 

10,621,157 

275,108 
1,510,609 

23,158,632 
246,701 

2,215,158 

27,406,208 

32,619,457 
19,140,730 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

28,380,282 

85,357,544 

2012 

$ 5,225,467 
3,051,890 

8,277,357 

2,498,759 
30,561,325 

1,324,775 

34,384,859 

$ 10,992,454 $ 42,662,216 

274,687 

19,389,380 

2,311,907 

21,975,974 

14,230,459 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

38,645,647 

58,093,181 

$ 112,763,752 $ 80,069,155 

Regulatory Assets — Regulatory assets consist primarily of pension benefit costs, postretirement benefit 
costs and income taxes billable to customers. Income taxes billable to customers are billed to customers in 
the period when the related deferred tax liabilities are realized. The fuel related costs, including railcar 
lease termination costs and liquidated damages, will be billed to customers in 2014. All other regulatoiy 
assets are being recovered on a long-term basis. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

Regulatory Liabilities— The regulatory liabilities classified as current in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013, consist primarily of interest expense collected from 
customers in advance of expense recognition, customer billings for construction in progress, and voluntary 
severance payments collected in advance of expense recognition. These amounts will be credited to 
customer bills during 2014. In October 2013, OVEC annoutnced a voluntary severance program for active 
employees who would be retirement-eligible by the end of 2014. Approved employees in the program are 
entitled to receive a one-time severance payment and would retire on an agreed-upon date after they are 
retirement-eligible, but not later than January 1, 2015. Total expected costs related to the one-tune 
payments are $4.6 million for OVEC and $1.6 million for KEC, of which $3.5 million for OVEC and 
$1.2 million for EECEC has been expensed in 2013 recorded in the Other Operation under Operating 
Expenses. As the Companies have collected the entire expected costs from Sponsor Companies as of 
December 31, 2013, the remaining $1.1 million for OVEC and $0.4 million for IKEC to be expensed 
during 2014 has been recorded as a current regulatory liability at December 31, 2013. Other regulatory 
liabilities consist primarily of income taxes refimdable to customers, postretirement benefits, and 
decommissioning and demolition costs. Income taxes refimdable to customers are credited to customer 
bills in the period when the related deferred tax assets are realized. The Companies' ratemaking policy 
will recover postretirement benefits in an amount equal to estimated benefit accrual cost plus amortization 
of unfunded liabihties, if any. As a result, related regulatory liabilities are being credited to customer bills 
on a long-term basis. The remaining regulatory liabilities are awaiting credit to customer bUIs in a future 
period that is yet to be detennhied. 

In 2003, the DOE terminated the DOE Power Agreement with OVEC, entitling the Sponsoring 
Companies to 100% of OVEC's generating capacity under the terms of the ICPA. Under the terms of the 
DOE Power Agreement, OVEC was entitled to receive a "termination payment" from the DOE to recover 
unbilled costs upon tennination of the agreement. The termination payment included unbilled 
postretirement benefit costs. Jsx 2003, OVEC recorded a settlement payment of $97 million for the DOE 
obligation related to postretirement benefit costs. The regulatory liability for postretirement benefits 
recorded at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, represents amounts collected in historical billuigs 
in excess of the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) net periodic benefit costs, including 
the DOE termination payment and incremental unfimded plan obligations recognized in the balance sheets 
but not yet recognizable in GAAP net periodic benefit costs. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents— Cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of cash and money market 
fimds and their carrying value approximates fair value. For purposes of these statements, the Companies 
consider temporary cash investments to be cash equivalents since they are readily convertible into cash 
and have original maturities of less than ihree months. 

Electric Plant— Property additions and replacements are charged to utility plant accounts. Depreciation 
expense is recorded at the time property additions and replacements are billed to customers or at the date 
the property is placed in service if tihe in-service date occurs subsequent to the customer billing. Customer 
billings for constmction in progress are recorded as deferred revenue-advances for constmction. These 
amounts are closed to revenue at the time the related property is placed in service. Depreciation expense 
and accumulated depreciation are recorded when financed property additions and replacements are 
recovered over a period of years throtigh customer debt retirement billing. All depreciable property will be 
fully billed and depreciated prior to the expkation of the ICPA. Repairs of property are charged to 
maintenance expense. 

10 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

Fuel in Storage, Emission Allowances, and Materials and Supplies — The Companies maintain coal, 
. reagent, and oil inventories for use in the generation of electricity and emission allowance inventories for 
regulatory compliance purposes due to the generation of electricity. These inventories are valued at 
average cost, less reserves for obsolescence. Materials and supplies consist primarily of replacement parts 
necessary to maintain the generating facilities and are valued at average cost. 

Long-Term Investments — Long-term investments consist of marketable securities that are held for the 
purpose of funding postretirement benefits and decommissioning and demolition costs. These securities 
have been classified as trading securities in accordance with the provisions of the accounting guidance for 
Investments — Debt and Equity Securities. Trading securities reflected in Long-Tenn hivestments are 
carried at fair value with the unrealized gain or loss, reported in Other Income (Expense). The cost of 
securities sold is based on the specific identification cost method. The fair value of most investment 
securities is determined by reference to currently available market prices. Where quoted market prices are 
not available, we use the market price of similar types of securities that are traded in the market to 
estimate fair value. See Fair Value Measurements in Note 10. Due to tax Hmitations, the amounts held in 
tile postretirement benefits portfolio have not yet been transferred to the Voluntary Employee Beneficiary 
Association (VEBA) trusts (see Note 8). Long-term investments primarily consist of municipal bonds, 
money market mutual fund investments, and mutual fimds. Net unrealized gains (losses) recognized 
during 2013 and 2012 on securities still held at the balance sheets date were $(3,698,604) and $6,250,092, 
respectively. 

Special Deposits — Special deposits at December 31, 2012 consisted of money market mutual fimds held 
by trustees restricted for use in specific construction projects. The fair value of special deposits was $0 
and $57,938,752 at December 31,2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. 

Money market mutual fimds reflected in special deposits were carried at fair value with the related 
investment income reported in Other Income. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific 
identification method. The fair value of money market mutual fiinds is determined by reference to 
currently available market prices and, as such, is considered Level 1. There were no unrealized gains or 
losses recognized on this portfolio during 2013 or 2012. These funds were used for construction in 2013. 

Fair Value Measurements of Assets and Liabilities— The accounting guidance for Fair Value 
Measurements and Disclosures establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure 
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to imobservable inputs 
(Level 3 measurements). Where observable inputs are available, prichig may be completed using 
comparable securities, dealer values and general market conditions to determine fair value. Valuation 
models utilize various inputs that include quoted prices for shnilar assets or liabilities in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in mactive markets and other observable inputs 
for the asset or liability. 

Unamortized Debt Expense— Unamortized debt expense relates to loan origination costs incurred to 
secure fmancing. These costs are being amortized using the effective yield method over the life of the 
related loans. 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNANClAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

Asset Retirement Obligations and Asset Retirement Costs — The Companies recognize the fair value 
of legal obligations associated with the retirement or removal of long-lived assets at the time the 
obligations are incurred and can be reasonably estimated. The initial recognition of this liability is 
accompanied by a corresponding increase in depreciable electric plant. Subsequent to the initial 
recognition, the liability is adjusted for any revisions to the expected value of the retirement obligation 
(with corresponding adjustments to electric plant) and for accretion of the liability due to the passage of 
time. 

These asset retirement obligations are primarily related to obligations associated with future asbestos 
abatement at certain generatmg stations and certain plant closure costs. 

Balance— January 1,2012 $19,809,316 

Accretion 1,429,394 
Liabilities settied (277,331) 

Balance — December 31, 2012 20,961,3 79 

Accretion 1,450,943 
Liabihties settied (182,213) 

Balance — December 31, 2013 $22,230,109 

The Companies do not recognize liabilities for asset retirement obligations for which the fair value cannot 
be reasonably estimated. The Companies have asset retfrement obligations associated with transmission 
assets at certain generathig stations. However, the retirement date for these assets cannot be determmed; 
therefore, the fair value of the associated hability currently cannot be estimated and no amounts are 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements herein. 

Income Taxes — The Companies use the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the 
liability method, the Companies provide deferred income taxes for all temporary differences between the 
book and tax basis of assets and liabilities which will result in a future tax consequence. The Companies 
account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the accounting guidance for Income Taxes. 

Use of Estimates — The preparation of consolidated fmancial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make esthnates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Acmal results could differ from those estimates. 

Subsequent Events— In preparing the accompanying fmancial statements and disclosures, the 
Companies reviewed subsequent events through April 16, 2014, which is the date the consohdated 
financial statements were issued. 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

2. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions with the Sponsoring Companies during 2013 and 2012 included the sale of all generated 
power to them, the purchase of Arranged Power from them and other utility systems in order to meet the 
Department of Energy's power requirements, contract barging services, railcar services, and minor 
transactions for services and materials. The Companies have Power Agreements with Louisville Gas and 
Electric Company, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Power and Light Company, Kentucky Utilities 
Company, Ohio Edison Company, and American Electric Power Service Corporation as agent for the 
American Electric Power System Companies; and Transmission Service Agreements with Louisville Gas 
and Electric Company, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Power and Light Company, The Toledo 
Edison Company, Ohio Edison Company, Kentucky Utilities Company, and American Electric Power 
Service Corporation as agent for the American Electric Power System Companies. 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, balances due from the Sponsoring Companies are as follows: 

2013 2012 

Accounts receivable $31,129,486 $34,343,741 

During 2013 and 2012, American Electric Power accounted for approximately 43% of operating revenues 
from Sponsoring Companies and Buckeye Power accounted for approximately 18%. No other Sponsoring 
Company accounted for more than 10%. 

American Electric Power Company, Inc. and subsidiary company owned 43.47% of the common stock of 
OVEC as of December31, 2013. The following is a summary of fbe principal services received from the 
American Electric Power Service Corporation as authorized by the Companies' Boards of Directors: 

2013 2012 

General services $ 3,384,509 $ 3,216,482 
Specific projects 10,964,133 12,746,357 

Total $14,348,642 $15,962,839 

General services consist of regular recurring operation and maintenance services. Specific projects 
primarily represent nonrecurring plant construction projects and engineering studies, which are approved 
by the Companies' Boards of Directors. The services are provided in accordance with the service 
agreement dated December 15, 1956, between the Companies and the American Electric Power Service 
Corporation. 

3. COAL SUPPLY 

The Companies have coal supply agreements with certain nonaffiliated companies that expire at various 
dates from the year 2014 through 2017. Pricing for coal under these contracts is subject to contract 
provisions and adjustments. The Companies currently have approximately 90% of their 2014 coal 
requfrements under contract. These contracts are based on rates in effect at the time of purchase. 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

4. ELECTRIC PLANT 

Electric plant at December 31,2013 and 2012, consists of the following: 

2013 2012 

Steam production plant $2,582,429,102 $1,898,140,562 
Transmission plant 76,855,762 74,777,994 
General plant 12,495,791 12,699,998 
hitangible 26,564 26,564 

2,671,807,219 1,985,645,118 

Less accumulated depreciation 1,182,491,224 1,115,363,691 

1,489,315,995 870,281,427 

Constriction in progress 30,583,795 645,484,896 

Total electric plant $1,519,899,790 $1,515,766,323 

All property additions and replacements are fully depreciated on the date the property is placed in service, 
unless the addition or replacement relates to a financed project. The majority of financed projects placed 
in service over the past 5 years have been recorded to steam production plant with depreciable lives 
ranging from 32 to 45 years. However, as the Companies' policy is to bill m accordance with the principal 
billings of the debt agreements, all financed projects are being depreciated in line with principal payments 
on outstanduig debt. 

5. BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS AND NOTES 

OVEC has an unsecured bank revolvk^ line of credit agreement with a borrowing limit of $275 million as 
of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. The $275 million line of credit has an exphration date of 
June 18, 2015. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, OVEC had borrowed $30 million and $60 milhon, 
respectively, under this line of credit. Interest expense related to line of credit borrowings was $634,109 in 
2013 and $3,139,158 in 2012. During 2013 and 2012, OVEC incurred annual commitment fees of 
$737,792 and $412,458, respectively, based on the borrowing limits of the fine of credit. 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

6. L O N G - T E R M D E B T 

The following amounts were outstanding at December 31 , 2013 and 2012; 

Senior 2006 Notes: 
2006A due February 15, 2026 
2006B due June 15, 2040 

Senior 2007 Notes: 
2007A-A due February 15,2026 
2007A-B due February 15, 2026 
2007A-C due February 15, 2026 
2007B-A due June 15,2040 
2007B-B due June 15, 2040 
2007B-C due June 15,2040 

Senior 2008 Notes: 
2008A due Febmaiy 15, 2026 
2008B due February 15, 2026 
2008C due February 15, 2026 
2008D due June 15, 2040 
2008E due June 15, 2040 

Series 2009 Notes: 
2009A due February 15, 2013 
Series 2009 Bonds: 

2009A due February I, 2026 
2009B due February 1, 2026 
2009C due February 1, 2026 
2009D due February 1, 2026 
2009B due October 1, 2019 

Series 2010 Bonds: 
2010A due June 29, 2014 
2010B due June 29, 2016 

Series 2012 Bonds: 
2012A due Junel ,2032(a) 
2012A due June 1, 2039 (a) 
2012B due June 1,2040 
2012C due June 1,2040 

Series 2013 Notes: 
2013A due February 15, 2018 

Total debt 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Total long-term debt 

(a) 2012A Bonds are net of unamortized discouat of $573,465 at December 31, 2013 and $596,063 at December 31, 2012 

15 

Interest 
Rate 

5.80 % 
6.40 

5.90 
5.90 
5.90 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 

5.92 
6.71 
6.71 
6.91 
6.91 

1.96 

0.48 
0.48 
0.60 
0.60 
5.63 

2.16 
2.16 

5.00 
5.00 
0.60 
0.60 

1.67 

2013 

$ 277,326,804 
60,418,362 

125,578,853 
31,625,801 
31,877,625 
30,188,693 

7,602,725 
7,663,261 

39,185,975 
78,865,206 
80,487,688 
43,681,707 
44,440,700 

-

25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 

100,000,000 

50,000,000 
50,000,000 

77,080,192 
122,346,343 
50,000,000 
50,000,000 

100,000,000 

1,558,369,935 

290,496,381 

$ 1,267,873,554 

2012 

$ 292,095,074 
61,252,481 

132,475,263 
33,362,594 
33,628,247 
30,609,314 

7,708,654 
7,770,034 

41,334,943 
83,014,206 
84,578,521 
44,242,121 
45,010,851 

100,000,000 

25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 

100,000,000 

50,000,000 
50,000,000 

77,091,234 
122,312,703 
50,000,000 
50,000,000 

-

1,596,486,240 

238,138,903 

$ 1,358,347,337 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

All of the OVEC amortizing unsecured senior notes have maturities scheduled for February 15, 2026, or 
June 15, 2040, as noted in the previous table. 

During 2009, OVEC issued $100 million variable rate non-amortizing imsecured senior notes (2009A 
Notes) in private placement, a series of four $25 million variable rate non-amortizing tax exempt pollution 
control bonds (2009A, B, C, and D Bonds), and $100 million fixed rate non-amortizing tax exempt 
pollution control bonds (2009E Bonds). The variable rates listed above reflect the interest rate in effect at 
December 31,2013. 

The 2009 Series A, B, C, and D Bonds are secured by irrevocable transferable direct-pay letters of credit, 
expiring August 12, 2016, and August 21, 2016, issued for the benefit of the owners of the bonds. The 
interest rates on the bonds are adjusted weekly, and bondholders may require repurchase of the bonds at 
the time of such interest rate adjustments. OVEC has entered into an agreement to provide for the 
remarketing of the bonds if such repurchase is required. The 2009A, B, C, and D Series Bonds are current, 
as they are callable at any tune. 

In December 2010, OVEC established a borrowing facility under which OVEC borrowed, in 2011, 
$100 milhon variable rate bonds due February 1, 2040. In June 2011, the $100 million variable rate bonds 
were issued as two $50 million non-amortizing pollution control revenue bonds (Series 2010A and 
2010B) with initial interest periods of three years and five y^rs, respectively. 

During 2012, OVEC issued $200 million fixed rate tax-exempt midwestem disaster relief revenue bonds 
(2012A Bonds) and two series of $50 million variable rate tax-exempt midwestem disaster relief revenue 
bonds (2012B and 2012C Bonds). The 2012A, 2012B, and 2012C Bonds will begin amortizing June 1, 
2027, to then: respective maturity dates. The variable rates listed above reflect the interest rate ui effect at 
December 31, 2013. 

The 2012B and 2012C Bonds are secured by irrevocable transferable direct-pay letters of credit, expiring 
June 28, 2014, and June 28, 2015, issued for the benefit of the owners of the bonds. The interest rates on 
the bonds are adjusted weekly, and bondholders may reqmre repurchase of the bonds at the tune of siich 
interest rate adjustments. OVEC has entered into agreements to provide for the remarketing of the bonds if 
such repurchase is required. The 2012B and 2012C Bonds are current, as they are callable at any time. 

In 2013, the $100 milhon 2009A Notes were retired on February 15, 2013, with funding from the issuance 
of $100 million 2013A variable rate non-amortizing unsecured senior notes (2013A Notes). The 2013A 
Notes mature on February 15, 2018. 

16 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATiON 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

The annual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2013, are as follows: 

2014 $ 290,496,381 
2015 42,977,594 
2016 95,536,872 
2017 48,461,307 
2018 51,460,006 
2019-2040 1,029,437,775 

Total $1,558,369,935 

Note that the 2014 current maturities of long-term debt include $200 million of remarketable variable-rate 
bonds. The Companies expect cash maturities of only $40,496,382 to the extent the remarketing agents 
are successful in their ongoing efforts to remarket the bonds through the contractual maturity dates in 
February 2026 and June 2040. 

7. INCOME TAXES 

OVEC and IKEC file a consolidated federal mcome tax return. The effective tax rate varied from the 
statutory federal income tax rate due to differences between the book and tax treatment of various 
transactions as follows: 

2013 2012 

Income tax expense at 35% statiitory rate $ 1,076,125 $ 1,102,283 
State income taxes — net of federal benefit - 549 
Temporary differences flowed through to customer bills (212,144) (224,609) 
Permanent differences and other 26,396 15,310 

Income tax provision S 890,377 $ 893,533 

Components of the income tax provision were as follows: 

2013 2012 

Current mcome tax (benefit)/expense $ - $ (9,609,247) 
Deferred income tax expense/(benefit) 890,377 10,502,780 

Total income tax provision $890,377 $ 893,533 

OVEC and IKEC record deferred tax assets and liabilities based on differences between book and tax 
basis of assets and liabilities measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the 
differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for changes in tax rates. 
The deferred tax assets recorded in the accompany mg consolidated balance sheets consist primarily of the 
net deferred taxes on depreciation, postietiremcnt benefits obligation, asset retirement obligations, 
regulatory assets, and regulatory liabihties. 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2013 AND 2012 

To the extent that the Companies have not reflected credits in customer billings for deferred tax assets, 
they have recorded a regulatory liability representing income taxes refundable to customers tmder the 
applicable agreements among the parties. The regulatory liability was $28,380,282 and $38,645,647 at 
December31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) at December 31,2012 and 2011, consisted of the following: 

2013 2012 

Deferred tax assets: 
Deferred revenue — advances for construction 
AMT credit carryforwards 
Federal net operating loss 
Postretirement benefit obligation 
Pension liability 
Postemployment benefit obligation 
Asset retirement obligations 
Miscellaneous accruals 
Regulatory liability — other 
Regulatory liability — investment tax credits 
Regulatory liability — net antitrust settiement 
Regulatory liability — asset retirement costs 
Regulatory liability — postretirement benefits 
Regulatory liability — income taxes refimdable 

to customers 

Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabihties: 
Prepmd expenses 
Electric plant 
Unrealized gain/loss on marketable securities 
Regulatory asset — postietirement benefits 
Regulatory asset — pension benefits 
Regulatory asset — unrecognized postemployment benefits 

Total deferred tax liabilities 

Valuation allowance 

Deferred income tax assets 

Current deferred mcome taxes $ 9,980,768 $ 18,302,793 
Non-current deferred income taxes 19,432,479 22,265,884 

During 2013, due to trends in market factors surrounding U.S. coal-fired generation and wholesale power 
prices, the Companies recorded a valuation allowance in order to recognize only those deferred tax assets 
that are more likely than not of realization through the end of the ICPA contract term in 2040. 
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$ 8,110,780 
2,574,572 

61,312,280 
14,770,267 
1,684,610 

728,074 
7,785,586 
2,131,262 
1,288,943 
1,188,372 

638,789 
6,703,602 

10,283,147 

13,856,458 

133,056,742 

(679,165) 
(85,468,227) 
(3,580,925) 

-
(2,991,742) 

(728,074) 

(93,448,133) 

(10,195,362) 

$ 29,413,247 

$ 6,789,730 
2,574,572 
9,392,878 

28,748,763 
9,207,805 

875,010 
7,340,209 
2,742,592 

-
1,188,204 

638,700 
4,983,191 

-

13,844,317 

88,325,971 

(622,408) 
(29,477,415) 
(5,616,658) 

(463,906) 
(10,701,897) 

(875,010) 

(47,757,294) 

-

$ 40,568,677 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

The accounting guidance for Income Taxes addresses the determination of whether the tax benefits 
claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under 
this guidance, the Companies may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is 
more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based 
on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a 
position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being 
realized upon ultimate settlement. The Companies have not identified any imcertain tax positions as of 
Decembers!, 2013 and 2012, and accordingly, no liabilities for uncertain tax positions have been 
recognized. 

On March 23, 2010, President Obama signed into law the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (the 
PPAC Act). The PPAC Act is a comprehensive health care reform bill that includes revenue-raising 
provisions of nearly $400 billion over 10 years through tax increases on high-income individuals, excise 
taxes on high-cost group health plans, and new fees on selected health-care-related industries. In addition, 
on March 30, 2010, President Obama signed into law the reconciliation measure, which modifies certain 
provisions of the PPAC Act. 

An employer offering retiree prescription drug coverage that is at least as valuable as Medicare Part D 
coverage is currently entitled to a federal retiree drug subsidy. Employers can currentiy claim a deduction 
for the entire cost of providing the prescription drug coverage even though a portion of the cost is offset 
by the subsidy they receive. However, the PPAC Act repealed the current rule permitting a deduction of 
the portion of the drug coverage expense that is offset by the Medicare Part D subsidy. This provision of 
the PPAC Act as modified by the reconciliation measure is effective for taxable years beginning after 
December 31, 2012. As the law has been in effect for 2013, there is no additional adjustment in 2013 or 
going forward. 

During 2013 and 2012, the passage of the PPAC Act resulted m a reduction of the postemployment 
benefits deferred tax asset of approximately $0 and $80,000 and a reduction to the related regulatory 
liability (income taxes refundable to customers) of approximately $0 and $80,000, respectively. 

The Companies file income tax returns with the intemal Revenue Service and the states of Ohio, Indiana, 
and the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The Companies are no longer subject to federal tax examinations 
for tax years 2007 and earlier. The Companies are cuixently under audit by the Intemal Revenue Service 
for the tax years ended December 31, 2008 through December 31, 2012. The Companies are no longer 
subject to State of Indiana tax examinations for tax years 2007 and earlier. The Companies are no longer 
subject to Ohio andtheCommonwealthof Kentucky examinations for tax years 2006 and earlier. 

8. PENSION PLAN, OTHER POSTRETIREMENT AND POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

The Companies have a noncontributory qualified defmed benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) covering 
substantially all of then employees. The benefits are based on years of service and each employee's 
highest consecutive 36-montii compensation period. Employees are vested in the Pension Plan after five 
years of service with the Companies. 

Funduig for the Pension Plan is based on actuarially determined contributions, the maximum of which is 
generally the amoimt deductible for income tax purposes and the minimum being that required by the 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), as amended. The full cost of the pension 
benefits and related obligations has been allocated to OVEC and IKEC in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. The allocated amounts represent approximately a 57% and 43% split between OVEC 
and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31, 2013, and approximately a 57% and 43% split between 
OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31, 2012. The Pension Plan's assets as of December 31, 
2013, consist of investments in equity and debt securities. 

Jn addition to the Pension Plan, the Companies provide certain health care and life insurance benefits 
(Other Postretirement Benefits) for retned employees. Substantially all of the Companies' employees 
become eligible for these benefits if they reach retfrement age while workmg for the Companies. These 
and similar benefits for active employees are provided through employer funding and insurance policies. 
In December 2004, the Companies established Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (VEBA) 
trusts. In January 2011, the Companies established an IRC Section 401(h) accotmt under the Pension Plan. 

AU of the trust fimds' investments for the pension and postemployment benefit plans are diversified and 
managed in compliance with all laws and regulations. Management regularly reviews the actual asset 
allocation and periodically rebalances the investments to targeted allocation when appropriate. The 
investments are reported at fair value imder the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures accountmg 
guidance. 

All benefit plan assets are invested in accordance with each plan's investment policy. The investment 
policy outlines the investment objectives, strategies, and target asset allocations by plan. Benefit plan 
assets are reviewed on a formal basis each quarter by the OVEC/BfCEC Qualified Plan Trust Committee. 

The investment philosophies for the benefit plans support the allocation of assets to minimize risks and 
optimize net returns. 

Investment strate^es uiclude: 

• Maintaining a long-term investment horizon. 
• Diversifying assets to help control volatility of returns at acceptable levels. 
• Managing fees, transaction costs, and tax liabilities to maximize investment earnings. 
• Using active management of investments where appropriate risk/return opportunities exist. 
• Keeping portfolio stmcture style neutral to limit volatility compared to applicable benchmarks. 
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The target asset allocation for each portfolio is as follows: 

Pension Plan Assets Target 

Domestic equity 15.0 % 
International and global equity 15.0 
Fixed income 70.0 

VEBA Plan Assets Target 

Domestic equity 20.0 % 
International and global equity 20.0 
Fixed income 57.0 
Cash 3.0 

Each benefit plan contains various investment lunitations. These limitations are described in the 
investment policy statement and detailed in customized investment guidelines. These investment 
guidelines require appropriate portfolio diversification and defme security concentration limits. Each 
investment manager's portfolio is compared to an appropriate diversified benchmark index. 

Equity investment limitations: 

• No security in excess of 5% ofall equities. 
• Cash equivalents must be less than 10% of each investment manager's equity portfolio. 
• Individual securities must be less than 15% of each manager's equity portfolio. 
• No investment in excess of 5% of an outstanding class of any company. 
• No securities may be bought or sold on margin or other use of leverage. 

Fixed Income Limitations— As of December 31, 2013, the Pension Plan fixed income allocation 
consists of managed accounts composed of U.S. Government, corporate, and municipal obhgations. The 
VEBA benefit plans' fixed income allocation is composed of a variety of fixed income managed accounts 
and mutual funds. Investment limitations for these frxed income funds are defined by manager prospectus. 
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Cash Limitations — Cash and cash equivalents are held in each tmst to provide liquidity and meet short-
term cash needs. Cash equivalent funds are used to provide diversification and preserve principal. The 
underlying holdings in the cash funds are investment grade money market instruments, including money 
market mutual fimds, certificates of deposit, treasury bills, and other types of investment-grade short-term 
debt securities. The cash funds are valued each business day and provide daily liquidity. Projected Pension 
Plan and Other Postretnement Benefits obligations and fxmded status as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
are as follows: 

other Postretirement 
Pension Plan Benefits 

CliaDge in projected benefit obligation: 
Projected benefit obligation — beginning 

ofyear 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Plan participants' contributions 
Benefits paid 
Net actuarial (^ain)/ioss 
Medicare subsidy 
Plan amendments 
Expenses paid &om assets 

Projected benefit obligation — end 
ofyear 

Cbai^e in fair vaiue of plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets — beginning 

ofyear 
Actual return on plan assets 
Expenses paid from assets 
Employer contributions 
Plan participants' contributions 
Medicare subsidy 
Benefits paid 

Fair value of plan assets — end 
ofyear 

(Underfunded) status — end ofyear 

2013 

$ 195,007,159 
6,825,230 
8,357,208 

-
(4,289,481) 

(23,604,558) 

-
(3,173.345) 

(75,251) 

179,046,962 

164,445,834 
4,000=880 

(75,251) 
6,422,687 

-
-

(4,289,481) 

170,504,669 

$ (8,542,293) 

2012 

$192,294,158 
7,050,298 
8,383,604 

-
(3,536,952) 
(9,114,566) 

-
-

(69,383) 

195,007,159 

141,571,363 
21,180,806 

(69,383) 
5,500,000 

-
-

(3.536,952) 

164,445,834 

$ (30,561,325) 

2013 

S 190,323,891 
7,375,556 
8,180,654 

979,846 
(5,067,595) 

(39,654,091) 
300,508 
305,374 

-

162,744,143 

108,226,268 
9,279,474 

-
6.852,241 

979,846 
300,508 

(5,067,595) 

120,570,742 

$ (42,173,401) 

2012 

$171,866,123 
6,411,493 
7,442,065 

908,758 
(4,449,852) 
7,821,460 

323.844 

-
-

190,323,891 

94,948,011 
10,538,257 

-
5,957,250 

908,758 
323,844 

(4,449,852) 

108,226,268 

$ (82,097,623) 

See Note 1 for information regarding regulatory assets related to the Pension Plan and Other 
Postretirement Benefits plan. 

On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States of America signed into law the Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act). The Act introduced a 
prescription drug benefit to retirees as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit 
plans -fiial provide a prescription drug benefit that is actuarially equivalent to ftte benefit provided by 
Medicare. The Companies believe that the coverage for prescription drugs is at least actuarially equivalent 
to the benefits provided by Medicare for most current retirees because the benefits for that group 
substantially exceed the benefits provided by Medicare, thereby allowing the Companies to qualify for the 
subsidy. The Companies' employer contributions for Other Postretirement Benefits in the above table are 
net of subsidies received of $300,508 and $323,844 for 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Companies have 
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accounted for the subsidy as a reduction of the benefit obligation detailed in the above table. In June 2013, 
the Companies converted the prescription drug program for retirees over the age of 65 to a group-based 
company sponsored Medicare Part D program, or Employer Group Waiver Plan, or EGWP. Beginning in 
June 2013, the Companies use the Part D subsidies delivered through the EGWP each year to reduce net 
company retiree medical costs. Accordingly, the Companies no longer receive subsidies directly fi"om the 
Medicare program and no subsidies have been included in the benefit obligation. 

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Pension Plan was $156,748,676 and $167,595,378 at 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost— The Companies record the expected cost of Other 
Postretirement Benefits over the service period during which such benefits are earned. 

Pension expense is recognized as amounts are contributed to the Pension Plan and billed to customers. The 
acciunulated difference between recorded pension expense and the yearly net periodic pension expense, as 
calculated rmder the accountmg guidance for Compensation — Retirement Benefits, is billable as a cost of 
operations under the ICPA when contributed to the pension fund. This accumulated difference has been 
recorded as a regulatory asset in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service cost 
Recognized actuarial loss 

Total benefit cost 

Pension and other postretirement benefits 
expense recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income and retained earnings and 
billed to Sponsoring Companies under the ICPA 

Pension Plan 
2013 

S 6,825,230 
8,357,208 

(9,088,934) 
189,437 
428,567 

$ 6,711,508 

2012 

$ 7,050,298 
8,383,604 

(8,522,609) 
189,437 

2,086,365 

$ 9,187,095 

Other Postretirement 
Benefits 

2013 

$ 7,375,556 
8,180,654 

(5,562,089) 
(385,000) 

1,828,893 

$11,438,014 

2012 

S 6,411,493 
7,442,065 

(5,516,937) 
(379,000) 

3,577,730 

$ 9,535,351 

$ 6,422,687 $ 5,500.000 $ 5,400,000 S 5,500,000 
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The following table presents the classification of Pension Plan assets within the fair value hierarchy at 
December31, 2013 and 2012: 

Fair Value Measurements at 
Reporting Date Using 

2013 

Domestic equity mutual fimds 
Common stock - domestic 
Intemational and global equity mutual funds 
International and global private investment hmds 
Cash equivalents 
U.S. Treasury securities 
Corporate debt securities 
Mum'cipal debt securities 

Total fair value 

2012 

Domestic equity 
Intemational and global equity 
Cash equivalents 
U.S. Treasury securities 
Corporate debt securities 
Municipal debt securities 

Total feir value 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Market for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

$ 16,572,985 
8,480,137 

24,557,818 
-

5,211,961 
-
-
-

$ 54,822,901 

$ 23,558,247 
17,292,251 
4,924,712 

-
-
-

$ 45,775,210 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 
-
-

5,102,504 
-

7,505,362 
94,537,258 

8,536,644 

$115,681,768 

$ 
8,550,837 

-
6,804,928 

92,091,492 
11,223,367 

$118,670,624 

; Aignificant 
Unobservable 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

_ 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

. 
-
-
-
-
-

_ 
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The following table presents the classification of VEBA and 401(h) account assets within the fair value 
hierarchy at December 31, 2013 and 2012; 

Fair Value Measurements at 
Reporting Date Using 

2013 

Domestic equity mutual fimds 
Intemational and global equity mutual funds 
Intemational and global private investment fimds 
Fixed income mutual funds 
Fixed income securities 
Cash equivalents 

Total fair value 

2012 

Domestic equity mutual funds 
Intemational and global equity 
Fixed income mutual fimds 
Fixed income securities 
Cash equivalents 

Total fair value 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Market for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

$ 40,105,729 
22,737,909 

-
33,485,886 

-
6,033,501 

$ 102,363,025 

$ 21,360,870 
22,601,305 
48,177,536 

-
2,504,667 

$ 94^644,378 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 
-

4,267,427 
-

13,940,290 
-

$18,207,717 

S 
-
-

13,581,890 
-

$13,581,890 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ 
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

$ 
~ 
-
-
-

$ 

Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Assumptions— Actuarial assumptions used to 
determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows: 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

Pension Plan 
2013 

5.15 % 
3.00 

2012 

4.29 % 
3.00 

Other 
2013 

Medical 

5.20 % 
N/A 

Postretin 

Life 

5.20 % 
3.00 

jment Benefits 
2012 

Medical 

4.40 % 
N/A 

Life 

4.30 % 
3.00 
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Actuarial assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2013 
and 2012, were as follows: 

Pension Plan Other Postretirement Benefits 
2013 2012 2013 2012 

Medical Life Medical Life 

Discount rate 
Expected long-term return on 

plan assets 
Rate of compensation increase 

4.29 % 

5.50 
3.00 

4.40 % 

6.00 
4.00 

4.40 % 

4.95 
N/A 

4.30 % 

5.75 
3.00 

4.40 % 

5.60 
N/A 

4.40 

6.50 
4.00 

In selecting the expected long-tenn rate of return on assets, the Companies considered the average rate of 
earnings expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for plan benefits. This included 
considering the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts' asset allocation, as well as the target asset allocations for 
the future, and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the Pension Plan and the VEBAs. 

Assmned health care cost trend rates at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows. 

2013 2012 

Health care trend rate assumed for next year — participants under 65 
Health care trend rate assimied for next year •— participants over 65 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate 
trend rate) — participants under 65 

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate 
trend rate) — participants over 65 

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 

7.50 % 
7.50 

5.00 

5.00 
2019 

8.00 % 
8.00 

5.00 

5.00 
2019 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care 
plans. A one-percent^e-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following 
effects: 

One-Percenta0e One-Percentage 
Point Increase Point Decrease 

Effect on total service and interest cost 
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 

$ 3,631,271 
28,284,656 

$ (2,784,708) 
(22,171,247) 

Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Assets — The asset allocation for the Pension Plan and 
VEBA trusts at December 31,2013 and 2012, by asset category was as follows: 

Asset category: 
Equity securities 
Debt securities 

Pension Plan 
2013 2012 

32 % 30 % 
68 70 

VEBA Trusts 
2013 2012 

42 % 41 % 
58 59 
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Pension 
Plan 

$5,416,910 
6,126,992 
7,042,389 
7,848,396 
8,664,325 

56,948,180 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 

$5,923,496 
6,300,880 
6,852,055 
7,425,451 
7,890,713 

47,510,450 
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Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Contributions — The Companies expect to contribute 
$6,600,000 to their Pension Plan and $7,759,496 to their Other Postretirement Benefits plan in 2014. 

Estimated Future Benefit Payments — The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future 
service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid: 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
Five years thereafter 

Postemployment Benefits — The Companies follow the accounting guidance in Compensation — Non-
Retirement Postemployment Benefits and accrue the esthnated cost of benefits provided to former or 
inactive employees after employment but before retirement. Such benefits include, but are not limited to, 
salary contuiuations, supplemental unemployment, severance, disability (including workers' 
compensation), job training, coimselmg, and continuation of benefits, such as health care and life 
insurance coverage. The cost of such benefits and related obhgations has been allocated to OVEC and 
IKEC in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The allocated amotints represent 
approximately a 56% and 44% split between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31, 2013, 
and approximately a 45% and 55% split between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31, 
2012. The liability is offset with a corresponding regulatory asset and represents unrecognized 
postemployment benefits billable in tbe future to customers. The accrued cost of such benefits was 
$2,078,864 and $2,498,759 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Defined Contribution Plan — The Companies have a trustee-defined contribution supplemental pension 
and savings plan that includes 401(k) features and is available to employees who have met eligibility 
requnements. The Companies' contributions to the savings plan equal 100% of the first 1% and 50% of 
the next 5% of employee-participants' contributions. Benefits to participating employees are based solely 
upon amounts contributed to the participants' accounts and investment earnings. By its nature, the plan is 
fully funded at all times. The employer contiibutions for 2013 and 2012 were $1,956,546 and $1,942,045, 
respectively, 

9. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

Title IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments (CAAAs) required the Companies to reduce sulfur 
dioxide (SO2) emissions in two phases: Phase I m, 1995 and Phase II in 2000. The Companies selected a 
fuel switching strategy to comply with the emission reduction requirements. The Companies also 
purchased additional SO2 allowances. Historically, the cost of these purchased allowances has been 
inventoried and uicluded on an average cost basis in the cost of fuel consiuned when used. 
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Title IV of the 1990 CAAAs also required the Companies to comply with a nitrogen oxides (NOx) 
emission rate limit of 0.84 Ib/mmBtu in 2000. The Companies installed overfire air systems on all eleven 
units at the plants to comply with this limit. The total capital cost of the eleven overfire air systems was 
approximately $8.2 million. 

Durhig 2002 and 2003, Ohio and Indiana finalized respective NO^ Stale Implementation Plan (SIP) Call 
regulations that required fiirther significant NOx emission reductions for coal-buming power plants during 
the ozone control period. The Companies installed selective catalytic reduction (SCR) systems on ten of 
their eleven units to comply with these rules. The total capital cost of 1iie ten SCR systems was 
approximately $355 million. 

On March 10, 2005, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the U.S. EPA) issued the Clean 
An Interstate Rule (CAIR) that required further significant reductions of SO^ and NO^ emissions fi:om 
coal-buming power plants. On March 15, 2005, the U.S. EPA also issued the Clean Air Mercury Rule 
(CAMR) that required significant mercury emission reductions for coal-buming power plants. These 
emission reductions were required in two phases: 2009 and 2015 for NO^; 2010 and 2015 for SO2; and 
2010 and 2018 for mercury. Ohio and Indiana subsequentiy fmalized their respective versions of CAIR 
and CAMR. In response, the Companies determined that it would be necessaiy to install flue gas 
desulfurization (FGD) systems at botti plants to comply with these new rules. Following completion of the 
necessary engineering and permitting, construction was started on the new FGD systems. 

hi February 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision which vacated the federal CAMR 
and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA with a determination that the mle be rewritten under the maximum 
achievable control technologies (MACT) provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act. A group of 
electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requested a rehearing of the decision, which was denied by the Court. 
Followuig those denials, both the group of electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requested that the 
U.S. Supreme Court hear the case. However, in February 2009, the U.S. EPA withdrew its request and the 
group of utilities' request was denied. These actions left the ori^nal court decision in place, which 
vacated the federal CAMR and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA with a determination that the rule be 
rewritten under tiie MACT provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act The U.S. EPA has 
subsequently written a replacement rule for the regulation of coal-fired utility emissions of mercury and 
other hazardous air pollutants. This replacement rule was published in tiie Federal Register on 
February 16, 2012, and it is referred to as the Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (or MATS) rule. The rule 
became final on April 16, 2012, and OVEC-IKEC must be in comptiance with MATS emission lunits by 
April 15, 2015. Management expects that, witii tiie SCRs and FGD systems fiilly fimctional, OVEC-IKBC 
will be able to meet the emissions requnements outlined in the Mercury and Air Toxics Standards 
(MATS) rule by the April 15, 2015, compliance deadline. 

In July 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision that vacated the federal CAIR and 
remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA. In September 2008, the U.S. EPA, a group of electric utilities and 
other parties filed petitions for rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals granted 
the U.S. EPA's petition and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA without vacatur, allowing the federal 
CAIR to remain in effect while a new rule was developed and promulgated. Following the remand, the 
U.S. EPA promulgated a replacement rule to CAIR. This new rule is called the Cross-State Air Pollution 
Rule (CSAPR) and it was issued on July 6, 2011, and it was scheduled to go mto effect on January 1, 
2012. However, on December 30, 2011, the D.C. Curcuit Court issued an kidefmite "stay" of the CSAPR 
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mle imtil the Court considered the numerous state, trade association, and industry petitions filed to have 
the rule either stayed or reviewed. The Court also instmcted the U.S. EPA to keep CAIR in place while 
they considered the nrunerous petitions. On August 21, 2012, in a 2-1 decision, the D.C. Circuit Court 
vacated the CSAPR rule and ordered the U.S. EPA to keep CAIR. in effect until a CSAPR replacement 
rule is promulgated. The U.S. EPA and other parties filed a petition seeking rehearing before the entire 
D.C. Circuit Coxirt on October 5, 2012. That petition was denied by the D.C. Circuit Court on January 24, 
2013; however, the U.S. Solicitor General petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court to review the D.C. Circuit 
Comt's decision on CSAPR in March of 2013, and the Supreme Court granted that petition in Jtme of 
2013. Oral arguments were presented before the Supreme Court in December of 2013, and we now await 
a decision from the Supreme Court. That decision is expected to be issued in the summer of 2014. In the 
interim, CAIR will remain in effect. 

The first Kyger Creek plant FGD system became fully operational in November 2011 and the second FGD 
system began operation in February 2012. Clifty Creek's two FGD scmbbers were placed into service in 
March and May of 2013. As a result, OVEC-IKEC is positioned to meet the anticipated reductions in SO2 
and NOx emissions that are required under the CSAPR mle if the U.S. EPA ultimately prevails on its 
appeal and the rule is reinstated. Alternatively, OVEC-IKEC is also positioned to meet comparable 
emissions reductions that may be required by an equivalent replacement rule if the D.C. Circuit Court 
decision is ultimately upheld and the U.S. EPA is required to develop a replacement rule. 

Additional SO2 and NOx allowances were purchased to operate the Clifty Creek generating units to 
comply with the reinstated CAIR environmental emission rules during the 20 Z2 compliance period. With 
the Kyger Creek FGD and the Clifty Creek FGD systems now fiilly operational, and with the 10 SCR 
systems operational at both plants, management did not need to purchase additional SO2 allowances hi 
2013; however, there were limited NOx purchases and there may be a need to purchase limited NO^ 
allowances in 2014 and beyond. 

Now that all FGD systems are fully operational, OVEC-IKEC expects to have adequate SO2 allowances 
available without having to rely on market purchases if the CSAPR mles are upheld in their current form; 
however, additional NO^ allowances or additional NO^ controls may be necessary for Clifty Creek Unit 6 
either under a reinstated CSAPR mle or any promulgated replacement rule. 

On November 6, 2009, the Companies received a Section 114 Infonnation Request from the U.S. EPA. 
The stated purpose of the information request was for the U.S. EPA to obtain the necessary information to 
detennine if the Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek plants have been operating in compliance with the Federal 
Clean Air Act. Attorneys for the Companies subsequently contacted the U.S. EPA and established a 
schedule for submission of the requested information. Based on this schedule, all requested information 
was submitted to the U.S. EPA by March 8, 2010. 

In late December 2011, OVEC-QCEC received a letter dated December 21, 2011, firom tire U.S. EPA 
requesting follow-up information. Specifically, the U.S. EPA asked for an update on the status of the FGD 
scrubber projects at both plants as well as additional information on any other new emissions controls that 
either have been installed or are planned for installation since the last submittal we filed on March 8, 
2012. This information was prepared and filed witii the U.S. EPA in late January 2012. hi the fall of 2012, 
following an on-site visit, the U.S. EPA made an informal request that OVEC-IKEC provide the agency 
with a monthly email progress report on the Clifty Creek FGD project until both FGD systems are 
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operational in 2013. As of this date, the only communication OVEC-IKEC has had with the U.S. EPA 
related to either the origmal Section 114 data submittal or the supplemental data filing made hi 2011 are 
the rhonthly email progress reports. Those monthly email progress reports were discontinued once the 
second of the two FGD scmbbers at Clii^ Creek was placed mto service in May of 2013. 

10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The accounting ^dance for Financial Instruments requires disclosure of the fair value of certain fmancial 
uistruments. The estimates of fair value trader this guidance requne the application of broad assumptions 
and estimates. Accordingly, any actual exchange of such financial instruments could occur at values 
significantly different fi:om the amounts disclosed. As cash and cash equivalents, current receivables, 
current payables, and line of credit borrowings are all short term in nature, their carrying amounts 
approximate fair value, 

OVEC utilizes its trustee's extemal pricing service in its estimate of the fair value of the underlying 
investments held in the benefit plan trusts and investment portfolios. The Companies' management 
reviews and validates the prices utihzed by the trustee to determine fair value. Equities and fixed income 
securities are classified as Level 1 holdmgs if they are actively traded on exchanges. In addition, mutual 
funds are classified as Level 1 holdings because they are actively traded at quoted market prices. Certain 
fixed income securities do not trade on an exchange and do not have an official closing price. Pricing 
vendors calculate bond valuations using financial models and matrices. Fixed income securities are 
typically classified as Level 2 holdings because their valuation inputs are based on observable market 
data. Observable inputs used for valuing fixed income securities are benchmark yields, reported trades, 
broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, bids, offers, and economic events. Other securities with 
model-derived valuation inputs that are observable are also classified as Level 2 investments, investments 
with unobservable valuation inputs are classified as Level 3 investments. 

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Companies held certain assets that are required to be measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis. These consist of investments recorded within special deposits and long-
term investments. The special deposits corisist of money market mutual finds restricted for use on certain 
projects. The investments consist of money market mutual fiinds, equity mutual fiuids, and fixed income 
municipal securities. Changes in the observed trading prices and liquidity of money market funds are 
monitored as additional support for determining fan value, and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in 
earnings. 

The methods described above may produce a fair value calctilation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of fiiture fan values. Furthermore, while the Companies believe their 
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different 
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 
different fair value measurement at the reportmg date. 
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Long-Term Investments — Assets measured at fair value on a recurrmg basis at December 31, 2013 and 
2012, were as follows; 

Fair Value Measurements at 
Reporting Date Using 

2013 

Equity mutual funds 
Fixed income municipal securities 
Cash equivalents 

Total fair value 

2012 

Equity mutual funds 
Fixed income municipal securities 
Cash equivalents 

Total fair value 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Market for 
Identical Assets 

(LeveM) 

$24,795,074 

3,615,039 

$28,410,113 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 
88,696,555 

$ 88,696,555 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

S 

$ 

$21,192,480 $ 

61,009,960 
96,088,024 

$ 82,202,440 $96,088,024 $ 

Long-Term Debt -— The fair values of the seinor notes and fixed rate bonds were estimated usuig 
discounted cash flow analyses based on current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of 
borrowing arrangements. These fair values are not reflected in the balance sheets. 

The fair values and recorded values of the senior notes and fixed and variable rate bonds as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, are as follows: 

2013 2012 

Total 

Fair Value Recorded Value Fair Vaiue Recorded Value 

$ 1,684,165,978 $1,558,369,935 $ 1,848,202,504 $ 1,596,486,240 

11. LEASES 

OVEC has entered into operating leases to secure railcars for the transportation of coal in cormection with 
the fuel switching modifications at the OVEC and the DCEC generating stations. OVEC has railcar lease 
agreements that extend to as long as December 31, 2025, with options to exit the leases imder certain 
conditions. OVEC also has various other operating leases with other property and equipment. During 
2013, OVEC terminated certain railcar lease E^eements, which resulted in lease termination costs of 
$3,497,300. As of December 31, 2013, OVEC had billed Sponsor Companies $3,126,003 resulting in a 
balance of $371,297 that will be recovered from the Sponsor Companies within the next 12 months. This 
amount is recorded in current regulatory assets (see Note 1) and is not included in the lease payments 
below. 
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The amount in property under capital leases is $2,793,119 with accumulated depreciation of $905,642 and 
$460,693 as of December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments for capital and operathig leases at December 31,2013, are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
Thereafter 

Total future mimmum lease payments 

Less estimated interest element 

Estimated present value of fiiture minimum lease payments 

The annual operating lease cost incmxed was $1,862,319 and $3,310,227 for 2013 and 2012, respectively, 
and the annual capital lease cost incurred (depreciation expense) was $593,456 and $437,084 for 2013 and 
2012, respectively. 

12. COMMTTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Companies are party to or may be affected by various matters under litigation. Management believes 
that the ultimate outcome of these matters will not have a significant adverse effect on either the 
Companies' future results of operation or financial position. 

* * * * * * 

Operating 

$ 1,072,266 
814,895 

13,081 

$1,900,242 

Capital 

$ 677,352 
528,896 
264,693 
216,247 
137,643 
499,596 

2,324,427 

549,901 

$1,774,526 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Ohio Valley Electric Corporation: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidaled financial statements of Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and 
its subsidiary company, Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation (the "Companies"), which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consohdated statements of 
income and retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are fi-ee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors ' ResponsibiUty 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free fi-om material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor^s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Companies' 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Companies' intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accoimtkig estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Companies as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and 
their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

April 16, 2014 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

OVEC PERFORMANCE—A 6-YEAR COMPARISON 

Net Generation (MWti) 

Energy Delivered (MWh) to: 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Maximum Scheduled (MW) by: 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Power Costs to: 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Average Price (MWh): 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of Fuel Consumed 

Taxes (federal, state, and local) 

Payroll 

FuelBnmed (tons) 

Heat Rate (Btu per kWh, 
net generation) 

Unit Cost of Fuel Burned 
(perrranBtu) 

Equivalent Availability (percent) 

Power Use Factor (percent) 

Employees (year-end) 

2013 

10,471,693 

195,470 
10,304,107 

33 
2,160 

$9,282,000 
$671,648,000 

$47,483 
$65,183 

$675,649,000 

$594,742,000 

$311,900,000 

$12,312,000 

$63,175,000 

4,958,872 

10,715 

$2.78 

73.9 

75.05 

781 

2012 

10,514,762 

207,692 
10,340,568 

36 
2,165 

$9,097,000 
$650,027,000 

$43,802 
$62,862 

$670,819,000 

$599,891,000 

$302,926,000 

$11,659,000 

$61,907,000 

5,290,009 

10,581 

$2.72 

78.9 

69.40 

828 

2011 

14,468,168 

253.157 
14,199,025 

39 
2,247 

$11,643,000 
$722,153,000 

$45,993 
S50.859 

$716,938,000 

$653,696,000 

$397,543,000 

$12,059,000 

$57,141,000 

7,310,107 

10,467 

$2.63 

83.0 

89.61 

810 

2010 

14,634,079 

249,139 
14,421,180 

39 
2,223 

$11,207,000 
$671,671,000 

$44,984 
S46.57S 

$690,687,000 

$618,790,000 

$358,507,000 

$11,208,000 

$55,609,000 

7,506,530 

10,310 

$2.38 

81.0 

92.82 

783 

2009 

15,260,922 

264,664 
15,069,699 

39 
2,212 

$11,451,000 
$632,506,000 

$43,266 
$41,972 

$648,593,000 

$584,881,000 

$329,448,000 

$12,298,000 

$56,589,000 

7,900,894 

10,299 

$2.10 

81.6 

96.29 

809 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

DIRECTORS 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

^'^ ANTHONY J . AHERN, Columbus, Ohio 
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Buckeye Power Generating, LLC 

^ NICHOLAS K. AKINS, Columbus, Ohio 
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American Electric Power Company, Inc. 

E R I C D. BAKER, Cadillac, Michigan 
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JAMES R. HANEY, Akron, Ohio 
Vice President, Compliance & Reguhted Services 
and Chief FERC Compliance Officer 

FirstEnergy Corp. 

VmLVe R. HERRINGTON, Dayton, Ohio 
President, Competitive Generation 
AES U.S. Strategic Business Unit 

^ LANA L. m L L E B R A N D , Columbus, Ohio 
Senior Vice President and Chief Administraiive Officer 
American Electric Power Company, Inc. 

^ CHARLES D. LASKY, Akron, Ohio 
Vice President, Fossil Operations and Engineering 
FirstEnergy Generation, LLC 

^ MARK C. McCULLOUGH, Columbus, Ohio 
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American Electric Power Company, Inc. 

STEVEN K. NELSON, Coshocton, Ohio 
Chairman, Buckeye Power Board of Trustees 
The Frontier Power Company 

PATRICK W. O'LOUGHLIN, Columbus, Ohio 
Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 
Buckeye Power Generating, LLC 

ROBERT P. POWERS, Columbus, Ohio 
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 
American Electric Power Company, Inc. 

^ PAUL W. THOMPSON, LouisvUle, Kentucky 
Chief Operating Officer 
LG&E and KU Energy LLC 

^ JOHN N. VOYLES, JR., Louisville, Kentuclg' 
Vice President, Transmission and Generation Services 
LG&E and KU Energy LLC 

^ CHARLES WHTTLOCK, Cincinnati, Ohio 
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Duke Energy Corporation 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

^ ANTHONY J. AHERN, Columbus, Ohio 
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Buckeye Power Generating, LLC 

^ NICHOLAS K. AKINS, Columbus, Ohio 
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American Electric Power Conpany, Inc. 

PAUL CHODAK, Fort Wayne, Indiana 
President and Chief Operating Officer 
Indiana Michigan Power 

WAYNE D. GAMES, Evansville, Indiana 
Vice President — Power Supply 
Vectren Corporation 

^ CHARLES D. LASKY, Akron, Ohio 
Vice President, Fossil Operations and Engineering 
FirstEnergy Generation, LLC 

MARC E. LEWIS, Fort Wayne, Indiana 
Vice President, Extemal Relations 
Indiana Michigan Power 

OFFICERS—OVEC AND IKEC 

NICHOLAS K. AKINS 
President 

M A R K A . P E I F E R 
Vice President and 
Chief Operating Officer 
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Chief Financial Officer, 
Secretary and Treasurer 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

This Report Is: 
(1) m A n Original 
(2) M A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
{Mo. Da. Yr) 
12/31/2009 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) 

YearfPeriod of Report | 
End of 2009/Q4 

1. Report all sales for resale (i.e., sales to purchasers other than ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis other than 
power exchanges duringtfie year. Do not report exchanges of electricity (i.e.. transactions involving a balancing of debits and credits 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any settlements for imbalanced exchanges on ̂ is schedule. Power exchanges must be reported on the 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enter the name of the purchaser in column (a). Do note abbreviate or truncate the name or use acnsnyms. Explain in a footnote any 
ownership Interest or affiliation the respondent has with the purchaser. 
3. In column (b), enter a Statistical Classification Code based on the original contractual terms and conditions of the service as followre; 
RQ - for requirements service. Requirements service is service which the supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., the 
supplier Includes projected load for this service in its system resource planning). In addition, the reliability of requirements service must 
be the same as, or second only to, the supplier's service to its own ultimate consumers, 
LF - for tong-temn se^ f̂lce. "Long-tenn" means five years or Longer and "firm" means that service cannot be Intenupted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions (e.g., the supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from third parties to maintain deliveries of LF service). This category should not be used for Long-term finm serwce which meets the 
definition of RQ service. For all transactions identified as LF, provide in a footnote the termination date of the confract defined as the 
earliest date that ei^er buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of the contract. 
IF - for intermediate-term firm service. The same as LF service except that "intermediate-term" means longer than one year but Less 

than five years. 
SF - for short-tenm firm service. Use this category for all fimi services where the duration of each period of commitment for sen/ice is 
one year or less. 
LU - for Long-term service from a designated generating unit. "Long-term" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
service, aside from transmission constraints, must match the availability and reliability of designated unit 
IU - for intermediate-tenn service from a designated generating unit. The same as LU service except that "intermediate-term" means 
Longer than one year but Less than five years. 

t 
tiSM 

Line 
No. 

Name of Company or Public Authority 
(Footnote Affiliations) 

(a) 

Statistical 
Classifi-
cat'on 

(b) 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 
(c) 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 

Actual Demand (MW) 
TS/erage 

Monthly NOP Demani 

(e) 
Monthly CPT)emand 

(f) 

American Electric Power Eastern Op. Co. OS FPC1-B MA MA NA 

Appalachian Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA NA 

TJA 
"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

* N A 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

Buckeye Power Generating. LLC OS FPC1-B NA NA 

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company OS FPC1-B NA NA 

Columbus Soufbem Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA 

The Dayton Power and Light Company OS FPC1-B NA NA 

FirstEnergy Generation Corporation OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Indiana Michigan Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA 

10 Kentucky Utilities Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

11 Louisville Gas and Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

12 Monongahela Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

13 Ohio Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

14 Southern Indiana Gas & EJecbic Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-90) Page 310 



Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

This R^ort Is: 
(t) fX] An Original 
(2) r n A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2009 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2009/Q4 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) 

1. Report all sales for resale (i.e., sales to purchasers other than ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis other than 
power exchanges during the year. Do not report exchanges of electricity ( i .e., transactions involving a balancing of debits and credits 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any settlements for imbalanced exchanges on this schedule. Power exchanges must be reported on the 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enter the name of the purchaser in column (a). Do note abbreviate or truncate the name or use acronyms. E>q3lain in a footnote any 
ownership interest or affiliation the respondent has with the purchaser. 
3. !n column (b), enter a Statistical Classification Code based on the original contractual terms and conditions of the service as follows; 
RQ - for requirements service. Requirements service is service which the supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., the 
supplier includes projected load for this service in its system resource planning). In addition, the reliability of requirements service must 
t3e the same as, or second only to, the supplier's service to its own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-tenm service. "Long-term" means five years or Longer and "firm" means that service cannot be intemipted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions {e.g., the supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
fl'om third parties to maintain deliveries of LF service). This category should not be used for Long-term finm service which meets the 
definition of RQ service. For all transactions identified as LF, provide in a footnote the termination date of the contract defined as the 
eariiest date that eittier buyer or seti;er can unilaterally get out of the contract. 
IF - for intermediate-term firm service. The same as LF service except tfiat "intennediate-term" means longer than one year but Less 

than five year^. 
SF - for short-term firm service. Use this category for all firm services where ttie duration of each period of commitment for service is 
one year or less. 
LU - for Long-tenn service from a designated generating unit. "Long-term" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
service, aside from transmission constraints, must match the availability and reliability of designated unit. 
|U - for intermediate-term swvice from a designated generating unit The same as LU service except that "intermediate-term" means 
Longer than one year but Less than five years. 

Line 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Name of Compwiy or Public Auttiority 
(Footnote Affiiialions) 

(a) 

^ ^ ^ p ^ p f P f H ^ M U ^ ^ 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 

Statistical 
Classifi­
cation 

(b) 

FERC Rate 
Sct^dule or 

Tariff Number 
(c) 
NA 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 
NA 

0 

d 
D 

Actual Demand (MW) j 
Average 

Monthly NCP DemaiK 

(e) 
NA 

0 

0 

0 

Average 
Monthly CPT)emand 

(0 
NA 

0 

0 

0 

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-90) Page 310.1 



Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

This Report Is: 
(1) [X]An Original 
(2) n i A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2009 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2009/Q4 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) (Continued) 

OS - for other service, use tiiis category only for those services \A^ich cannot be placed in the above-defined categories, such as all 
non-firm service reganjjess of the Lengtii of the contract and service from designated unite of Less than one year. Describe the nature 
of the service in a footnote. 
AD - for Out-of-period adjustment. Use this code for any accounting adjustments or "tme-ups" for service prcivided in prior reporting 
years. Provide an explanation in a footnote for each adjusbnent. 
4. Group requirements RQ sales togetiier and report them starting at line number one. After listing all RQ sales, enter "Subtotal - RQ" 
in column (a). The remaining sales may then be listed in any order. Enter "Subtotel-Non-RQ" in column (a) after Oils Listing. Enter 
To ta l " in column (a) as the Last Line of the schedule. Report subtotals and total for columns (9) through (k) 
5. In Column (c), identify the FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number. On separate Lines, List all FERC rate schedules or tariffs under 
which service, as identified in column (b), is provided. 
6. For requirements RQ sales and any type of-service involving demand charges imposed on a monthly (or Longer) basis, enter tiie 
average monthly billing demand In column (d), the average monthly non-coincident peak (NCP) demand in column (e), and tiie average 
monthly coincident peak (CP) 
demand in column (f). For all otiier types of service, enter NA in columns (d), (e) and (f). Monthly NCP demand is the mawmum 
metered hourly (60-minute integration) demand in a month. Monthly CP demand is tiie metered demand during the hour (60-minute 
integration) in which the supplier's system reaches its monthly peak. Demand reported in columns (e) and (f) must be in megawatts. 
Footnote any demand not stated on a megawatt basis and explain. 
7. Report in column (g) the megawatt hours shovwi on bills rendered to the purdiaser. 
8. Report demand charges in column (h), energy charges in column (1), and the totel of any other types of charges, including 
out-of-period adjustments, in column (j). Explain in a footnote all components of the amount shown in column (j). Report in column (k) 
the total charge shown on bills rendered to the purchaser. 
9. The data in column (g) through (k) must be subtotaled based on the RQfl^on-RQ grouping (see Instnjction 4), and then totaled on 
the Last -line of the schedule. The "Subtotal - RQ" amount in column (g) must be reported as Requiremente Sales For Resale on Page 
401, line 23. The "Subtotal - Non-RQ" amount in column (g) must be reported as Non^equiremente Sales For Resale on Page 
401.iine24. 
10. Footnote entries as required and provide e}q3lanations following all required date. 

Megawatt Hours 
Sold 

(9) 

2,529,260 

2,133,113 

1,119.652 

716.124 

743.801 

2.110.717 

1,265,083 

369,1340 

832,895 

542.306 

2,497,234 

209,674 

0 

15.069,699 

15,069,699 

REVENUE 
Demand Charges 

{$) 
(h) 

47.549,824 

45.488,498 

27,275,234 

13.455,782 

14.849.849 

43,913,656 

23,790,065 

7,576.45^ 

17,062.174 

10.607.035 

46,943.708 

4,545.872 

0 

307.694.075 

307,694,075 

Energy Charges 

55,331,709 

46.722,844 

24.432.011 

15,666,349 

16.257,881 

45,997,401 

27,675,661 

8.084.413 

18.206,442 

11,859.243 

54.631,228 

4.582,923 

0 

329.448.105 

329,448,105 

Other Ctiarges 
($) 
(i) 

0 

0 

0 

Total ($) 
(h+i4i) 

(k) 

102,881,533 

92,211,342 

51,707.245 

29,122,131 

31,107,730 

89,911,057 

51.465.726 

15.660.8S7 

35.268.616 

22.466.278 

101.574,936 

9.128.795 

0 

637.142.180 

637,142,180 

Line 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-90) Page 311 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

This Report Is: 
(1) [XJ An Original 
(2) PTA Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo. Da, Yr) 
12/31/2010 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) 

Year/Period of Repor 
End of 2010/Q4 

EXHIBIT 

1. Report all sales for resale (i.e.. sales to purchasers other than ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis other than 
power exchanges during the year. Do not report exchanges of electricity ( i .e., transactions involving a balancing of debits and credite 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any setOemente for imbalanced exchanges on this schedule. Power exchanges must be reported on the 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enter the name of the purchaser in column (a). Do note abbreviate or truncate Ihe name or use acronyms. Explain in a footnote any 
ownership interest or afllliation the respondent has vwtii the purchaser. 
3. In column (b), enter a Statistical Classificab'on Code based on ttie original contractual terms and conditions of the service as follows: 
RQ - for requirements service. Requirements service is service which the supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis {i.e., the 
supplier includes projected load for this service in ite system resource planning). In addition, tiie reliability of requirements service must 
be the same as, or second only to, the supplier's service to ite own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-term service. "Long-term" means five years or Longer and "firm" means that service cannot be intenupted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions (e.g., the supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from third parties to maintain deliveries of LF service). This category should not be used for Long-term finn service which meets the 
definition of RQ service. For all transactions identified as LF, provide in a footnote the termination date of the contract defined as tfie 
eariiest date that either buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of the contract. 
IF - for intermediate-term firm service. The same as LF service except that "interniediate-term" means longer than one year but Less 

than five years. 
SF - for short-term finii service. Use this category for all finn sen/ices where the duration of each period of commitment for service is 
one year or less. 
LU - for Long-term service from a designated generating unit "Long-term" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
service, aside from transmission constraints, must match tiie availability and reliability of designated unit. 
IU - for intermediate-term service from a designated generating unit. The same as LU service except that "intermediate-term" means 
Longer than one year but Less than five years. 

Line 
No. 

Name of Company or Public Authority 
(Footnote Affiliations) 

(a) 

Statistical 
Classifi­
cation 

(b) 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 
(c) 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 

Actual Demand (MW) 
Average 

Monthly NCP Demant 

(e) 

Average 
Monthly CPDemand 

(f) 

American Electric Power Eastem Op. Co. OS FPC1-B NA NA NA 

Appalachian Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

TJA 
"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC OS FPCl-B NA NA 
The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Columbus Southern Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

The Dayton Power and Ught Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

FirsEnergy Generation Corporation OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Indiana Michigan Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA 

10 Kentucky Utilities Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

11 Louisville Gas and Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

12 Monongahela Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

13 Ohio Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

14 Southern Indiana Gas & Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Subtotal RO 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-90) Page 310 



Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

TTiis Report Is: 
(1) [XjAn Original 
(2) |~1A ResubmisKon 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2010 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2010/Q4 

SALES FOR RES/M-E (Account 447) 

1. Report all sales for resale (i.e., sales to purchasers other than ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis other than 
power exchanges during the year. Do not report exchanges of electricity ( i .e., transactions involving a balancing of debits and credits 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any settlements for imbalanced exchanges on this sdiedule. Power exchanges must be reported on the 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enter the name of the purchaser in column (a). Do note abbreviate or truncate tiie name or use acronyms. E)^lain in a footoote any 
ownership interest or affiliation the respondent has vrfth the purchaser. 
3. In column (b), enter a Statistical Classification Code based on the original contractual terms and conditions of the service as follows: 
RQ - for requiremente service. Requirements service is service which the supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., the 
supplier includes projected load for this service in its system resource planning). In addition, the reliability of requiremente service must 
be the same as, or second only to, the supplier's service to ite own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-term service. "Long-term" means five years or Longer and "firm" means that service cannot be interrupted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions (e.g., the supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from third parties to maintain deliveries of LF service). This category should not be used for Long-tenn firm service which meete the 
definition of RQ service. For all transactions identified as LF, provide in a footnote tiie termination date of the contract defined as tiie 
eariiest date that either buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of the contract 
IF - for infenmediate-temi finn service. Tfie same as LF service except that "intemiediate-temi" means longer than one year but Less 

than five years. 
SF - for short-tenn firm service. Use tills category for all firm services where the duration of each period of commitment for service is 
one year or less. 
LU - tor Long-tenm ser>nce frx>m a designated generating unit. "Long-term" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
service, aside from transmission constraints, must match the availability and reliability of designated unit. 
IU - for intermediate-term service from a designated generating unit The same as LU service except that "intermedrate-tenri" means 
Longer than one year t)ut Less than five years. 

Line 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Name of Company or Public Authority 
(Footnote Affiliations) 

(a) 

Statistical 
Classifi­
cation 

(b) 

^ H ^ ^ ^ H ^ H ^ ^ I ^ ^ P i 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 
(c) 
NA 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 
NA 

0 

0 

0 

Actual Demand (MW) | 
Average 

Monthly NCP Demanc 
(e) 

NA 

0 

0 

0 

Average 
Monthly CPT)emand 

(0 
NA 

0 

0 

0 

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-90) Page 310.1 



Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

This Report Is: 
(1) m An Original 
(2) n i A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo. Da, Yr) 
12/31/2010 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2010/Q4 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) (Continued) 

OS - for other service, use this category only for ttiose services which cannot be placed in the above-defined cat^or ies, such as all 
non-firm service regardless of the Length of the contract and service from designated units of Less than one year. Describe the nature 
of the service in a footoote. 
AD - for Out-of-period adjustment. Use this code for any accounting adjustments or "true-ups" for service provided in prior reporting 
years. Provide an explanation in a footoote for each adjustment. 
4. Group requirements RQ sales togetoer and report them starting at line number one. After listing all RQ sales, enter "Subtotal - RQ" 
in column (a). The remaining sales may tiien be listed in any order. Enter "Subtotal-Non-RQ" in column (a) after tills Listing. Enter 
"Total" in column (a) as the Last Line of the schedule. Report subtotals and totel for columns (9) tiirough (k) 
5. In Column (c), identify the FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number. On separate Lines, List all FERC rate schedules or tariffs under 
which service, as identified In column (b), is provided. 
6. For requirements RQ sales and any ^ p e of-service involving demand charges imposed on a monthly (or Longer) basis, enter the 
average monthly billing demand in column (d), the average monthly non-coincident peak (NCP) demand in column (e), and the average 
monthly coincident peak (CP) 
demand in column (f). For all other types of service, enter NA in columns (d), (e) and (f). Monthly NCP demand is the maximum 
metered houriy (60-minute integration) demand in a month. Monthly CP demand is the metered demand during the hour (60-minute 
integration) in which the supplier's system reaches ite monthly peak. Demand reported in columns (e) and (f) must be in megawatts. 
Footoote any demand not stated on a megawatt basis and explain. 
7. Report in column (g) the megawatt hours shown on bills rendered to tiie purchaser. 
8. Report demand charges in column (h), energy charges in column (i), and the totel of any other types of charges, inciuding 
out-of-period adjustinents, in column Q). Explain in a footoote all componente of the amount shown in column G). Report In column (k) 
the totel charge shown on bills rendered to the purchaser. 
9. The data in column (g) through (k) must be subtotaled based on the RQ/Non-RQ grouping (see instruction 4), and teen totaled on 
the Last -line of tiie schedule. The "Subtotal - RQ" amount in column (g) must be reported as Requirements Sales For Resale on Page 
401, line 23. The "Subtotal - Non-RQ" amount In column (g) must be reported as Non-Requirements Sales For Resale on Page 
401,line 24. 
10. Footnote entries as required and provide explanations following all required date. 

MegaWatt Hours 
Sold 

(g) 

642.092 

2,254,119 

1.983.887 

1,140.728 

638.259 

798.376 

1.650,873 

1,127,782 

373,224 

840,516 

553,245 

2,225.394 

192.685 

0 

14,421.180 

14,421,180 

REVENUE 
Demand Charges 

($) 
(h) 

14.836,759 

49.135,403 

41,532,728 

28.184,744 

13.904,474 

15,345.027 

36,013.839 

24,583,360 

7,829,095 

17.631.123 

10,960,734 

48,509,075 

4,697,457 

0 

320,972,322 

320,972,322 

Energy Charges 
($) 

15,309,528 

56.004.744 

49,994.397 

28,263,945 

15,857.742 

19,900,202 

41,075.745 

28,020.664 

9,285,939 

20,912.327 

13.788,918 

55.291,099 

4.802,194 

0 

358,507,444 

358,507,444 

O^er Charges 
($) 
a) 

0 

0 

0 

Total ($) 
(h+i+J) 

(k) 

30.146.287 

105,140,147 

91.527,125 

56,448,689 

29,762,216 

35.245,229 

77.089,584 

52,604,024 

17.115.034 

38.543.450 

24.749,652 

103.800.174 

9.499,651 

0 

679,479,766 

679,479,766 

Line 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Coiporation 

This ROTort Is: 
(1) [ ^An Original 
(2) [ jA Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2011 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) 

Year/Period of Report| 
End of 2011/04, 

1 . Report all sales for resale (i.e., sales to purchasers other tiian ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis other than 
povrer exchanges during the year. Do not report exchanges of electilcity (i.e., ti-ansactions involving a balancing of debits and credits 
fbr energy, capacity, etc.) and any settiements for imbalanced exchanges on tills schedule. Power exchanges must be reported on the 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enterthe name ofthepurchaserin column (a). Do note abbreviate or tnjncate Vie name or use acronyms. Explain in a footnote any 
ownership interest or affiliation the respondent has with the purchaser. 
3. In column (b), enter a Statistical Classification Code based wi the original contractual terms and conditions of the service as follows: 
RQ - for requirements service. Requiremente service is service vAiich the supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., the 
supplier includes projected load for this sen/ice in Its system resource planning). In addition, the reliability of requirements service must 
be the same as. or second only to, the supplier's serv'tce to its own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-tenm service. "Long-term" means five years or Longer and "firm" means that service cannot be interrupted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions {e.g., the supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from tiiird parties to maintain deliveries of LF service). This category should not be used for Long-term finn senrtce wrfiich meete the 
definition of RQ service. For all transactions identified as LF, provide in a footoote the termination date of the contract defined as the 
eariiest date that eitiier buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of the contract. 
IF - for intermediate-term firm service. The same as LF service except toat "intennediate-term" means longer than one year but Less 

than five years. 
SF - for short-tertn firm service. Use this category for all firni sen/ices where the duration of each period of commitinent for service is 
one year or less. 
LU - for Long-tenn service from a designated generating unit "Long-temn" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
service, aside from ti^nsmission constraints, must match tiie availability and reliability of designated unit 
IU - for intermediate-term sen/ice from a designated generating unit Ihe same as LU ser\ice except toat "intertnediate-term" means 
Longer than one year but Less than five years. 

lo 

Line 
No. 

Name of Company or Public Auttiority 
(Footnote Affiliations) 

(a) 

Statistical 
Classifi­
cation 

(b) 

American Electric Power Eastem Op. Co. OS 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 

(c) 

FPCl-B 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 

NA 

Actual Demand (MW) 
Averaoe 

Monthly NCP Deman( 

(e) 

NA 

Average 
Monttily CPIDemand 

(0 

NA 
Appalachian Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

~m 
"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

Buckeye Power Generating. LLC OS FPCl-B NA NA 

The Cindnnafi Gas & Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Columbus Southern Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

The Dayton Power and Light Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 
FirstEnergy Generation Corporation OS FPC1-B NA NA 

Indiana Michigan Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

10 Kentucky Utilities Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

11 Louisville Gas and Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

12 Monongahela Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

13 Ohio Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

14 Peninsula Generation Cooperative OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-90) Page 310 



Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

This Report is: 
(1) [ g A n Original 
(2) [ jA Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2011 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2011/Q4 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) 

1. Report all sales for resale (i.e., sales to purchasere other than ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis other than 
power exchanges during toe year. Do not report exchanges of electricity (I.e., transactions involving a balancing of debite and credits 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any settlemente for imbalanced exchanges on this schedule. Power exchanges must be reported on the 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enter ttie name of the purchaser in column (a). Do note abbreviate or truncate the name or use acronyms. Explain in a footnote any 
ownership interest or affiliation toe respondent has witii toe purchaser. 
3. In column (b). enter a Statistical Classification Code based on toe original conti"actuaI tenns and conditions of the service as follows: 
RQ - for requirements service. Requiremente service is sen/ice whid i the supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., the 
^jpplier indudes projected load for this service in its system resource planning). In addition, toe reliability of requiremente service must 
be Itie same as, or second only to, the supplier's sen/ice to ite own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-term service. "Long-tenm" means five years or Longer and "firm" means toat service cannot be intemjpted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain r^iable even under adverse conditions (e.g., the supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from third parties to maintein deliveries of LF service). This category should not be used for Long-term firni sen/ice which meets the 
definition of RQ sen/ice. For all transactions identified as LF, provide in a footnote toe tennination date of the contract defined as toe 
eariiest date tiiat eitoer buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of tiie contract. 
IF - for intermediate-term firm service. The same as LF service except that "intermediate-term" means longer than one year but Less 

than five years. 
SF - for short-term firm sen/ice. Use tois category for all firm senrices w^ere toe duration of each period of commitment for service is 
one year or less. 
LU - for Long-term service from a designated generating unit "Long-term" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
sen/ice, aside from ti-ansmission constraints, must match toe availability and reliability of designated unit. 
IU - for intemediate-tenm sen/ice firom a designated generating unit. The same as LU service except toat "intennediate-term" means 
Longer toan one year but Less toan five yeare. 

Line 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

•9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Name of Company or Public Au&iority 
(Footnote AfflliatiOTis) 

(a) 
Southern Indiana Gas & Electric Company 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 1 ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 

Statistical 
Ciassifi-
cafion 

(b) 
OS 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 
(c) 

FPCl-B 

NA 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 
NA 

0 

0 

0 

Actual Demand (MW) 
Average 

Montiily NCP Demant 

(e) 
NA 

0 

0 

0 

Average 
Monthly CPTiemand 

(0 
NA 

0 

0 

0 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporafion 

This Report Is: 
(1) [xjAn Original 
(2) f~|A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2011 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2011/04 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) (Continued) 

OS - for other savice. use this category only for those services which cannot be placed In toe above-defined categories, sudi as ail 
non-fimi service regardless of the Lengto of toe conti^ct and service from designated unite of Less than one year. Describe the nature 
of the service in a footoote. 
AD - for Out-of-period adjustinent Use tois code for any accounting adjustments or "tme-ups" for service fMxivided in prior reporting 
years. Provide an explanation in a footnote for each adjustinent 
4. Group requiremente RQ sales togetoer and report toem starting at line number one. After listing ail RQ sales, enter "Subtotal - RQ" 
in column (a). The remaining sales may toen be listed in any order. Enter "Subtotel-Non-RQ" in column (a) after tois Listing. Enter 
Total" in column (a) as toe Last Line of toe schedule. Report subtotals and total for columns (9) through (k) 
5. In Column (c), identify the FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number. On separate Lines, List all FERC rate schedules or tariffs under 
which senflce, as identified in column (b), is provided. 
6. For requiremente RQ sales and any type of-service involving demand chaises imposed on a monthly (or Longer) basis, enter the 
average montiily billing demand in column (d), toe average montoiy non-coincident peak (NCP) demand in column (e), and toe average 
monthly coincident peak (CP) 
demand in column (f). For all otoer types of service, enter NA in columns (d), (e) and (f). Montoiy NCP demand is toe mawmum 
metered houriy (60-minute integration) demand in a monto. Monthly CP demand is the metered demand during toe hour (60-minute 
integration) in which the supplier's system reaches ite monthly peak. Demand reported in columns (e) and (f) must tie in megawatts, 
Footoote any demand not stated on a megawatt basis and explain. 
7. Report in column (g) the megawatt hours shown on bills rendered to the purchaser. 
8. Report demand charges in column (h), energy charges in column (1), and toe total of any other types of charges, including 
out-of-period adjustinents, in column ()). Explain in a footoote all components of the amount shown In column (j)- Report in column (k) 
the total charge shown on bills rendered to the purchaser. 
9. The data in column (g) torough (k) must be subtotaled based on the RQ/Non-RQ grouping (see instruction 4), and then totaled on 
the Last -line of the schedule. The "Subtotal - RQ" amount in column (g) must be reported as Requiremente Sales For Resale on Page 
401, line 23. The "Subtotal - Non-RQ" amount in column (g) must be reported as Non-Requirements Sales For Resale on Page 
401,line 24. 
10. Footnote entiles as required and pro\flde explanations foilowing all required date. 

Megawatt Hours 
Sold 

(g) 

1,219,265 

2.249,442 

1,383,656 

1,071.027 

636.802 

785,405 

698.400 

1,125,434 

348.111 

783.957 

520,148 

2,220.691 

959.275 

0 

14,199,025 

14,199,025 

REVENUE 
Demand Charges 

($) 
(h) 

31.442,987 

50.931,352 

26,986,863 

29.214,925 

14,412,696 

15,905,904 

15,743.598 

25,481,907 

8,115,257 

18.275.559 

11,361,360 

50.282,132 

21.586.582 

0 

307.751.566 

307,751,566 

Energy Charges 
($) 
(i) 

34,286,883 

63,002,363 

38,589,287 

29,853,768 

17,835.156 

22,039,684 

19.553,461 

31,521.239 

9,742.049 

21,939.410 

14.574,006 

62,197.469 

26,861,713 

0 

397,543,208 

397,543,208 

Other Charges 
($) 
0) 

0 

0 

0 

Total ($) 
(h^+i) 

(k) 

65,729,870 
113.933.715 
65,576.150 
59,068,693 
32,247,852 
37,945,588 
35,297,059 
57,003,146 
17,857,306 
40,214,969 
25,935,366 

112,479.601 
48.448,295 

0 

705,294,774 

705,294,774 

Line 
No. 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

This Report Is: 
(1) g j A n Original 
(2) [ ^ A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2012 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447] 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2012/Q4 g 

1. Report all sales for resale (i.e., sales to purchasers otoer than ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis other than 
power exchanges during the year. Do not report exchanges of electricity ( i .e., transactions involving a balancing of debits and credits 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any settiements for imbalanced exchanges on tois schedule. Power exchanges must be reported on toe 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enter the name of the purchaser in column (a). Do note abbreviate or tnjncate toe name or use acronyms. E)q3lain in a footoote any 
ownerehip interest or affiliation the respondent has vwth the purchaser. 
3. In column (b), enter a Statistical Classification Code based on toe original conti^actual temns and conditions of toe service as follows: 
RQ - for requirements service. Requirements service is serwce which toe supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., toe 
supplier includes projected load for this service in its system resource planning). In addition, the reliability of requirements sen/ice must 
be toe same as, or second only to, the supplier's service to its own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-term service. "Long-tenm" means five years or Longer and "firm" means that sen/ice cannot be interrupted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions (e.g., the supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from third parties to maintain deliveries of LF sen/ice). This category should not be used for Long-term firm sen/ice which meets the 
definition of RQ sen/Ice. For all transactions identified as LF, provide In a footnote the termination date of toe contract defined as toe 
earliest date that either buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of the contract 
IF - for intennediate-term firm service. The same as LF service except tiiat "intermediate-temi" means longer than one year but Less 

than five years. 
S F - for short-term firm service. Use tois category for all firm services where the duration of each period of commitment for sen/ice is 
one year or less. 
LU - for Long-term service from a designated generating unit. "Long-term" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
service, aside fi^om transmission constraints, must match the availability and reliability of designated unit. 
IU - for intennediate-tenn service from a designated generating unit. The same as LU service except toat "intermediate-temn" means 
Longer than one year but Less than five years. 

Line 
No. 

Name of Company or Public Authority 
(Footnote Affiliations) 

(a) 

Statistical 
Classifi­
cation 

(b) 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 
(c) 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 

Actual Demand (MW) 
Average 

Monthly NCP Demani 

(e) 

Average 
Monthly CPTtemand 

(f) 
N0TE1 

Appalachian Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA NA 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC OS FPCl-B NA NA NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

~NA 

"NA 

"NA 

TJA 
"NA 

TJA 
"NA 

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Columbus Southern Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

The Dayton Power and Light Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

FirstEnergy Generation Corporatton OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Indiana Michigan Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA 

Kentucky Utilifes Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

10 Louisville Gas and Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

11 Monongahela Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

12 Ohio Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

13 Peninsula Generation Cooperative OS FPCl-B NA NA 

14 Southern Indiana Gas & Electric Company OS FPCl-B 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valiey Electric Corporation 

This Report Is: 
(1) |X] An Original 
(2) r~|A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da. Yr) 
12/31/2012 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2012/Q4 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) 

1. Report all sales for resale (i.e.. sales to purt^asers other toan ultimate consumers) ti^nsacted on a settlement basis otoer toan 
power exchanges during toe year. Do not report exchanges of electocity ( i .e., transactions involving a balancing of debits and credits 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any settlemente for imbalanced exchanges on this schedule. Power exchanges must be reported on the 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enter toe name of toe purchaser in column (a). Do note abbreviate or truncate toe name or use acronyms. Explain in a footnote any 
ownership interest or affiliation the respondent has wito the purchaser. 
3. In column (b), enter a Statistical Classification Code based on the original contractual terms and conditions of the service as follows: 
RQ - for requirements service. Requiremente service is service which toe supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., toe 
supplier includes projected load for this service in its system resource planning). In addition, the reliability of requirements service must 
be the same as, or second only to, toe supplier's service to its own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-tenn sen/ice. "Long-term" means five years or Longer and "finn" means that service cannot tie intenupted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions (e.g., toe supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from third parties to maintain deliveries of LF service). This category should not be used for Long-term fimn service which meets the 
definition of RQ service. For all transactions identified as LF, provide in a footoote toe termination date of the conti-act defined as the 
eariiest date that eitoer buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of the contract. 
IF - fo r intermediate-term firm service. The same as LF service except toat "intennediate-term" means longer than one year but Less 

than five years. 
S F - f o r short-term firm sen/ice. Use tois category for all finn sendees where toe durati'on of each period of commitment for service is 
one year or less. 
LU - for Long-tenn service from a designated generating unit. "Long-term" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
service, aside from tiansmtssion constfBints, must match the availabilify and reliabili^ of designated unit. 
IU - for intermediate-term service from a designated generating unit. The same as LU service except that "intermediate-tenn" means 
Longer toan one year but Less toan five years. 

Line 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Name of Company or Public Autoorify 
(Footnote Affiliations) 

(a) 

Sta&stical 
Classifi­
cation 

(b) 
See footnote. ' 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 

(c) 
NA 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 

0 

0 

0 

Actual Demand (MW) | 
Average 

Monttily NCP Demant 

(e) 

0 

0 

0 

Average 
Monthly CPT)emand 

(f) 

0 

0 

0 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric CorporaMon 

This Report Is: 
(1) [X] An Original 
(2) [~|A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da. Yr) 
12/31/2012 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2012/Q4 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) (Continued) 

OS - for otoer service, use this category only for toose services which cannot be placed in toe above-defined categories, such as all 
non-finn sen/ice reganJIess of the Lengto of the contract and service from designated units of Less than one year. Describe the natore 
of toe service in a footnote. 
AD - for Out-of-period adjustment. Use this code for any accounting adjustments or "tme-ups" for service provided in prior reporting 
years. Provide an explanation in a footnote for each adjustment 
4. Group requirements RQ sales together and report them starting at line number one. After listing all RQ sales, enter "Subtotal - RQ" 
in column (a). The remaining sates may then be listed in any order. Enter "Subtotel-Non-RQ" In column (a) after this Listing. Enter 
"Total" in column (a) as the Last Line of the schedule. Report subtotals and total for columns (9) through (k) 
5. In Column (c), identify toe FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number. On separate Lines, List all FERC rate schedules or tariffs under 
which service, as identified in column (b), is provided. 
6. For requirements RQ sales and any type of-service Involving demand charges imposed on a montoiy (or Longer) basis, enter the 
average monthly billing demand in column (d), the average monthly norvcoincldent peak (NCP) demand in column (e), and the average 
monthly coincident peak (CP) 
demand in column (f). For all otoer types of sen^ice, enter NA in columns (d), (e) and (f). Montoiy NCP demand is toe maximum 
metered houriy (60-minute integration) demand in a month. Monthly CP demand is toe metered demand during the hour (60-minute 
integration) in which the supplier's system reaches its monthly peak. Demand reported in columns (e) and (f) must be in megawatts. 
Footnote any demand not stated on a megawatt basis and explain. 
7. Report In column (g) the megawatt hours shown on bills rendered to the purchaser. 
8. Report demand ctiarges In column (h), energy charges in column (i), and toe total of any other types of charges, Including 
out-of-period adjustments, in column (j). Explain in a footnote all componente of the amount shown In column (j). Report in column (k) 
the total charge shown on bills rendered to the purchaser. 
9. The data In column (g) torough (k) must be subtotaled based on the RQ/Non-RQ grouping (see instnjction 4), and toen totaled on 
the Last -line of the schedule. The "Subtotal - RQ" amount in column (g) must be reported as Requirements Sales For Resale on Page 
401, line 23. The "Subtotal - Non-RQ" amount in column (g) must be reported as Non-Requirements Sales For Resale on Page 
401 ,llne 24. 
10. Footnote entries as required and provide explanafa'ons following all required data. 

MegaWatt Hours 
Sold 

(g) 

1.537,023 

1.973,171 

750.581 

434,951 

622.491 

498.486 

768,978 

304.231 

685,135 

376,183 

1.517,436 

692,479 

179,423 

0 

10,340,568 

10,340,568 

REVENUE 
Demand Charges 

($) 
(h) 

54,460.202 

62.478,243 

31.239,121 

15,411,300 

17,007.966 

16,834,416 

27.247,456 

8.677,534 

19,541,806 

12,148,547 

53.765.999 

23,082,240 

5,206,520 

0 

358.796,254 

358,796,254 

Energy Charges 
($) 
0) 

44,985,934 

57.798,969 

21.995,364 

12.730,244 

18,265,553 

14,632,346 

22,506.621 

8.921.499 

20.091.414 

11,035,677 

44.412.665 

20,280,139 

5.269,272 

0 

302.925,697 

302,925,697 

Other Charges 
($) 
(i) 

0 

0 

0 

Total ($) 
(h+i+j) 

(k) 

99.446.136 

120.277.212 

53.234.485 

28.141.544 

35,273,519 

31,466,762 

49,754.077 

17.599.033 

39.633,220 

23.184,224 

98,178,664 

43.362,379 

10.475,792 

0 

661.721.951 

661,721,951 

Line 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 
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This f ^ o r t is: 
(1) [X] An Original 
(2) Q A Resubmission 

Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2013 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2013/Q4 

3 
SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) 

1. Report all sales for resale (i.e., sales to purchasers other than ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis otoer than 
power exchanges during the year. Do not report exchanges of electricity (i.e.. transactions involving a balancing of debits and credits 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any settlements for imbalanced exchanges on this schedule. Power exchanges must t^e reported on the 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327), 
2. Enter (he name of the purchaser in column (a). Do note abbreviate or tiuncate the name or use acronyms. Explain in a footnote any 
ownership interest or affiliation the respondent has with the purchaser. 
3. In column (b), enter a Statistical Classification Code based on the original contractual terms and conditions of toe service as follows; 
RQ - for requirements sen/ice. Requiremente sen/ice is service which toe supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., the 
supplier Includes projected load for this service In its system resource planning). In additi"on, the reliability of requirements service must 
be the same as. or seojnd only to. the supplier's service to its own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-term service. "Long-term" means five years or Longer and "firm" means that serwce cannot be interrupted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions (e.g., the supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from third parties to maintain deliveries of LF service). This category should no! i ^ used for Long-term firni service which meets toe 
deRnition of RQ service. For all transactions Identified as LF, provide in a footnote the termination date of the contract defined as the 
eariiest date that either buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of the contract 
IF ' for intermediate-term firm sendee. The same as LF service except toat "intermediate-term" means longer toan one year but Less 

than five years. 
SF - for short-term firm serv/ice. Use this category for ail firm services where the duration of each period of commitment for sen/ice is 
one year or less. 
LU " for Long-term service from a designated generating unit "Long-term" means five years or Longer. The availability and reliability of 
service, aside from transmission constraints, must match the availability and reliability of designated unit. 
IU - for intermediate-term service from a designated generating unit. T>ie same as LU service except that "intermediate-term" means 
Longer than one year but Less than five years. 

Line 
No. 

Name of Company or Public Authority 
(Footnote Affiliations) 

(a) 

Statistical 
Classifi­
cation 

(b) 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 
(0) 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 

Actual Demand (MW) 
Average 

Monthly NCP Demam 
Average 

Monthly CP Demand 

(f) 
N0TE1 

Appalachian Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA NA 
Budteye Power Generating. LLC OS FPCl-B NA NA NA 

IJA 
~NA 

"NA 

~NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

~NA 

"NA 

"NA 

"NA 

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Columbus Southern Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA 

The Dayton Power and Light Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

FirstEnergy Generation Corporation OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Indiana Michigan Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Kentucky Utilities Company OS Fpci-a NA NA 

Louisville Gas and Electric Company OS PPCt-B NA NA 

11 Monongahela Power Company OS FPC1-B NA NA 

12 Ohio Power Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

13 Peninsula Generation Cooperative OS FPCl-B NA NA 

14 Southern Indiana Gas & Electric Company OS FPCl-B NA NA 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

This Report is-
(1) [XjAnOriginai 
(2) \ ] A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo, Da, r f ) 
12/31/2013 

Year/Period of Report 
End of 2013/04 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) 

1. Report ail sales for resale (i.e., sales to purchasers other than ultimate consumers) transacted on a settlement basis otoer toan 
power exchanges during toe year. Do no! report exchanges of electricity (i.e., transactions involving a balancing of debits and credits 
for energy, capacity, etc.) and any settlements for imbalanced exchanges on this schedule. Power exchanges must be reported on toe 
Purchased Power schedule (Page 326-327). 
2. Enter the name of the purchaser in column (a). Denote abbreviate or truncate the name or use acronyms. Explain in a footnote any 
ownership interest or aifiliation the respondent has with the purchaser. 
3. In column (b), enter a Statistical Classification Code based on toe original contractual terms and conditions of the service as follows: 
RQ - for requiremente service. Requirements service is service whic^ the supplier plans to provide on an ongoing basis (i.e., the 
supplier includes projected load for tois serwce in its system resource pianning). In addition, the reliability of requirements service must 
be the same as, or second only to, the supplier's service to its own ultimate consumers. 
LF - for tong-term service, "Long-term" means five years or Longer and "firm" means toat service cannot be interrupted for economic 
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions (e.g., toe supplier must attempt to buy emergency energy 
from third parties lo maintain deliveries of LF serifice). This category should not be used for Lxtng-term firm service which meets the 
definition of RQ service. For all ti-ansactions identified as LP, provide in a footnote the termination date of the contract defined as the 
eariiest date that either buyer or setter can unilaterally get out of toe contract. 
IF - for intermediate-term firm service. The same as LF service except that "intermediate-term" means longer than one year but l_ess 

than ffve years, 
SF - for short-term firm service. Use this category for ail firm services where toe duration of ea<^ period of commitment for serwce is 
one year or less. 
LU - for Long-term sen/ice from a designated generating unit. "Long-term" means five year^ or Longer. The arailabiiity and reliability of 
service, aside from transmission constrainte, must match the availability and reliability of designated unif 
!U - for Intermediate-term service from a designated generating unit. The same as LU service except toat "inteitnediate-term" means 
Longer than one year but Less toan five years. 

Line 
No, 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

e 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

», 

Name of Company or Public Authority 
(Footnote Affiliations) 

fa) 

Statistical 
Classifi-
• cation 

(b) 
See footnote RQ 

Subtotal RQ 

Subtotal non-RQ 

Total 

FERC Rate 
Schedule or 

Tariff Number 
(c) 
NA 

Average 
Monthly Billing 
Demand (MW) 

(d) 

0 

0 

Q 

Actual Demand (MW) 
Average 

Monthly NCP Demanc 

(e) 

0 

0 

0 

Montiily CF^emand 
(H 

0 

0 

0 
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Name of Respondent 

Ohio Valley Eiecfric Corporation 

This Re 
(1) g 
(2) ^ 

Jort Is; 
An Original 
A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(IWo, Da, Yr) 
12/31/2013 

Yearff'eriod of Report 
End of 2013/Q4 

SALES FOR RESALE (Account 447) (Continued) 

OS - for other service, use this category only for those services vWilch cannot be placed in the above-defined categories, sudi as all 
non-firm service regardless of toe Length of the conti'act and service from designated unite of Less than one year. Describe the nature 
of the service in a footnote. 
AD - for Out-of-period adjustment. Use this code for any accounting adjustments or "frue-up^ for service provided in prior reporting 
years. Provide an explanation in a footoote for eac^ adjustment 
4. Group requirements RQ sales togetoer and report toem starting at line number one. After listing all RQ sales, enter "Subtotal - RQ" 
in column (a). The remaining saies may then be listed in any order. Enter "Subtotal-Non-RQ" in coiumn (a) after this Usting. Enter 
"Total" in oslumn (a) as the Last Line of the schedule. Report subtotals and total for columns (9) torough (k) 
5. In Column (c), identify toe FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number. On separate Lines, List all FERC rate schedules or tariffs under 
which service, as identified in column (b), is provided. 
6. For requirements RQ sales and any type of-servlce involving demand charges imposed on a monthly (or Longer) basis, enter the 
average monthly billing demand in coiumn (d), the average monthly non-coincident peak (NCP) demand in column (e), and toe average 
monthly coincident peak (CP) 
demand in column (f). For all other types of sereice, enter NA in columns (d), (e) and (1). Monthly HCP demand is the maximum 
metered houriy (60-minute integration) demand in a monto. Monthly CP demand Is toe metered demand during toe hour (60-minute 
integration) in which the supplier's system reaches its monthly peak. Demand reported in columns (e) and (f) must be in megawatts. 
Footoote any demand not stated on a megawatt basis and explain. 
7. Report in column (g) the megawatt hours shown on bills rendered to the purchaser. 
8. Report demand charges in column (h), energy charges in column (i), and toe total of any otoer types of charges, including 
out-of-period adjustments, in column (j). Explain in a footnote all components of toe amount shown in column (j). Report in column (k) 
the total charge shown on bills rendered to the purchaser. 
9. The data in column (g) torough (k) must be subtotaled based on the RQ/Non-RQ grouping (see instruction 4), and then totaled on 
the Last -line of the schedule. The "Subtotal - RQ" amount in column (g) must be reported as Requirements Sales For Resale on Page 
401, line 23. The "Subtotei - Non-RQ" amount In column (g) must be reported as Non-Requirements Sales For Resale on Page 
4Q1jine24, 
10. Footnote entries as required and provide explanations following all required dala. 

MegaWatt Hours 
Sold 

(g) 

1.562,977 

1,951,529 

301,522 

442,298 

619,674 

618.133 

781.954 

252,623 

591,430 

373.052 

1,543,055 

686,352 

169.498 

0 

10,304,107 

10.304,107 

REVENUE 
Demaf\d Charges 

($) 
(h) 

66,444,394 

64.754,563 

32,377,281 

15.972,792 

17.627.631 

17.447.757 

28,240,184 

8.993.689 

20,253,788 

12,591,165 

55.724,900 

23.923.214 

5,396,214 

-5,279.862 

359,747,572 

354,457,710 

Energy Charges 
(S) 
0) 

47,287,766 

59,086,500 

24.218,341 

13,381,700 

18.792.039 

15.696.323 

23.658,265 

7,959.999 

17,926,025 

11,301.356 

46,685.026 

20,768,840 

6,137,715 

0 

311,899.995 

311,899,995 

Other Charges 
($) 
(D 

Q 

0 

0 

Total (S) 
(h-̂ -i+j) 

103.732,160 

123.841,163 

56.595,622 

29.354,492 

36,419.670 

33,144.080 

51,893.449 

16.953,688 

38,179,813 

23.892,521 

102,409.926 

44,692.054 

10.533,929 

-5.279,862 

671,647.567 

666,367,705 

Line 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 
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Summary of OVEC Sales t o Duke Energy-Ohio 

(Source: OVEC FERC Form 1 Reporting) 

EXHIBIT 

Total Charge 

Year M W H Demand Energy Charges per M W H 

2013 801,522 $32,377,281 $24,218,341 $56,595,622 $70.61 

2012 750,581 $31,239,121 $21,995,364 $53,234,485 $70.92 

2011 1,071,027 $29,214,925 $29,853,768 $59,068,693 $55.15 

2010 1,140,728 $28,184,744 $28,263,946 $56,448,690 $49.48 

2009 1,119,652 $27,275,234 $24,432,011 $51,707,245 $46.18 


